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ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014

| am pleased to present the annual report of Tysan Holdings limited (the
"Company”) together with ifs subsidiaries (the “Group”] for the year ended
31 March 2014. For the year under review, the Group achieved a profit
atiributable o equity holders of the Company of HK$270 million, equivalent
to HK$0.31/share, representing 23% decrease (2012/13: HK$348 million,
equivalent to HK$0.40/share| while turnover decreased by 7% to HK$3,504
million (2012/13: HK$3,767 million).

DIVIDEND

The Board has resolved fo recommend the payment of a final dividend of
HK$0.10 (2012/13: HK$0.05) per share to shareholders whose names
appear on the Company's register of members on 22 August 2014. No
interim dividend was declared for the six months ended 30 September 2013
(2012/13: HK$0.02). Subject to shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming
annual general meeting, the proposed final dividend will be paid on or before

12 September 2014

BUSINESS REVIEW

Hong Kong Market
Foundation Piling

15% 1o HK$2,471

million for the year under review. Its net contribution increased by 2.3 fimes to

Tumnover of the Group's foundation division decreased by

HK$189 million as compared to HK$80 million last year. The Group's major
contracts on hand include, inter alia, a public housing development in Tung
Chung Area 39, private residential developments in Kai Tak and Tseung Kwan
O, and site formation and foundation works for a residential development in
Kau To, Shatin

Other Construction Related Sectors

During the year under review, turnover of the Group's electrical and
mechanical engineering division was HK$21 million and the division made
a net contribution of about HK$0.7 million. The Group expects the division
will continue fo maintain the current trend in the coming year. Turmnover of the
machinery leasing and trading division maintained at HK$32 million during
the year under review and the division incurred a loss of about HK$0.5

million. The Group expects the division to turnaround in the coming year.



[ ]
TR B A R A A

F % W5 CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

HE] T PRC Market
WEEZR Property Development
Ik E The Waterfront

REBEE  AEEELB2ZEEEER  Durng the year under review, the Group's residential project in Shanghai,
% 5% B ## 58 U 25 449,000,000 7T » M1 &= The Waterfront, recognized a revenue of HK$449 million as compared to
F [ R A &) 2= B /3 224,000,000 7T - HK$224 million in the same period last year and contribution fo profit of
FENE 258,000,000 T(ZE—=%F " HK$258 million (2013: HK$ 140 million). The unsold area at The Waterfront
140,000,000 L) RZZE—MWHF = A  asat 31 March 2014 are outlined below:

=t+—8 FMEEzARELEEHRHINT

o (FE:411,800FFK: *  Residential: about 11,800 sqm,;
o REBAL: 99 fEHEL ; e CarPark: 99 car park spaces;
o FAEE:H4800FH K FBIHEHE o NonResidenfial: about 4,800 sqm, representing primarily street front

TERAERRELREE - refail and a historic building.

Zrz=E The Waterfront
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From April o May 2014, an additional 2,046 sqm of the project was sold.

As the government's fightening policies confinue, the market senfiment is
expected fo remain cautious and conservative. However, as The Waterfront is
a unique product and the remaining inventory is relatively small, we expect the
price fo remain stable.

The Riverside

The Group's residential project in Tianjin, The Riverside, comprises 6 towers
with a fofal gross floor area ("GFA”) of about 75,000 sqm. The unsold area
at The Riverside as at 31 March 2014 are outlined below:

*  Residential: about 34,200 sqm;
o CarPark: 185 car park spaces;

*  Non-Residential: about 4,000 sqm, representing primarily street front
refail and The Riverside's clubhouse.

ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014
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From April fo May 2014, an addifional 1,765 sqm of the project was sold.

For the year under review, a revenue of HK$515 million was recognized as
compared to HK$535 million in the same period last year and contribution
to profit decreased from HK$199 million of last year to HK$170 million.
The Group is confident that it can maintain ifs sale pace and price for the
remaining units which are of high quality and unique design.

The Pinnacle

The site in Shenyang is located af Huanggu Disfrict with a site area of about
41,209 sqm and a GFA of about 165,000 sqm. The Pinnacle will comprise
of both residential and commercial development. Consfruction works fo the
residential towers have commenced. All blocks (except for Towers 7 and 8
will be topped out by the end of 2014. The Group expects fo commence pre-
sale in the financial year of 2015 - 2016, subject to markef conditions.

E ] 2013/2014
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Property Investment and Management

In order to achieve higher refumns, the Group has undertaken renovation works
in phases to enhance the quality of its investment properties in Shanghai,
China Garden and Aidu Apartment, since October 2013. During the
period under review, the tenants had been gradually vacated fo facilitate
the renovation works. Turnover of the property investment division decreased
to HK$13 million while the overall valuation increased by HK$45 million.
Following completion of the renovation works in the second half of 2014, it
is expected that these investment properties in Shanghai will provide steady
recurrent income fo the Group.

PROSPECTS

The Group expects Hong Kong's foundation piling industry fo stay healthy in
the next few years. This is driven by strong construction activities in both public
and private sectors. In the fiscal year 2014-15, the government's capital
spending on infrastructure is estimated fo reach HK$78 billion; this represents
a yearon-year increase of 2%, and 22% above the 5-year average. The
govemment has also increased the supply of residential land, which has led
fo an increase in private-sector developments. Major infrastructure projects
and land development projects being undertaken or planned include Kai Tak
Development Area, the Kwun Tong Line Extension, the Central Kowloon Route,
the Tseung Kwan OLam Tin Tunnel and the Tseung Kwan O Cross Bay Link,
the construction or redevelopment of various hospitals, and the Third Runway.
The Group is well positioned to benefit from these developments.

As of 31 March 2014, the business of the Group's foundation division
remains healthy. With the contracted works in the pipeline, it is expected that
the division will continue fo yield profits in the new financial year.
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In China, we see a slowdown in the property sector. However, the Group
believes that the impact will be less pronounced in city-centre locations (such
as our Shanghai and Tianjin projects). In addition, our product offers unique
value proposition fo our potential customers, which we believe will allow us to
withstand price competition from our competitors.

The Group will adopt a prudent investment and financing strategy and
continue fo strive for improvement, sfrengfhen its efficiency and seek
opportunities to maximize the interests of all shareholders.

After the general offer made by Tides Holdings Il Lid. became unconditional
on 3 January 2014, the Company has become a subsidiary of The
Blackstone Group L.P. and its affiliates. The Group will continue to focus on
its principal businesses, being property development, property investment and
management, and foundation piling.

FE I 2013/2014
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group continues to adopt a prudent financing policy and sustain a sound
capital structure with healthy cashflow. As at 31 March 2014, the Group's
cash on hand was approximately HK$1,551 million {31 March 2013
HK$ 1,079 million) while
controlling interests) were approximately HK$5,277 million (31 March 2013
HK$5,074 million) and HK$2,482 million (31 March 2013: HK$2,339
million), respectively. As at 31 March 20 4, the Group's working capital
amounted to HK$ 1,538 m||||on As af 31 March 2014, the Group did not
have any net debt gearing and recorded a net cash balance of HK$Q65

fofal assets and net assefs (after deducting non-

million, while the Group recorded a net cash balance HK$243 million
as at 31 March 2013. Contingent liabilities in relation to guarantees of
performance bonds increased from HK$378 million as at 31 March 2013 1o
HK$533 million as at 31 March 2014. Certain of the Group's assefs with a
book value of approximately HK$222 million have been pledged to secure
certain banking facilities of the Group. The Group's bank borrowings were
mostly denominated in Hong Kong dollars, with a few loan facilities in Euro
and Yen. Currency exposure has been monitored and forward contracts will
be considered when the need arises.

EMPLOYMENT AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

The Group, including its subsidiaries in Hong Kong, Macau and the PRC,
March 2014. The
Group's remuneration policies are primarily based on prevailing market salary

employed approximately 1,448 employees as at 31

levels and the performance of the respective companies and individuals
concerned. Fringe benefits include provident fund, medical insurance and
fraining. In addifion, share opfions may also be granted in accordance to the
terms of the Group's approved share option scheme.
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APPRECIATION

I am pleased to extend my warm welcome to Mr. Stuart Morrison Grant, Mr.
Yang Han Hsiang, Mr. Justin Wai and Mr. Law Yiu Fat Richard for joining our
Board as Non-executive Directors. | would like to express my sincere gratitude
fo our former Chairman and Executive Directors, Mr. Francis Cheung, Mr.
David Chien and Mr. Harvey Jackel Cheung. In parficular, | would like to
thank Mr. Francis Cheung for his leadership and contribution. | will endeavor
fo work with the rest of the Board to continue Mr. Francis Cheung's great work
and bring the Group to new heights.

On behalf of the Board, | would like fo express my sincere grafitude to all our
staff for their dedication, hard work and confribution during the year. | would
also like to thank all our shareholders for their support of the Group.

On behalf of the Board

WANG TIANBING
Chairman

Hong Kong

30 June 2014

FE I 2013/2014
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr FUNG Chiu Chak Victor, aged 59, joined the Group in May 1994.
Mr Fung is the Vice Chairman & Managing Director of the Board of the
Company, a member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company
and also a director of various subsidiaries of the Company. He is primarily
responsible for business development, strategic planning as well as general
and project management of the Group. Mr Fung has over 35 years’
experience in the field of consulting engineering, construction management
and property development.

Miss KWOK Jennifer, aged 47, joined the Group in January 1997. Miss
Kwok is an Executive Director of the Board of the Company and also a
director of various subsidiaries of the Company. She is primarily responsible
for the Group's corporate planning and development, corporate finance and
investment strategies. Miss Kwok has over 22 vears’ experience in the finance
field specializing in corporate finance and direct investment. She holds a
Master of Science Degree in Management from Massachusetts Institute of
Technology Sloan School of Management.

Mr CHIU Chin Hung, aged 61, joined the Group in July 1994. Mr Chiu
is an Executive Director of the Board of the Company and also a director
of various subsidiaries of the Company. He is primarily responsible for the
business development and management of the Group's Foundation Division.
Mr Chiu graduated from The University of Aberdeen, Scofland and has over
36 years' experience in foundation design and construction works and is a
Fellow of The Institute of Civil Engineers and The Hong Kong Institution of
Engineers as well as a Chartered Engineer. Mr Chiu has been a Council
Member of The Hong Kong Construction Association representing Tysan
Foundation Limited since 2001.

Mr LAU Kin Fai, aged 53, joined the Group in July 2008. Mr Lau is an
Executive Director of the Board of the Company and also a director of various
subsidiaries of the Company. He is the General Manager of the China
Division in charge of the Group's Property Development Division in the PRC.
Mr Lau is primarily responsible for business development and management
of the Group's property development business. Prior fo joining the Group, he
had over 24 years' experience in the field of quantity surveying and housing
development with the latter 14 years working in the Hong Kong Housing
Society. Mr lau is a Fellow Member of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors
and the Royal Insfitution of Chartered Surveyors.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. WANG Tianbing, aged 46, was appointed as Chairman of the
Company, a Non-executive Director and as Chairman of the Nomination
Committee in April 2014. He is also a director of various subsidiaries of
the Company. He is a Managing Director in the Real Estate group of The
Blackstone Group L.P. ["Blacksione”]. Since joining Blacksfone in 2010, Mr.
Wang has been involved in evaluating real estate investments in China and
managing the Greater China portfolio of the MB Asia Real Estate Fund. Mr.
Wang holds a Master Degree in International Business from Curtin University
of Technology, Australia. He also has a Bachelor Degree in Economics from
Zhejiang University, China.

Mr. Stuart Morrison GRANT, aged 46, was appointed as a Nonexecufive
Director in April 2014. He is a Senior Managing Director and Head of Real
Estate Asset Management for Asia of Blackstone. Mr. Grant has day-o-day
asset management responsibility for Blackstone's Asia assets as well as the
MB Asia Real Estate Fund. Mr. Grant holds a Bachelor of Science [Honours)
degree from the University of St. Andrews and a Master of Science degree
from New York University, USA.

Mr. YANG Han Hsiang, aged 35, was appointed as a Non-executive
Director in April 2014. He is a Managing Director in the Real Estate group of
Blackstone. Since joining Blackstone in 2007, Mr. Yang has been involved
in evaluating real estate investment opportunities in Greater China. Mr. Yang
holds a Master Degree in Business Administration from INSEAD in France, and
a Bachelor Degree in Business Administration from University of Michigan, Ann

Arbor, USA.

Mr. Justin WAI, aged 30, was appointed as a Non-executive Director in
April 2014. He is also a director of Tysan Foundation (Hong Kong) Limited, a
subsidiary of the Company. He is currently a Principal in the Real Esfate group
of Blackstone. Since joining Blacksfone in 2007, Mr. Wai has been primarily
involved in real estate investments in Greater China. Prior to joining Blacksfone
in 2007, Mr. Wai worked af Macquarie Bank in Hong Kong. Mr. Wai holds
a Bachelor of Science Degree from the School of Hotel Administration, Cornell
University, New York, USA.

Mr. LAW Yiu Fat Richard, aged 33, was appointed as a Non-executive
Director in April 2014. He is also a director of Tysan Foundation [Hong
Kong] limited, a subsidiary of the Company. He is currently an Associate in
the Real Estate group of Blackstone. Since joining Blacksfone in 2008, Mr.
law has worked in Blackstone's Hong Kong and New York offices and was
involved in evaluating investment opportunities in Greater China and the USA.
Before joining Blackstone, Mr. law worked at the Bank of America Merrill
lynch in Hong Kong. Mr. law holds a Master Degree at Stanford University
and a Bachelor Degree (graduated magna cum laude] from the University of
Michigan, Ann Arbor, USA.

FE I 2013/2014
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr FAN Chor Ho, SBS, BBS, JP, aged 72, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in August 1993. Mr. Fan currently
also acts as the Chairman of the Audit Committee, a member of the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company. He
was a Non-executive Direcfor of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited
from 3 April 2000 to 15 April 2003. He was a member of the Advisory
Commitiee fo the Securities and Futures Commission from 1993 to 1997 and
again serving in the same capacity since 2001 until 2007. He is holding
appointments on Government boards and commitiees including Chairman of
the Chinese Medicine Council of Hong Kong from 13 September 2005 fo
12 September 2011. He was awarded the Silver Bauhinia Star in July 2011
and Bronze Bauhinia Star in July 2005, and was awarded with the Badge of
Honour in 1991 and was made a Justice of the Peace in 1993.

Mr TSE Man Bun, aged 71, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company in September 2004. Mr Tse currently also
acts as the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee, a member of the Audit
Commitiee and the Nomination Committee of the Company. He is presently
an independent non-executive director of HSBC Insurance (Asia) Limited,
HSBC life (Infernational) Limited, Crystal Infernational Limited and China
Fishery Group Llimited (listed on the Singapore Exchange limited). Mr Tse has
over 40 years working experience in the banking industry. He joined The
Hongkong & Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited in 1968 and retired from
the bank in December 2002. During his service with HSBC, he was assigned
many key positions, including Senior Credit Manager; Managing Director,
Wayfoong Finance Llimited and Wayfoong Credit Limited; and Senior
Executive, Commercial Banking. Apart from the banking field, Mr Tse is well
versed in the reviewing and analysis of corporate financial statements and has
an indepth understanding of the commerce and manufacturing industries.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

Mr LUNG Chee Ming George, aged 57, was appoinfed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in August 2007. Mr Lung currently
also acts as a member of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Commitiee
of the Company. He is a Senior Regional Director of Manulife (International)
limited leading a team of over 700 insurance/financial advisers. He first
joined Manulife in 1990 and has since achieved outstanding results. Actively
involved in community services, Mr lung was amongst one of the Ten
Outstanding Young Persons of Hong Kong in 1995 and was the chairman of
The Outstanding Young Persons Association in 2003 to 2004. Mr Llung was
awarded the Medal of Honour by the Government of Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region. Furthermore, Mr lung is a Committee Member of the
Board of Govemors of Hong Kong Shue Yan University, a Member of the
Guangdong Daya Bay Nuclear Power Station/lingao Nuclear Power Station,
Nuclear Safety Consultative Committee, the Founding Chairman of Hong
Kong Youth Exchange Promotion United Association and a Member of the
Commission on Youth of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. Mr Lung is
currently a member of the National Commitiee of the Chinese People's Polifical
Consultative Conference and Jusfice of the Peace of Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region. He is also an independent non-executive director of
Wing lee Holdings Limited, a company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited.

Mr Li Kit Chee, aged 59, was appointed as an Independent Non-execufive
Director of the Company in March 2013. Mr Li currently acfs as a member
of each of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration
Committee of the Company in March 2013. He holds a Bachelor Degree of
Social Sciences from the University of Hong Kong. He has over 31 years of
experience in auditing, accounting and secretarial services and is a fellow
member of both the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. He is a managing director of
Arthur Li, Yau & lee C.P.A. limited, and also a managing director of Cheong
Yip Corporate Services Limited which is principally engaged in corporate
service related business. He is also an independent non-executive director of
Henry Group Holdings Limited and National Arts Entertainment and Culture
Group Limited, both of which are companies listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong limited.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Miss MO Wai Ling, aged 50, joined the Group in February 2008. As the
Financial Controller of the Group, Miss Mo is primarily responsible for finance
and accounting matters. She has over 27 years' experience in the finance and
accounting field. Miss Mo is a fellow member of The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and a member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

Mr LAl Kok Wai, aged 56, joined the Group in July 1994. As a Director
of Tysan Foundation Limited, Tysan Foundation Geotechnical Limited, Tysan
Contractors [Hong Kong) Limited, Tysan Consfruction (Macau] limited and
Tysan Foundation [Macau) Limited, Mr Lai is responsible for the planning,
coordinating and controlling of the technical operations and administration of
the Foundation Division. He has over 33 years’ experience in civil engineering,
building and foundation design and construction works and is @ member of
both The Hong Kong Insfitution of Engineers (MHKIE) and The Institution of Civil
Engineers United Kingdom (MICE). Mr Lai also represents Tysan Foundation
Limited fo sit in various Government's panels and commitiees. Mr Lai is also a
Director of Proficiency Engineering limited and Proficiency Equipment Limited.
He is also responsible for the business development and management of
machinery leasing and trading.

Miss WONG Suk Han Kitty, aged 50, joined the Group in June 2007.
As the Company Secretary of the Group and Director of Corporate Affairs,
Miss Wong is primarily responsible for company secrefarial matters, legal
and investor relations matters. She has over 17 years of experience in the
corporate finance and legal fields. Miss Wong is a Solicitor qualified in Hong
Kong and has been admitted as a Solicitor of the Supreme Court in England

and Wales.
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£ % % 78 M % CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company is committed to maintaining good corporate governance and

has adopted the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code
(the "CG Code") contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities [the “listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong limited
(the "Stock Exchange”). For the financial year ended 31 March 2014, the
Company has fully complied with the CG Code save as disclosed in section (F)

below.

(A

(B)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The board of directors (the "Board”) oversees the management,
business, sfrategic directions and financial performance of the Company
and ifs subsidiaries (the “Group”). It has delegated the day-to-day
responsibility to the executive directors of the Company ("Directors”)
and senior management of the Company |"Senior Management’] who
perform their duties under the leadership of the managing director of the
Company ("Managing Director”). At the time of delegation, the Board
gives clear directions to Executive Directors as 1o the matters that must
be approved by the Board before decisions can be made on behalf
of the Group. The functions reserved to the Board and delegated to
the Executive Direcfors and Senior Management are reviewed by the
Board to ensure that such delegation remains appropriate fo the needs
of the Group. The Board members have access to appropriate business
documents and information about the Group on a timely basis.

BOARD COMPOSITION

During the year under review, the Independent Non-executive Directors
represent one-third of the Board who consistently exercise independent
judgment. From 1 April 2014, the Board comprises a total of 13
Directors, with four Executive Directors, being Mr. Fung Chiu Chak,
Victor, Miss Jennifer Kwok, Mr. Chiu Chin Hung and Mr. lau Kin Fai;
five Non-executive Directors (whose appointment became effective on
1 April 2014, being Mr. Wang Tianbing, Mr. Stuart Morrison Grant,
M:r. Yang Han Hsiang, Mr. Justin Wai and Mr. law Yiu Fat Richard;
and four Independent Non-executive Directors, being Mr. Fan Chor
Ho, Mr. Tse Man Bun, Mr. lung Chee Ming, George and Mr. i Kit
Chee. The Board comprises Directors with diverse backgrounds and/
or extensive expertise in the Group's business. The Non-executive
Directors and Independent Non-executive Direcfors have a wide range
of business and financial experience. With a balanced composition of
Executive Directors and Non-executive Directors (including Independent
Non-executive Directors), there is a sfrong independent element on the
Board. The balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives of
the Board confribute fo the effective direction of the Company.
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The Company has received annual written confirmations of
independence from all the Independent Non-executive Directors in
accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board is of the
view that all the Independent Non-executive Directors are independent
in character and judgement and that they all meet the specific
independence criferia as required by the Listing Rules.

Pursuant to Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules, the Company is required fo
appoint independent non-executive directors representing af least one-
third of the Board. With effect from 1 April 2014, Mr. Wang Tianbing,
Mr. Stuart Morrison Grant, Mr. Yang Han Hsiang, Mr. Jusfin Wai and
Mr. law Yiu Faf Richard became Non-executive Directors. Together
with four Executive Directors and four Independent Non-executive
Directors, there were a tofal of 13 Directors. Hence, since 1 April
2014, the Company has failed to meet the requirements under Rule
3.10A of the Listing Rules, where the Company is required fo appoint
independent non-executive directors representing at least one-third of
the Board. Under Rule 3.11 of the Listing Rules, the Company should
appoint an additional independent nonexecutive director to meet such
requirement under Rule 3.10A within three months after failing to meet
such requirements. However, as disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 21 March 2014, the Company will be in compliance
with the one-hird requirement as Miss Jennifer Kwok has tendered
her resignation as an Execufive Director due fo her own decision fo
devote more time to her personal endeavors and given that she has
stayed for up fo six months following the voluntary share offer by
Tides Holdings Il ltd. had become unconditional. The said share offer
became unconditional on 3 January 2014 and Miss Kwok's resignation
as Executive Director of the Company will become effective on 1 July

2014.

An updated list of Directors identifying their roles and functions and
whether they are Executive Directors, Non-executive Directors or
Independent Non-executive Directors has been maintained on www.
tysan.com (the "“Company's website”] and www.hkexnews.hk (the
"Stock Exchange's website”).
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CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR

There is a clear division on the roles of chairman of the Board (the
"Chairman”) and Managing Director which are performed by different
individuals. This ensures a balanced distribution of power and authority.

Mr. Wang Tianbing, the Chairman, provides leadership to the
Board and is responsible for the formation of the Group's strafegies,
overall policy making, and direction of its business development. He
is responsible for leadership and effective running of the Board and
ensuring that all significant and key issues are discussed and where
required, resolved by the Board in a timely manner. The Chairman fokes
primary responsibility for ensuring good corporate governance pracfices
and procedures are established and ensures that appropriate sfeps
are faken to provide effective communication with shareholder(s) of the

Company ("Shareholder(s)’).

Mr. Fung Chiu Chak, Victor, the Vice Chairman and Managing
Director, is responsible for business development, strategic planning
as well as general and project management of the Group. He is
responsible for implementing the Group's strategy 1o achieve business
objectives with the assistance of other Executive Directors and Senior
Management.

Changes in information of members of the Board and Board Committees
during the year ended 31 March 2014 and up fo the date of this
Annual Report are sef out below:-

- Mr. Wong Kay resigned as an Executive Director with effect from
| May 2013,

- Mr. David Chien resigned as an Executive Director with effect
from 13 January 2014.

- Mr. Francis Cheung resigned as a member of the Remuneration
Committee with effect from 21 March 2014.

- Mr. Fung Chiu Chak, Victor was appointed as a member of the
Remuneration Commitiee with effect from 21 March 2014.

- Mr. Francis Cheung resigned as Chairman, an Executive Director
and Chairman of Nomination Committee with effect from 1 April

2014.

- Mr. Harvey Jackel Cheung resigned as an Executive Director with

effect from 1 April 2014.
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(D)

- Mr. Wang Tianbing was appointed as Chairman, a Non-
executive Director and Chairman of the Nomination Committee
with effect from 1 April 2014.

- Each of Mr. Stuart Morrison Granf, Mr. Yang Han Hsiang, Mr.
Justin Wai and Mr. law Yiu Faf Richard was appoinfed as a
Non-executive Director with effect from 1 April 2014.

- Miss Jennifier Kwok has fendered her resignation as an Executive
Director with effect from 1 July 2014.

- Mr. Wang Tianbing has been appointed as a member of the
Remuneration Committee with effect from 1 July 2014.

BOARD PROCEEDINGS

The Board meets af least four times a year af approximately quarterly
intervals and additional meetings will be held as and when required.
During the financial year ended 31 March 2014, the Board held
10 meetings (save for the executive Board meetings held between
the Executive Direcfors during the normal course of business of the
Company). Attendance by a Direcfor at a meeting by means of a
conference telephone or other communications equipment is allowed
under the bye-laws of the Company ("Bye-laws").

The company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secrefary”)
assists the Chairman in establishing the meeting agenda and each
Director may request inclusion of items in the agenda. A notice of
at least 14 days is given to all Directors for regular Board meetings.
Relevant information is circulated to all Directors normally three days in
advance of the regular Board meetings to enable the Board fo make
informed (decisions and perform their duties and responsibilifies).

With the assistance of the Company Secretary, the Chairman
ensures that all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at
Board meetings, and that they receive in a timely manner, adequate
information which are accurate, clear, complete and reliable to assist
them to make informed decisions and discharge their duties as Directors.
The Board members have separate and independent access to the
Senior Management whenever necessary. Upon reasonable request, the
Directors and Board committees will also have access to independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company's
expense. The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover for
Board members and Senior Management, and the Company reviews
the coverage on an annual basis or as appropriate.
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Meeting minutes of the Board and Board committees are recorded
in appropriate defails and draft minutes are circulated fo respective
members for comments before being approved by the Board and Board
committees. All minutes are kept by the Company Secrefary, or the
secretary of the Board committees, as the case may be, and are open
for inspection by the Direcfors.

According fo the Bye-laws and the Listing Rules, any material fransaction
that involves a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder(s) or a
Director(s) will be considered and dealt with by the Board af a duly
convened Board meeting. The inferested Director(s] shall abstain from
vofing and shall not be counted in the quorum at meefings for approving
fransactions in which such Director(s) or any of his/their associates has/
have a material inferest.

The Company provides Board members with monthly management
reports which confain changes and developments of the Group's
business and helps Board members to make informed decisions and
discharge their duties and responsibilities as Board members.
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EERMENDBEFEABRCIESR The attendance of each Board member for the board meefings and the
SRLERARGZHEENT - general meetings held during the year under review is as follows:-
R S

) BERE HRIAE
ot HIFE =R HFE=E
HEE Annual Special
Board General General
Meeting Meeting Meeting
Attendance  Attendance  Attendance

HITEE Executive Directors
REZESLEL Mr. Francis Cheung®! 9/10 1/1 1/1
Vbl it Mr. Fung Chiu Chak, Victor
(BlEEFREFHLE) [Vice Chairman & Managing Director) 10/10 1/1 1/1
$RIKE) Mr. David Chien? 5/7 0/1 0/1
BEE/ A Miss Jennifer Kwok! 10/10 1/1 1/1
HEELLE Mr. Chiu Chin Hung /10 1/1 1/1
=RLAED Mr. Wong Kay!" 0/0 @EAN/A  TEA N/A
2Rt E Mr. Lau Kin Fai 10/10 1/1 1/1
FAEEEL Mr. Harvey Jackel Cheung® 10/10 1/1 1/1
BUHHTEE Independent Non-executive Directors
SBiEELE Mr. Fan Chor Ho 9/10 1/1 1/1
HXMW L Mr. Tse Man Bun 10/10 1/1 1/1
BETRRLAE Mr. lung Chee Ming, George 9/10 1/1 1/1
FE KT Mr. Li Kit Chee 10/10 1/1 1/1
BizE: (1) BEFBE-_Z—=FRA—A Notes: (1] Resignation effective on 1 May 2013
K3
2 BER=F-RE-AT=H (2] Resignation effeciive on 13 January 2014
REAERR
3 BEE-_FT—NFEHA—HE (3)  Resignation effective on 1 April 2014
K3
(4) ig BE-T-MELA—RAE (4] Resignation effective on 1 July 2014
%
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DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

All Board members are encouraged fo attend training courses relevant
on changes and developments to the Group's business and to the
legislative and regulatory environments in which the Group operates at
the Company's expenses.

During the year under review, Board members have participated in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills as listed company directors, and provided
the Company with their records of the fraining received for the year
which comprised attending seminars and talks, and reading legal and
regulatory updates and other reference materials. A summary of the
records of their fraining is as follows:-

HFEE G
BRI
BNeE
BIEARE T U=Vt
RERBI Attending trainings/
Reading briefings/seminars/
Regulatory conference relevant
] Name of Directors Updates to Directors duties
HITEE Executive Direcfors
RIS Mr. Francis Cheung® v v
BT E Mr. Fung Chiu Chak, Victor
(BILEHREFELE) (Vice Chairman & Managing Director) v v
KB Mr. David Chien? TERA N/A TER N/A
PBHE/|ME Miss Jennifer Kwok® v/ v
HRBLEE Mr. Chiu Chin Hung v v
=ELAED Mr. Wong Kay!" TNEA N/A NER N/A
Eled Mr. Lau Kin Fai v v
RAEZESLLED Mr. Harvey Jackel Cheung® v v
BUIHTEE Independent Non-executive Directors
Deliicp e Mr. Fan Chor Ho v v
XM S Mr. Tse Man Bun v v
EFHARE Mr. lung Chee Ming, George v v
TS Mr. Li Kit Chee v v

FE I 2013/2014

21



[ )
:H' TYSAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

22

£ X% M % CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BiEE - (1)

(F)

BEE-T-=FhA-RREXN
2) BHEE-Z-MFE-AT=AREN
(8)  BHIE-_T-MEFMA-HEEXN
(4) BEE-T-HFtA—-BEENR

EEoRE EERER

ARRREEZRERERFTALN
RERZENAEARZER - MY
TEFRE AR BBUFNTE
FHRNELZESHERETRNER
RAEABARERERESNABES
RERNEETRESZRER  KER
ARREHREBREAESTNRRASE
EHREEES - RIBESIZAA - 28M
ARERGRERMAIER I ESY
AEHBZERRARRZ T—REEER
ARG LRIPRER - BE-_T—MF
ZA=t—BLHHFE  ARFRZE
SEFREARTR - EA T RBERI -

RESREAAET  REERREFA
et = —EFARERE KD
e PR AR TEAEFAL
EHBREBRINFTAETRREICE
FAHBAN - HRNAE ZEBERRINT
BRUBENTEGHEAZEIERR X
BEEEIEMNEFEEERE/AKE
REBZREBCRE  BAKEEN
ARRBI NPT RARERE - Bt -
EERRRERREFALERBAR
BRI -

FMTES BT ES L EIRE
EEMEE HERQAERRARR
E o RERBFAS EWERENIER
BE-HH EZRAR FHTE
SEREDHTEFHRRETENR
o

BRT-ERFRBAFAG LERNE
BEANES(TRELE  Bl@EL
4 + Stuart Morrison Grant 984 ~ #5585
T BIEHE A - BREITAERHIX
WwEE ) RERFBHENEB &
B RRBFASNAS 2 BRED

ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014

(F)

Notes: (1) Resignation effective on 1 May 2013

(2] Resignation effective on 13 January 2014
(3] Resignation effective on 1 April 2014

[4)  Resignation effective on 1 July 2014

APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

The Company has a formal, considered and transparent procedure
for the appointment and removal of Directors. The Nomination
Committee led by a Nonexecutive Director and comprising a majority
of Independent Non-executive Directors, plays an important role fo
identify and nominate suitable candidates for the Board's consideration
as additional Directors or to fill in casual vacancies on the Board and
making recommendations fo the shareholders for nomination of Directors
for re-election at general meetings. According to the Byelaws, all
Directors newly appointed fo fill a casual vacancy are subject to election
at the next following general meeting following their appointment.
During the financial year ended 31 March 2014, the Company has
complied with the CG Code save for the following deviations.

According to the Byelaws, one+hird of the Directors shall refire from
office by rofation af each annual general meeting, provided that
notwithstanding anything therein, the Chairman or the Managing
Director shall not be subject to retirement by rofation or be taken info
account in defermining the number of Directors fo refire. As confinuity is
a key factor to the successful long term implementation of business plans,
the Board believes that the roles of the Chairman and the Managing
Direcfor provide the Group with strong and consistent leadership and
allow effective planning and execution of longterm business strategies.
As such, the Board is of the view that the Chairman and the Managing
Director should not be subject fo refirement by rotafion.

Non-execufive Direcfors and Independent Non-executive Directors are
not appointed for a specific ferm but are subject fo refirement by rofation
and re-election at the annual general meefing in accordance with the
Byelaws. As such, the Board is of the view that Non-executive Direcfors
and Independent Non-executive Directors do not have fo be appointed
for a specific term.

The names and biographical details of the Directors, Mr. Wang
Tianbing, Mr. lau Kin Fai, Mr. Stuart Morrison Grant, Mr. Yang Han
Hsiang, Mr. Justin Wai, Mr. law Yiu Fat Richard and Mr. Tse Man Bun
who will offer themselves for election or re-election at the next annual
general meefing are included in the circular to Shareholders containing
the nofice of the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS

The Board members acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements for the financial year ended 31 March 2014.

Every Director is required to know his/her responsibilities as a Director
and of the conduct, business activities and development of the Group,
and should act in good faith, exercise due diligence and act in the
best inferests of the Group and its shareholders. On appointment, new
Directors will receive a comprehensive, formal induction on the Group's
business and his/her responsibilities as a Director.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules
("Model Code”) as the code of conduct regarding directors” securifies
fransactions. Having made specific enquiry, all the Direcfors have
confirmed that they have fully complied with the required standard set
out in the Model Code and its code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities fransactions for the year under review.

The Board would review regularly the confribution required from a
Director to perform his/her responsibilities to the Company, and
whether he/she is spending sufficient time performing them.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established its Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was first established in 1999. lts
were revised with reference to the CG Code effective on

terms of reference
1 Apil 2012
and they have been posted on the Company's website and the Stock
Exchange's website.

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing and supervising the
financial reporting process and internal control system of the Group,
reviewing the Group's financial information, compliance and providing

advice and comments to the Board.

The Audit Committee led by its Chairman, Mr. Fan Chor Ho who is an
Independent Non-executive Director, comprises three other members,
namely Mr. Tse Man Bun, Mr. lung Chee Ming, George and Mr. li
Kit Chee, who are Independent Non-executive Directors. Each member
of the Audit Committee possesses in-depth experience in his own
profession. Mr. Fan Chor Ho, Mr. Tse Man Bun and Mr. Li Kit Chee
possess appropriate accounting or relevant financial management
expertise and meet the requirements of Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules.

The Company Secretary is the secrefary of the Audit Commitiee.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2014, the Audit Committee
held two meetings. The attendance of each commitiee member is as
follows:-

Independent Non-executive Directors Attendance
Mr. Fan Chor Ho

(Chairman of the Audlit Committee) 2/2
M:r. Tse Man Bun 2/2
Mr. Lung Chee Ming, Ceorge 2/2
Mr. Li Kit Chee 2/2
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During the year, the Audit Commitiee has reviewed the Group's interim
results for the six months ended 30 September 2013, final results for the
financial year ended 31 March 2014, and reviewed and discussed
with the external auditors over the financial reporting of the Group.
The Audit Committee reviewed with the management the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and discussed with
the management in relation fo audifing, system of infernal control, and
financial reporting matters. The Audit Commitiee has also reviewed the
connected fransaction(s)/related party fransaction(s), if any, entered info
by the Group during the year, made recommendation fo the Board on
the reappointment of the external auditors and reviewed and approved
the remuneration of the external audifors.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established in 2005. lts terms of
reference were revised with reference to the CG Code effective on 1
April 2012 and they have been posted on the Company's website and
the Stock Exchange's website.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making recommendations
fo the Board on the Company's remuneration policy and structure for
all Directors and members of the Senior Management. It is the Group's
policy fo provide remuneration packages at fair market value in order
fo affract and refain high quality staff. No Directors or any of his/her
associates, is involved in defermining his/her own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee led by its Chairman, Mr. Tse Man Bun
who is an Independent Non-executive Director, comprises three other
members, namely, Mr. Fung Chiu Chak, Victor who is an Executive
Director and also Vice Chairman and Managing Director, and Mr.
Fan Chor Ho and Mr. Li Kit Chee who are Independent Non-execufive
Directors. The composition of the Remuneration Committee complies
with the requirements of chairmanship and independence under the
listing Rules. Mr. Francis Cheung resigned and Mr. Fung Chiu Chak,
Victor was appointed as a member of the Remuneration Committee with
effect from 21 March 2014. Further, Mr. Wang Tianbing has been
appointed as a member of the Remuneration Committee with effect from

1 July 2014.

FE I 2013/2014

25



[ )
:H' TYSAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

£ X% M % CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

REE-Z-—NE=A=1+—HIEIK During the financial year ended 31 March 2014, the Remuneration
FE - FHEESSRBIMAGE M Committee held two meetings and the attendance of each commitiee
ZEEBEAMEB ZHERNT member is as follows:-

Attendance
EF Directors
HXMW L Mr. Tse Man Bun 2/2
BUINTEF Independlent Non-executive Directors
REEFERAN Mr. Francis Cheung'" 1/1
R Mr. Fung Chiu Chak, Victor? 1/1
SeEE L Mr. Fan Chor Ho 2/2
FREE Mr. Li Kit Chee 2/2
Mz (1) BEBZZT-HEF=A=+— Nofes: (1] Resignation effective on 21 March 2014

REER
2) ZEE-E-ONF=A-+— (2] Appointment effective on 21 March 2014
AEER

FR - FHEEEEHNTES S During the year, the Remuneration Committee has made
BRAERFRTER(ER) 25 M recommendation to the Board on the remuneration packages and
REBIEAELZE  UWHESRE discretionary bonuses of the Executive Directors, Senior Management
B BARFHEeRENHE  RINSE and the Non-executive Directors (where applicable) for the Board's
MEERSEA  mEn) REE(R consideration. Such packages include benefits in kind, pension rights
BRI S R R RN 2 [or its equivalent, where appropriate] and compensation payments,
BORBERME)) ° including any compensation payable for loss or termination of their

office or appointment, as the case may be.

BECEXERTAGENEBISE & Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, defails of the annual
REBBENERNEE_T—NF=H remuneration of the members of the Senior Management by band for
=+ —BIEFENFEHFHN FEER the year ended 31 March 2014 is as follows: -
o
BEAH
Number of
employees
1,500,001 #7TZ 3,000,000% 7T HK$ 1,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2
3,000,001 &TE4,500,000% T HK$3,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 ]
3
REENHE_T—MNF=A=+—H Details of the remuneration of each Director for the year ended 31
IFFENHMEFBIHN AR RN BRE March 2014 are set out in note 8 to the financial statements of the
BFE8 Company.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 28 March 2012.
the CG Code
April 2012 and they have been posted on the

lts terms of reference were adopted with reference to
effective on 1
Company's website and the Stock Exchange's website. During the
year and up fo the date of this Annual Report, the appointment was as
follows:-

- Mr. Fung Chiu Chak, Victor, Vice Chairman and Managing
Director, was appointed as a member of the Remuneration
Commitiee with effect from 21 March 2014

- Mr. Wang Tianbing was appointed as Chairman, a Non-
executive Director and Chairman of the Nomination Committee
with effect from 1 April 2014. He has also been oppoinfed as

a member of the Remuneration Commitiee with effect from 1 July

2014.

- FEach of Mr. Stuart Morrison Grant, Mr. Yang Han Hsiang, Mr.
Justin Wai and Mr. Llaw Yiu Fat Richard was appointed as a
Non-executive Director with effect from 1 April 2014

The Nomination Committee is responsible for, among other things,
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board at least
annually and make recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company's corporate strategy, identifying
individuals suitably qualified to become members of the Board,
assessing the independence of Independent Non-executive Directors
and making recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
re-appointment of Board members as well as succession planning for

Directors to the Board.
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The Nomination Commitiee led by its Chairman, Mr. Wang Tianbing
who is a Non-executive Direcfor and also the Chairman, comprises
four other members, namely, Mr. Fan Chor Ho, Mr. Tse Man Bun, Mr.
lung Chee Ming, George, and Mr. li Kit Chee who are Independent
Non-executive Directors. Mr. Francis Cheung resigned and Mr. Wang
Tianbing was appointed as the Chairman of the Nomination Commitiee

with effect from 1 April 2014,

Attendance

Directors
Mr. Francis Cheung

(Chairman of the Nomination Committee) 2/2
Independent Non-executive Direciors
M:r. Fan Chor Ho 2/2
Mr. Tse Man Bun 2/2
Mr. Lung Chee Ming, George 2/2
M. Li Kit Chee 2/2

During the year, the Nomination Committee has conducted an annual
review of the independence of all Independent Non-executive Directors
and confirmed that all the Independent Non-executive Directors satisfied
the independence criteria as sef out in the listing Rules, reviewed
the proposed re-appoiniment of Directors and an Independent Non-
executive Director, and the appointment of Non-executive Directors, and
the Board diversity policy.

In order to achieve a diversity of perspectives among Board members,
it is the policy of the Company fo consider a number of factors when
deciding on appointmenfs to the Board and the continuation of
those appointments. The Board considers gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge, and length of service, in addition to factors based on ifs
business models and specific needs from time fo time.
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EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The responsibilities of the external auditors with respect to the financial
statements of the Company are set out in the “Independent Auditors’
Report” on pages 46 and 47.

Details of the fees paid/payable o the Company’s auditors, Ernst &
Young, during the year ended 31 March 2014 are as follows:-

TET
HK$000
Auditing services 2,978
Non-auditing services

Taxation services 204
Others 856
4,038

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secrefary supports the Board by ensuring good
information flow within the Board and the Board policy and procedures
are followed. The Company Secrefary is primarily responsible for
advising the Board through the Chairman on governance matters and
facilitating induction and professional development of Directors. The
Board will approve the selection and appointment and dismissal of the
Company Secretary who reports fo the Chairman and/or the Direcfors.
All Direcfors have access fo the advice and services of the Company
Secretary fo ensure that the Board procedures, and all applicable
law, rules and regulations are followed. The Company Secrefary,
Miss Wong Suk Han Kitty who is an employee of the Group, has duly
complied with the relevant fraining requirement under the listing Rules for

the financial year ended 31 March 2014.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility to ensure that the Group
maintains sound and effective controls o safeguard its assets and the
Shareholders” investments. The Audit Committee conducted annual
review of the effectiveness of the infernal control system of the Group
covering the financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management funcfions. During the annual review, the Audit Committee
has considered the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, fraining programmes and budgets of the Group's
accounting and financial reporting function. Based on the assessment
made by the senior management of the Group, the Audit Committee
considered that the Group's infernal control systems are effective and
adequate for ifs present requirements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board esfablished the “Corporate Governance Policy” on 28
March 2012. The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions sef out in the terms of reference below:-

(1] 1o develop and review the Company's policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;

(2)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and Senior Management;

(3] fo review and monitor the Company's policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(4] to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any] applicable to Directors and
employees of the Group; and

(5] to review the Company's compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code set out in compliance with the Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report fo be issued by
the Company.
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(M) COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company mainfains a high level of transparency in communicating

with Shareholders. In order to mainfain an on-going dialogue with

Shareholders and institufional investors of the Company, the Company
established a Shareholders” Communication Policy on 28 March 2012
and will review it on a regular basis to ensure effective and timely

dissemination of information to Shareholders and encourage their

participation at general meetfings of the Company. The Shareholders’

Communication Policy is set out below:-

(1)

2)

(3

(4)

(5

Shareholders may refer to information disclosed publicly or
send their enquiries to the Company's registered office or its
principal place of business for the time being, for the attention
of the Company Secrefary. For enquiries on their shareholdings,
Shareholders should direct their questions about their
shareholdings to the Company's Hong Kong Branch Registrar,
Tricor Tengis Limited.

Shareholders may access the Company's information from its
annual reporfs, inferim reporfs, announcements, circulars and
nofices of meetfings. These information and documents are
available on the Company's website and published on the Stock
Exchange's website. The annual reports, inferim reports, circulars,
and nofices of general meetings (where appropriate, with proxy
form| of the Company are also despatched fo Shareholders.

Shareholders are encouraged to attend the annual general
meeting and general meetings of the Company. Shareholders
may also express their views, discuss the progress of the
Company and understand the operations of the Company through
the annual general meeting of the Company.

The Company will review this Policy regularly to ensure ifs
effectiveness.

Enquiries and questions on the procedures for convening or
putting forward proposals may be put to the Board by contacting
either the Company Secrefary through the Company's general
line at (852) 2882 3632, email at info@fysan.com, directly
by questions at an annual general meefing or special general
meeting of the Company or by post to the Company's registered
office or its principal place of business for the time being.
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The Company has ensured that each substantially separate issue will be
dealt with af general meefings by way of a separate resolution.

Shareholders are informed of the procedure and their rights fo demand
a poll. The Company will ensure compliance with the requirements
about voting by poll contained in the listing Rules and the Bye-laws.
The procedures for voting by poll are set out in the Company's circular
relating fo the general meeting and will be explained during the meefing
before voting on the resolutions.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Since the Shareholders may convene a special general meeting and
make any proposals such as propose a person other than an existing
Director for election as a Director at such meeting, the detailed
procedures of convening a special general meeting and making any
proposals are set out in a document entitled “Shareholders' rights to put
forward a proposal at a general meeting” which has been published in
the Company's website and sef out below:-

(1) According fo Byelaw 58 of the Byelaws, a Shareholder holding
not less than onetenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting af general meetings of the Company
shall af all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board
or the Company Secretary, fo require a special general meeting
("SGM”) to be called by the Board for the transaction or any
business specified in such requisition.

(2)  The written request must state the objects of the meeting, signed
by the Shareholders concerned and may consist of several
documents in like form, each signed by one or more of those
requisifionists "Requisitionists”).

(3] The request by the Requisitionists will be verified with the
Company's Share Registrars and upon their confirmation that the
request by the Requisitionists is proper and in order, the Company
Secretary will request the Board to convene an SGM by serving
sufficient notice in accordance with the statutory requirements and
in compliance with the listing Rules on the Stock Exchange fo all
the registered Shareholders. On the contrary, if the request by the
Requisitionists has been verified as not in order, the Requisitionists
will be advised of this outcome and accordingly, an SGM will
not be convened as requested.
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(4)

(5

(6]

(7)

IF within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails fo
proceed fo convene such meeting, the requisitionists themselves
may convene the meefing themselves in accordance with Section

74(3) of the Companies Act 1981

from time to time.

of Bermuda, as amended

If o Shareholder wishes to put forward proposals at an SGM
that effect
at the principal place of business or the office of the Company's

("Proposals’), he/she can deposit a writen nofice fo

branch share regisirar, for the attention of the Company Secretary.
The request by the Requisitionists will be verified as stated above.

The notice period to be given fo all the registered Shareholders
for consideration of a proposal raised by the Shareholders
concerned at an SGM varies according fo the nature of the
proposal as follows:-

> the longer of 14 clear days' and 10 business days’ notice
in writing if the proposal constitutes an ordinary resolution
of the Company; and

o 21 clear days' nofice in writing if the proposal constitutes a
special resolution of the Company.

Whether a proposal will be put to a general meeting will be
decided by the Board in its discrefion, unless the proposal put
forward by a Shareholder is (i} pursuant fo a requisition by a
Shareholder to convene an SGM or {ii] forms part of ordinary
business fo be considered at an annual general meetfing as
described in Byedaw 61(1] of the Bye-laws.

Enquiries may be put to the Board by contacting either the
Company Secretary through our general line at (852) 2882
3632, email at info@tysan.com, directly by questions at an
annual general meeting or SGM or by post fo the registered
office of the Company or head office and the principal place of

business of the Company.

(O) INVESTOR RELATIONS

A copy of the constitutional documents of the Company has been

published af the Company's website and the Stock Exchange's website.

During the year, there was no change to the Company’s consfitufional

documents.
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ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014

The directors of the Company ["Director(s)’) herein present their report and the

audited financial statements of the Company and of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 17 to the financial

statements.

There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group's principal
activities during the year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 March 2014 and the sfate of affairs
of the Company and of the Group af that date are set out in the financial
stafements on pages 48 to 175.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK10.0 cents
per ordinary share of the Company in respect of the year fo shareholders on
the register of members of the Company on 22 August 2014.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following table summarises the consolidated results, assets, liabilities
and non-controlling interests of the Group for the five years ended 31 March
2014, as extracted from the published audited financial statements. The
summary does not form part of the audited financial stafements.
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MBERE(E) SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Cont'd)
“F-mF ZF-=F  ZFZF ZF-F  ZTE%R
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

TET TET TET TET TET
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000

RARERBRBRESEEN  Profit atiibutable to ordinary
equity holders of the Company 270,020 348,479 97,953 373,854 272,216

BEE Total assefs 5,276,784 5073547 4,130,523 4,131,563 4,835,854

#af Total liabilities 2,565,507 2,703,578 2,093,376 2,201,044 2,550,147

ARARERRIREEGES  Equily atiibutable o ordinary
equity holders of the Company 2,481,970 2,338,559 2,015,936 1,900,322 1,474,833

SEPEIRAR R Non-controlling inferesfs 229,307 31,410 21,211 30,197 810,874

5,276,784 5073547 4,130,523 4,131,563 4,835,854

ESR S Y PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

AEBEzME BBERBRENAFENZE  Defails of movements in the Group's property, plant and equipment during the
B BENIBRERMT 14 year are set out in note 14 fo the financial statements.

REM= INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

AEEZRENERTEFERNZEHFHBE  Details of movements in the Group's investment properties during the year are

REITEREMT 5 - REBZREMENRR  setoutin note 15 to the financial statements. Further particulars of the Group's

ERRZE-THEHENFRE 177 E - investment properties af the end of the reporting period are sef out on page
177 of the annual report.

BRRPYE PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

AEEZBERTMEFBHEANRTBEREMET  Details of the Group's properties under development are set out in note 16 to
16 RFWE/7H ° the financial stafements and on page 177 of the annual report.
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PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

Defails of the Group's properties held for sale are set out in note 22 to the
financial statements and on page 176 of the annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the Company's share capital and share options
during the year are set out in notes 33 and 34 to the financial stafements,
respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s bye-laws
or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company fo offer new shares
on a pro rafa basis to existing shareholders of the Company.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED SECURITIES OF
THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold
any of the Company's listed securities during the year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of the Group
during the year are set ouf in nofe 35 fo the financial statements and in the
consolidated sfatement of changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At the end of the reporting period, the Company's reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Bermuda Companies Act
1981, amounted to HK$222,231,000, of which HK$87,467,000 has
been proposed as a final dividend for the year. In addition, the Company's
share premium account, in the amount of HK$563,861,000, may be
distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales fo the Group's five largest cusfomers accounted
for 37% of the total sales for the year and sales 1o the largest customer
included therein amounted to 10%. Purchases from the Group's five largest
suppliers accounted for 32% of the fofal purchases for the year.

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any shareholders [which,
fo the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company's
issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group's five largest
cusfomers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors for the year ended 31 March 2014 and up fo the date of this
report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Francis Cheung (resigned with effect from 1 April 2014)
Mr. Fung Chiu Chak, Victor
Mr. David Chien

Miss Jennifer Kwok

Mr. Chiu Chin Hung

Mr. Wong Kay

Mr. Lau Kin Fai

Mr. Harvey Jackel Cheung

(resigned with effect from 13 January 2014)

(resigned with effect from 1 May 2013)
(resigned with effect from 1 April 2014

Non-executive directors:
Their appointment became effective on 1 April 2014

Mr. Wang Tianbing

Mr. Stuart Morrison Grant
Mr. Yang Han Hsiang
Mr. Justin Wai

Mr. Law Yiu Fat Richard

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. Fan Chor Ho, Paul

Mr. Tse Man Bun

Mr. lung Chee Ming, George

Mr. Li Kit Chee

Miss Jennifer Kwok has tendered her resignation as an executive director of
the Company with effect from 1 July 2014.
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DIRECTORS (Cont'd)

In accordance with the Company's Bye-laws, Mr. Wang Tianbing, Mr. Stuart
Morrison Grant, Mr. Yang Han Hsiang, Mr. Justin Wai, Mr. Law Yiu Fat
Richard, Mr. lau Kin Fai and Mr. Tse Man Bun will refire and being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meefing.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from Mr.
Fan Chor Ho, Mr. Tse Man Bun, Mr. lung Chee Ming, George and Mr. Li Kit
Chee and as at the date of this report still considers them fo be independent.

DIRECTORS" AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the Group
are sef out on pages 10 to 14 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meefing has a service confract with the Company which is not determinable
by the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than
stafutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract
of significance to the business of the Company and ifs subsidiaries to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year.
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DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND LONG
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At the end of the reporting period, the inferests and long positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the share capital and
underlying shares of the Company or its associated corporations [within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)),
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant fo
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise nofified to the Company and The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant fo
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers [the
"Model Code”), were as follows:

()  Long positions in Shares:

(SN

ERTRA

Aot

BERARELINE Percentage of

Number of Shares held and nature of inferest the Company’s

fBA 1 Htt @3t issued share

£ Name of director Personal Corporate Other Tofal capital

REZERLED Mr. Harvey Jockel Cheung " 878,000 - - 878,000 0.10
BisE Nofe:

1. REELABREHNTEZE B-F
—ENA—HRER -

1. Mr. Harvey Jackel Cheung resigned as an Executive Director with effect
from 1 April 2014,
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DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND LONG
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (Cont'd)

[i) Long positions in shares of associated corporation(s) of the

Company:
1
ERTRA
BRECBRRERERME BAL

Number of ordinary Percentage of

shares held and the associated

nature of interest corporafion’s

s ¥ EERE {EN AT @t issued

Name of director Name of associated corporations Personal Corporate Total  share capital

BEELE RATRBRBERAA 800 - 800 8

M. Fung Chiu Chak, Vicior - Tysan Engineering Company Limited

RANE(EE) BB - 401 40 40
Tysan Foundation {Hong Kong)
limited

BaE Note:

1. REREWE(FEB)ARAITINRG 1. These shares of Tysan Foundation [Hong Kong] limited were held by
HEMELE2 B EE Y ATIEEE Fortunate Pool limited, a company which was wholly owned by Mr.
BAGIEE ° Fung Chiu Chak, Victor.

BrEXxFraEIN  RZZE—WFE=H=4+—  In oddition fo the above, as at 31 March 2014, a Director has non-beneficial
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PR o

REXHBEEI R_FT-—NF=A
=t—H ARFERESFLTIRITHRABM
BN A S EATTEREE 2 Bt - 10E
BhdEsTREREESRBEGIF
3521FZARCE - IRBRETAANGAL
Al BB P2 R KR

EENFRITRAERBEROHES 2
FER

R EXTEEREBITHABRBE) MR
s R f R | BN X BB Rt 8l | — &0 AT
REEIN RAFEAEARE  SHERT
THEFAREFE A ZEBIARRF TR
FETBRABRERBBEARABMRKES 2
TRMER RS HER - S IREITREL
WZEREN - ADEHEEMME L AHE
IR REESARETAEME
NEIRE 2 %S HER

ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014

personal equity interests in certain subsidiaries held for the benefit of the
Company solely for the purpose of complying with the minimum company
membership requirements.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2014, none of the Directors or
chief executive of the Company had registered an inferest or short position
in the Shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of ifs
associated corporations that was required fo be recorded pursuant fo Section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant o the Model Code.

DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Apart from as disclosed under the heading “Directors’ and Chief Executive's
Interests and long Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares” above and
in the section “Share Option Schemes” below, af no time during the year
were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in or
debentures of the Company granted to any Director or their respective spouses
or minor children or the chief executive or were any such rights exercised
by them; or was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party fo any
arrangement fo enable the Direcfors fo acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.



BREE

RARRBRETE MAREEKINE
BENEBCAERLHERBEHRE
Re-MNZE——FNANA  RARIRH—
EFERETE( =2 — 58] MR
ZETFN\AZTN\BEHZFE(=ZF
ZoFREDRABRLE - BH-_ZT=

HEIR R CEHECE— S RBRERY
BHRRMFEIL -

TREBENEATEZBRE(RE-TT
—EHBR) 22

[ ]
R B R AR A

% 3 )9 3 % REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company operates share option schemes for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards fo eligible participants who contribute fo the success
of the Group's operations. On 8 August 2012, the Company adopted a new
share option scheme (the “2012 Scheme’] and the scheme adopted on 28
August 2002 [the “2002 Scheme") was terminated on the same day. Further
defails of the 2002 Scheme and the 2012 Scheme are disclosed in nofe 34
fo the financial statements.

The following fable discloses movements of share options (granted under the
2002 Scheme) outstanding during the year:

BREHR
Number of share options
R
= Rz
i =A Bl i@
S8 “B-=F ERRH CaAThNd EREE FREN =+-H RHA BhREL Exercise
HEARER A-B Granted ~ Exercised Expired Lapsed At Date of TR price
Nome or cafegory At 1 April during during during during 31 March grantof  Exercise period of share
of parficipant 2013 the year the year the year the year 2014 share options  of share options opfions**
ghET
HK$ per share
g3
Director
ey 2,000,000 - {2,000,000) - - S S 2 1.46
Mr. Lau Kin Fai AATERY AATERE
1792010 —E-=%
NATRE*
1792010
fo 16:9-2013*
2,000,000 - {2,000,000) - - -
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Cont'd)

Notes fo the table of share options outstanding during the year:

* The grantee is allowed to exercise up to 33.33% of share options granted

from the date of grant up fo and including 16 September 2011. Thereafter,
the percentage of the share options which may be exercised by the grantee
is increased fo 66.67% for the period from 17 September 2011 up fo and
including 16 September 2012, and further to 100% for the period from 17
September 2012 up fo and including 16 September 2013.

**  The exercise price of the share opfions is subject to adjustment in the case of

rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company's share capital.

The options offered on 17 September 2010 were accepted by the offeree
concemed on 22 September 2010.

Notwithstanding the adoption of the 2012 Scheme and termination of the
2002 Scheme, the share options granted under the 2002 Scheme remained
outstanding during the period, and remained exercisable pursuant to the rules
of the 2002 Scheme. On 9 September 2013, Mr. Lau Kin Fai exercised
options carrying the right fo subscribe for 2,000,000 shares of the Company
(“Shares"), granted to him under the 2002 Scheme, at an exercise price of
HK$1.46 per Share. As at 31 March 2014
opfion under the 2002 Scheme.

, there was no outstanding share

From 8 August 2012, the date of adoption of the 2012 Scheme, to 31
March 2014, no share option was granfed, exercised, expired or lapsed and
there was no outstanding share option under the 2012 Scheme.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, no rights to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of Shares in or debentures of the Company were
granted fo any Direcior or their respective spouse or minor children, or chief
executives or were any such rights exercised by them, or was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party fo any arrangement to enable the Directors fo
acquire such rights in any other body corporate.
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g Name

Blackstone Group Management L.L.C. 1" Blackstone Group Management LL.C. 11
Blackstone Holdings IV GP L.P. 1l
Blackstone Holdings IV GP
Management [Delaware] LP. !
Blackstone Holdings IV GP
Management LL.C. 1"
Blackstone Holdings IV L.P. 1"
Blackstone Real Estate Associates
AsiaNQ L.P. 11l
Blacksfone Real Estate Pariners
Asia Holding (NQ) L.P. 1
BREP Asia Holdings (NQ) Pre. lid.
BREP AsiaNQ LLC. 11l
Schwarzman Stephen A. 11l
The Blackstone Group L.P. !
Tides Holdings | Lid. 1"
Tides Holdings II Lid. 12

Blackstone Holdings IV GP L.P. 1l

Blackstone Holdings IV GP
Management [Delaware) LP. !

Blackstone Holdings IV GP
Management LL.C. 1"

Blackstone Holdings IV L.P. 1"

Blackstone Real Estate Associates
AsicNQ LP. 11

Blackstone Real Estate Partners
Asia Holding (NQ) L.P. 1

BREP Asia Holdings (NQ) Pre. lid. !

BREP Asia-NQ LL.C. 1"

Schwarzman Stephen A. 11l

The Blackstone Group L.P. 1!

Tides Holdings | Lid. 1"

Tides Holdings II Lid. 2

Bt

(1] ZESHFEBEZFRTides Holdings Il Lid.
ZESIEER BN 754,067,547 B in+
AR -

2) RZZE-—-—NWFEM™A =+ = B(Tides
Holdings Il Lid. (T2HA DFERZEELN 2
BUER) - 2HART57,323,947 ik it th
(HERARAIDBITIRAL 86.58%) R #
A o
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS INTERESTS IN SHARES AND

UNDERLYING SHARES

At the end of the reporting period, the following interests of more than 5%
of the issued share capital of the Company were recorded in the register of
interests required fo be kept by the Company pursuant fo Section 336 of the

SFO:

long positions in Shares:

Notes:

(1) These parties were deemed to have inferests in the 754,067,547 Shares by

BEERE
Number of
Shares

held

754,067,547
754,067,547

754,067,547

754,067,547
754,067,547

754,067,547

754,067,547
754,067,547
754,067,547
754,067,547
754,067,547
754,067,547
754,067,547

virtue of their control over Tides Holdings Il Lid.

[2)  Asat 22 April 2014, the close of the general offer made by Tides Holdings
Il lid. (the "Offeror”), the Offeror was interested in 757,323,947 Shares,

BAERAE
BITRA
Bt
Percentage of
the Company's
issued

share capital

86.21
86.21

86.21

86.21
86.21

86.21

representing approximately 86.58% of the Company's issued capital.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (Cont'd)

Apart from the foregoing, as at 31 March 2014, no person, other than the
Directors and chief executive of the Company, whose interests are set out
in the section headed "Directors’ and Chief Executive's Interests and Long
Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares” above, had registered an interest
or short position in the Shares or underlying shares of the Company that was
required fo be recorded pursuant fo Section 336 of the SFO.

DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO RULE 13.21 OF THE LISTING
RULES

In accordance with the disclosure requirements of Rule 13.21 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (“Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange, the
following disclosures are included in respect of one of the Company's loan
agreement, which contain covenants requiring performance obligations of
the controlling shareholder of the Company. Pursuant fo a facility agreement
enfered info by the Company and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company with a syndicate of banks and financial insfitutions on 8 August
2012 (as supplemented by a lefter agreement dated 17 March 2014,
collectively the “Facility Agreement”) for a five-year ferm loan facility of up to
HK$500,000,000, an event of default arises if The Blackstone Group L.P.,
the ultimate confrolling shareholder of the Company, ceases fo hold (directly or
indirectly) at least 60% of the beneficial shareholding inferest and voting rights
of the Company.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

On 23 December 2013, Tides Holdings Il Lid. (the "Offeror’) announced the
ferms of a voluntary conditional share offer {"Share Offer’] to acquire dll the
issued Shares in the Company. On 22 April 2014, the Offeror was interested
in 757,323,947 Shares, representing 86.58% of the issued capital of the
Company. 117,341,956 Shares, representing approximately 13.42% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at 22 April 2014, were held by
the public. Accordingly, the minimum public float requirement of 25% under
Rule 8.08(1) [a) of the Listing Rules was not safisfied. The Company applied
fo the Stock Exchange for a temporary waiver from strict compliance with Rule
8.08(1) (o) of the Listing Rules for the period from 22 April 2014 to 22 July
2014 (both dafes inclusive). As disclosed in the joint announcement dated
2 April 2014 issued by the Offeror and the Company, the Offeror may take
such steps as are necessary fo restore the public float of the Company so as fo
comply with the applicable requirements of the Listing Rules. In this connection,
the Offeror infends to place down the Shares it acquired from the Share Offer
fo independent third parties through a placing agent or sell the Shares it
acquired from the Share Offer directly to selected independent third parties.

Pursuant to Nofe 1 fo Rule 8.08(1] (b] of the listing Rules, trading in the
Shares has been suspended from 9:00 a.m. on 23 April 2014 af the request
of the Company since the percentage of public float fell below 15% following
the close of the Share Offer. Announcement(s) will be made by the Company
regarding resforation of public float and resumption of frading in the Shares as
soon as possible.

AUDITORS

Emnst & Young refire and a resolution for their reappointment as auditors of the
Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

WANG TIANBING

Chairman

Hong Kong
30 June 2014
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To the shareholders of Tysan Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tysan Holdings
Limited {the “Company”] and ifs subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on
pages 48 fo 175, which comprise the consolidated and company statements
of financial position as af 31 March 2014, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors defermine is necessary fo enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is fo express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
fo any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITY (Cont'd)

An audit involves performing procedures fo obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a frue and fair view in order fo
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the enfity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated

financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriafe to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial stafements give a true and fair view
of the stafe of affairs of the Company and of the Group as af 31 March
2014, and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central

Hong Kong

30 June 2014
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55 4 # 38 & CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

Year ended 31 March 2014 #ZE=F
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REVENUE
Cost of sales
Gross profit

Other income and gains
Selling expenses
Administrative expenses
Changes in fair value of
investment properties
Other expenses, nef
Finance costs
Share of profits of associates
loss on disposal of interests in associates

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Income tax expense
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Ordinary equity holders
of the Company
Non-controlling inferests

EARNINGS PER SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS
OF THE COMPANY
Basic

Diluted

ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014

Hiat —E-NEF —E-=F
Notes 2014 2013
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$ 000
5 3,504,393 3,767,279
(2,859,975) (3,326,250)
644,418 441,029
5 33,161 215,844
(51,926) (27,023
(89,338) 61,092]
15 37,494 30,702
(23,009) (32,296)
6 (23,108) (16,331]
3,301 6,402
18] (11,335) —~
7 519,658 557,235
10 (240,694) (195,131]
278,964 362,104
11 270,020 348,479
8,944 13,625
278,964 362,104

13

HK30.90 cents 4l HK39.93 cents /&1l

HK30.90 cents 71l  HK39.93 cents /&1l

Details of dividends are disclosed in note 12 to the financial statements.
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AEERF
Htt2mEkE (%)

NEBRREN S REREZ
Hit 2 mE
MERINEBEL ZERER

R ERE R RIR ARIRIE S E 5

FRAEMEZERE(FIX) - HRBUE

FREERERE

TFIB AR -
ARV EBIEIR
JEERRR AR 2

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME/(EXPENSES)

R B R AR A

Other comprehensive income to be reclassified

fo profit or loss in subsequent periods:
Exchange difference on franslation
of foreign operations
Release of exchange difference upon
disposal of an associate

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME/(EXPENSES)
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Ordinary equity holders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

“E-MEFE —T—=fF
2014 2013
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
278,964 362,104
(3,102) 27778
(936) -~
(4,038) 27778
274,926 389,882
265,200 375,689
9,726 14,193
274,926 389,882
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NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment

Investment properties

Properies under development

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables
Interests in associates

Other assets

Availablefor-sale investment

Deferred tax assefs

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Properties under development

Investments af fair value through profit or loss
Inventories

Properties held for sale

Amounts due from customers for contract works

Trade receivables
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables

Tax prepaid

Time deposits

Restricted cash

Cash and bank balances

Total current assefs

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade payables and accruals
Other payables, deposits received
and receipts in advance
Derivative financial insfruments
Amounts due to customers for contract works
Deposits received
Interest-bearing bank borrowings
Tax payable

Total current liabilities
NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

Mz
Notes

o v

23

25

27
27
27

28

29
26
23
30

—F-mE —E—=F
2014 2013
FHET FET
HK3$000 HK$'000
395,006 434,372
532,976 487,878
789,290 843,946
7,859 3,909

- 47,860

1,350 1,230
1,250 -
34,572 85,501
1,762,303 1,904,696
382,669 187,880
- 272373

13,609 15164
604,640 720,600
107,127 99,643
777,797 735,062
74,742 50,232
2,749 9238
1,106,219 529,582
3,241 60,207
441,688 488,870
3,514,481 3,168,851
634,075 638,467
37,753 25,608
4,113 -
739,788 528,161
200,567 140,897
252,112 109,786
107,846 289,164
1,976,254 1,732,083
1,538,227 1,436,768
3,300,530 3,341,464
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FUNG CHIU CHAK, VICTOR
EF

Director

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Interestbearing bank borrowings

Derivative financial instruments

Loan from an associate
Deferred tax liabilities

Total non-current liabilities
Net assets

EQUITY

Equity attributable to ordinary equity holders

of the Company
Issued capital
Reserves

Non-controlling inferests

Total equity

FHE
JENNIFER KWOK
EF

Director

R B R AR A

13
Notes

26
18(b)
32

33
35(al

“E-MEFE —T—=fF
2014 2013
FET FET
HK$000 HK$'000
3,300,530 3,341,464
333,954 726,042
- 8,205

— 24,560
255,299 212,688
589,253 Q71,495
2,711,277 2,369,969
87,466 87,266
2,394,504 2,251,293
2,481,970 2,338,559
229,307 31,410
2,711,277 2,369,969
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Year ended 31 March 2014 BEZZT—NF=A=+—RHIFE

#-F-ERA-A
Emi
ERepaEnE
BERNEEEL
LEREE

FRREkEER
HE-FRBAT InER
REFERBGELRS
BT B

CR-CEEERRENZAARE

“R-ERAZAERS
e S

A1 Aorl 2012
Prof for e year

Oher compighensie rcome for e year

Bxchonge dfsrence on nshon
o foreign operafions

Toiol comprehiensive ncome for e yeor
Patioldisposal of et n o sosidary
Dividends paid fo romconfoling neress
Eauisefled share opfon arangemen's

2012finol dvidend decloed ond paid

2013 rerim dhidend paid

At 31 March 2013
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ROTERRRREATIRE

rbutobz fo orcinry equiy holdes of the Company

B BhE Ei R
BET  EEE il L B
he Shore $oe  EEEE  Bdoge  RBEA Nov  #E&
g bsted  penim opfon Sottoy  fucaton~~ Pelined B cooling Tol
Notes apid accourt 18seNe fesenves 1esene profs Toil ineresls equiy
AT fEr TET fér TAr A FEr TET TAn
IO HS00 A0 SO0 A0 HSOM SO0 IO SO
(B 350al)
[nole 33(a]|
87200 360322 712 SO0 2778 116018 20159 A 2087147
- - - - - B4 R4 1305 210
- - - - T - 7N o8 7
- - - - TN M4 5680 14198 369882
Ao - - - - - (613 (613 8] 66
- - - - - - - (878 IR
- - 107 - - - 107 - 107
12 - - - - - %7 34907 - [
12 - - - - - 743 (745 - (1749
87,200 500320 819* 5050% 244783 1440319 2338959 31410 236999
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5 4 BE 35 % B # CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Year ended 31 March 2014 HE=T

Notes

A1 Al 2013
Profitforthe yeor
Oer comprehiensie ncoe/fexpenses

forthe year:

Bichonge dference on fnslfon

of foreign operafons
Relecse of exchange diference
upon disposal ofon associe

Tool compreensive income/fexpenses|

for e year
Pariol disposal o et n a subsicry b
Loon adhonced from o nonconfling nees

of o subsidiry 17, 41(b)
Acquisiion of addifond! ineres in o sbsidoy 40
Beecise of hore opfons 38U

2013 frcl dhidend declored ond peid 12

A 31 Morch 2014

Y ZERBREBEREAMBMAR ZE

FERERRRRATIRE

Afributoble fo ordinery equity holders of e Company

—HEZA=T-ALFE

Bt BRE EX FER

B3 AER ik HERE e
Bx Shore S$oe  EREE  bconge  REEA Non  #E&
lsied  premium opfon Sty fuctuafin ~~ Retained &t confoling Totl
capitl account Teserve Teserves Teserve profi Totol infrests equily
tit  tht B T TE FEL T TEr Tér
HS000  HKSO00 HKSOOD AKSURD HKSODD HKSODD KOO0 AKSO0 ST

(3%l
[note 35(a)

87266 380322 819 5050 244783 1440319 2338559 31410 2369969
- - - - - W00 27000 8944 278984
- - - - (3,884) - [3,884) 78 3,109
- - - - [934) - 936) - (936)
- - - - [£820 270020 265,200 9726 7496
- - - - - 8087 (s 173087 125,000
- - - - - - - 300 32000
- - - - - (%989 2989 (16916 (49,903
20 35%9 619 - - - 2920 - 2920
- - - - - (363 363 - (363
87466 563,861* =5 5050t 239963t 185,630 2481970 29307 2711277

B #1#2,394,504,000% T (=
2,251,293,000#7T) °

ET—=

*

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of

HK$2,394,504,000 (2013: HK$2,251,293,000] in the consolidated

statement of financial position.
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4 Bl 4 i B % CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended 31 March 2014 HEZT—NF=A=+—HIFE

fraF  ZE-DF —T-=F
Nofes 2014 2013
FET THAT
HK$°000 HK$ 000
RELEEB2RERE CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
BRI A A Profit before tax 519,658 557,235
ERTIIRIAELRHE Adjusiments for:
BB Finance costs 6 23,108 16,331
NS i eyl Share of profits of associates (3,301) 16,402)
HEBERRERER Loss on disposal of interests in associates 11,335 —
FBUA Inferest income 5 (23,865) (12,037
FHREZREKA Dividend income from listed investments 5 (156) (158)
HE LM% - s R RE loss on disposal and writeoff of items
BB 2B of property, plant and equipment 7 17,332 16,005
HEREME 2 BT Gain on disposal of investment properties 5 - (478)
HESBAFHEZIRD Gain on disposal of non-current assef
BE BT classified as held for sale 5 — (191,872)
DARS 48 S 1~f 2 B PR T 52 Equityseftled share option expense 7 — 107
e Depreciation 7 75,858 81,411
BAEGABRZREZ Fair value losses/(gains) on investments
~TEEE/(BF) 58 at fair value through profit or loss, net 7 427 (532)
fTEERTI A A FEER Fair value losses on derivative
financial instruments 7 128 1,350
REMELNTEZE Changes in fair value of investment properties 7 (37,494) (30,702)
HihEERE,/ (BeRE) Impairment,/ (write-back of impairment]
of other assets 7 20 (110)
M E ZERTURE Impairment of trade receivables 7 194 5,842
MRFER 25 FE Write-down of inventories to net
realisable value 7 - 458
Hio YRR E Impairment of other receivables 7 1,217 2,000
—RBE AR 2 RRZRME Impairment of an amount due from an associate 7 10 12
584,471 438,460
BRPMERSEHIEE Increase in properties under development
2RI - FEE and properties held for sale, nef (24,178) (23,998
FERD Decrease in inventories 1,555 5,766
BEFEBGHIRE Decrease/ (increase) in amounts due from
ZRFREL /() customers for contract works (7,484) 47,773
e 5 BR 3 AN Increase in trade receivables (43,062)  (310,944]
FENFIE - Al LEMERHKIE  Decrease/|increase) in prepayments,
e b)) deposits and other receivables (28,690 10,344
B E 5 R K e A 508 Increase/|decrease) in trade payables
g,/ i) and accruals (3,318) 150,171
HitbErsoE - EWETE R Increase in other payables, deposits received
TE W R IBE N and receipfs in advance 18,145 5114
REFEBaNIR Increase in amounts due
ZFRIEEN to customers for contract works 211,627 344,062
BlET&%EM, () Increase/[decrease] in deposits received 59,670 (185,816)
REKEXB RS Cash generated from operations 768,736 480,932

ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014
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A Bl 4 W B CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended 31 March 2014 HE=T—

Cash generated from operations

Taxes paid in the People’s Republic of China

(the “PRC"):
Hong Kong
Elsewhere
Taxes refunded in the PRC:
Hong Kong
Elsewhere

Fffect of foreign exchange rate changes, net

Net cash flows from operating acfivifies

i3
Notes

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Inferest received

Dividend income from listed investments

Purchases of items of property,
plant and equipment

Deposits paid for acquisition of items of
property, plant and equipment
Additions to invesiment properties

Additions to other assets

Additions to an availableforsale investment
Deposit received/ [refunded) in respect

of proposed partial disposal of a subsidiary
Decrease/(increase) in investments

at fair value through profit or loss
Proceeds on disposal of ifems of property,

plant and equipment

Proceeds on disposal of non-current asset

classified as held for sale,
net of transaction cost

Proceeds on disposal of invesiment properties

Partial disposal of a subsidiary

Proceeds for acquisifion of additional interest

in a subsidiary, net

Proceeds on disposal of interests in associates
Decrease/(increase) in amounts due

from/loans fo associates

Increase in non-pledged time deposit
with original maturity of more than

three months when acquired
Decrease in restricted cash

Net cash flows from/(used in)
invesfing acfivities

25

29

40
18(e)

ME=RA=1—HILFE

—E-mE —T-=F
2014 2013
FiE FET
HK$000 HK$'000
768,736 480,932
(11,860) (30,798
(323,188) (78,201
11,570 —
— 13,025
4,640 (835)
449,898 384,123
23,865 12,037
156 134
(60,031)  [75,264)
(4,905) (3,909)
(1,780) -
(140) -
(1,250) -
(6,000) 6,000
271,946 (268,535)
10,173 1,351
— 281,166

— 4,571
125,000 68
(66,000) ~
13,400 —
10,255 (382)
(137,485) —
56,966 19,414
234,170 (23,349)
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—WEZA=+-ALFE

iria
Notes
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Interest paid on bank borrowings
New bank borrowings
Repayment of bank borrowings
Issue of new shares 33

Dividends paid o non-controlling shareholders

loan advanced from a noncontrolling shareholder 4 1(b)
Increase in loan from an associate 18(b)
Interim dividend paid

Final dividend paid

Net cash flows from/(used in)
financing acfivities

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Effect of foreign exchange rafe changes, net

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END
OF YEAR

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND

CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances 27
Non-pledged time deposits 27

Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the
consolidated sfatement of financial position
less: Non-pledged time deposit with original
maturity of over three months

27(c]

when acquired

Cash and cash equivalents as stated
in the consolidated statement of cash flows

—F-mF ZF=F
2014 2013
AT TAT
HK$000  HK$'000
(28,077)  (17,507)
9,248 885474
(259,335) (648,513
2,920 -

= (4,875

32,000 -
7,000 -

— (17,453
(43,633) (34,907
(279.877) 162,219
404,191 522,993
1,018,452 484,004
(12,221) 11,395
1,410,422 1,018,452
441,688 488,870
1,106,219 529,582
1,547,907 1,018,452
(137,485) -
1,410,422 1,018,452
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W% IR B #& STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Inferests in subsidiaries

CURRENT ASSETS

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables

Bank balances
Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Amounts due fo subsidiaries
Trade payables and accruals

Other payables and deposits received

Total current liabilities
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES
Net assets

EQUITY
Issued capital
Reserves

Total equity

FHE
JENNIFER KWOK

EF

Director

13
Notes

25

28
29

33
35(b)

31 March 2014 —Z—WF=A=+—H

“E-MEFE —T—=fF

2014 2013
FET FET
HK$°000  HK$'000
1,011,203 1,053,556
3,500 3,039
5,504 257
9,004 3,296
144,932 222,445
1,592 4,515

125 6,109
146,649 233,069
(137,645) 229,773
873,558 823,783
87,466 87,266
786,002 736,517
873,558 823,783
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W% W # W3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2014 —Z—NFE=A=+—H
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2.1

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Tysan Holdings Limited is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda.

The registered office of the Company is located at Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamillon HM 11, Bermuda. The principal place of
business of the Company is located at 20th Floor, One Island South,
No. 2 Heung Yip Road, Wong Chuk Hang, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was involved in the following principal

acfivities:

e foundation piling

*  property development

° property investment and management

*  machinery leasing and trading

*  electical and mechanical ["E&M”) engineering

The holding company of the Company is Tides Holdings Il lid., a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and ultimately
controlled by The Blackstone Group L.P., which is listed on the New
York Stock Exchange.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") [which include
all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards ("HKASs") and Inferprefations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (the “Companies Ordinance”]. They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for
invesiment properties, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
and derivative financial instruments, which have been measured at fair
value. These financial stafements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
("HK$") and all values are rounded tfo the nearest thousand except
when otherwise indicated.
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W% it 7 W 5 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2014 —E—NE=A=+—H

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Cont'd)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and ifs subsidiaries [collectively referred fo as the
"Group’| for the year ended 31 March 2014. The financial statements
of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as
the Company, using consistent accounting policies. The results of
subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control

ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
atiributable to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling inferests having a deficit
balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating fo fransactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes fo one or more of
the three elements of control described in the accounting policy for
subsidiaries below. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises |i] the assefs
(including goodwill] and liabilities of the subsidiary, [ii] the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interest and |iii] the cumulative translation
differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (i) the fair value of any investment refained and
(ifi) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group's share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified fo profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assefs or liabilities.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs for the
first time for the current year's financial statements.

HKFRS 1 Amendments ~ Amendments to HKFRS 1 Firsttime Adoption
of Hong Kong Financial Reporting

Standards — Government loans

HKFRS 7 Amendments  Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures — Offsefting Financial Assets
and Financial liabilities

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Enfities

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and

and HKFRS 12 HKFRS 12 - Transition Guidance
Amendments
HKFRS 13 Fair Valve Measurement
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31 March 2014 ZZ—MF=A=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES (Cont'd)

HKAS 1 Amendments

HKAS 19 (2011)

HKAS 27 (2011)

HKAS 28 (2011]

HKAS 36 Amendments

HK(IFRIC)Hnt 20

Annual Improvements

2009-2011 Cycle

Employee Benelfits

of a Surface Mine

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation
of Financial Statements — Presentation
of ltems of Other Comprehensive Income

Separafe Financial Statements

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

Amendments to HKAS 36 Impairment of
Assets — Recoverable Amount Disclosures
for Non-financial Assets learly adopted)

Stripping Costs in the Production Phase

Amendments to a number of HKFRSs issued
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W% W # W3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2014 —Z—NFE=A=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Cont'd)

Other than as further explained below regarding the impact of HKFRS
10, HKFRS 12, HKFRS 13 and amendments to HKAS 1, the adoption
of the new and revised HKFRSs has had no significant financial effect

on these financial statements.

The principal effects of adopting these new and revised HKFRSs are as

follows:

fe)

(bl

HKFRS 10 replaces the portion of HKAS 27 Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements that addresses the accounting
for consolidated financial statements and addresses the issues
in HK[SICHnt 12 Consolidation = Special Purpose Entities. It
establishes a single control model used for determining which
entities are consolidated. To meet the definition of control in
HKFRS 10, an invesfor must have (a) power over an investee,
(b) exposure, or rights, fo variable returns from its involvement
with the investee, and (c) the ability fo use ifs power over the
investee fo affect the amount of the invesfor's refurns. The changes
infroduced by HKFRS 10 require management of the Group fo
exercise significant judgement to defermine which entities are
controlled. The application of HKFRS 10 does not change any
of the consolidation conclusions of the Group in respect of its
involvement with investees as at 1 April 2013.

HKFRS 12 sets out the disclosure requirements for subsidiaries,
joint arrangements, associates and sfructured entities previously
included in HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separafe Financial
Statements, HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures and HKAS 28
Investments in Associafes. It also introduces a number of new
disclosure requirements for these entities. Defails of the disclosures
for subsidiaries and associates are included in notes 17 and 18
fo the financial statements.
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W% it & W 5 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2014 ZZ—MF=A=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Cont'd)

(c]

(d)

HKFRS 13 provides a precise definition of fair value and a single
source of fair value measurement and disclosure requirements
for use across HKFRSs. The standard does not change the
circumstances in which the Group is required fo use fair value,
but rather provides guidance on how fair value should be applied
where ifs use is already required or permitted under other HKFRSs.
HKFRS 13 is applied prospectively and the adoption has had no
material impact on the Group's fair value measurements. As a
result of the guidance in HKFRS 13, the policies for measuring fair
value have been amended. Additional disclosures required by
HKFRS 13 for the fair value measurements of invesiment properties
and financial instruments are included in nofes 15 and 43 to the
financial stafements. The application of this new standard has no
material financial impact on the Group.

The HKAS 1 Amendments change the grouping of items
presented in other comprehensive income ["OCI"). ltems that
could be reclassified (or recycled) to profit or loss at a future
point in fime (for example, exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations, net movement on cash flow hedges
and net loss or gain on availableforsale financial assets) are
presented separately from items which will never be reclassified
(for example, the revaluation of land and buildings). The
amendments have affected the presentation only and have had
no impact on the financial position or performance of the Group.
The consolidated statement of comprehensive income has been
resfated fo reflect the changes. In addition, the Group has chosen
fo use the new fitle “statement of profit or loss” as introduced by
the amendments in these financial statements.
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2.3 CRAEEARERZEBYHER

Rl

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

AEBHARKHBHRFAUTER
R RERZ ] MBI BB B

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, that

have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial statements.

HER

BERMBRE AHHEIA HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments*
HERIZE 957

BEMBWSE  HHETRETEE HKFRS 9, HKFRS 7 Hedge Accounting and amendments o
RERAIFE 5 - BB SRR and HKAS 39 HKFRS @ HKFRS 7 and HKAS 3%*
BAMBRE FOR - BEUK Amendments
RRIE7HRE  HEERE SRR
BRGIER  BEZTEA
£39%2 FE 305"
fE7T

BEMBRE BIABUBRE HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
ZRIZE 1098 ERIF 105 and HKAS 27 HKAS 27 (2011) = Investment Entifies'
BEMBmE AEVBRE (2011) Amendments
LRIFE 125 R 125 R
REEES BB GHER
AR 27 5% %27 %
(Z2——%) (=F——%)
ZIERT —REER

BEMBWE  EIIBEMBRS HKFRS 11 Amendments  Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for
LERIFE 5% BRI % Acquisitons of Inferests in Joint Operations’
ZIERT WEEEFK

Bz 2 Bi I

BEMBWSE EHELKRF® HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts®
LERIFE 145

EEGEN  gIEEeER HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38
F165R F£16HREE Amendments Clarification of Acceptance Methodls
BRGER @RS 385 of Depreciation and Amortisation’
£ 385% EBITE R#
ZIERT ZAER LS

BRgER  BIESgIER HKAS 19 Amendments  Amendments to HKAS 19 Employee
F19%2 £ 195EE M Benefits — Defined Benefit
CH —EEEETE - Plans: Employee Contributions®

ES BRI
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W% W # W 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2014 ZZ—MF=A=+—H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Cont'd)

HKAS 32 Amendments  Amendments to HKAS 32 Ffinancial
Instruments: Presentation — Offseffing

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities'

HKAS 39 Amendments  Amendments to HKAS 39 Ffinancial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement

— Novation of Derivatives and Continuation

of Hedge Accounting'
HK(IFRIC}Hnt 21 levies'
Annual Improvements  Amendments fo a number of HKFRSs issued
20102012 Cycle in January 20142
Annual Improvemenis  Amendments fo a number of HKFRSs issued
2011-2013 Cycle in January 20142

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016

4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but is available for adoption

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the impact of
these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial application but is not yet in
a position fo state whether these new and revised HKFRSs would have
a significant impact on ifs results of operations and financial position.
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W% W # W3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2014 —Z—NFE=A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the
Group is exposed, or has rights, fo variable returns from its involvement
with the investee and has the ability to affect those retumns through its
power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the
current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over
an investee, including:

[a)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the

investee;

(b)  rights arising from other confraciual arrangements; and

[c)]  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company's statement
of profit or loss to the extent of dividends received and receivable.
The Company's inferests in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any
impairment losses.

Investments in associates

An associafe is an entity in which the Group has a long term inferest of
generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over which it
is in a position fo exercise significant influence. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee, but is not control or joint control over those policies.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Investments in associates [Contdl)

The Group's inferests in associates are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position af the Group's share of net assefs under
the equity method of accounting, less any impairment losses.

The Group's share of the postacquisition results and other comprehensive
income of associates is included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and consolidated other comprehensive income, respectively.
In addition, when there has been a change recognised directly in the
equity of the associate, the Group recognises its share of any changes,
when applicable, in the consolidated stafement of changes in equity.
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between the
Group and ifs associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group's
invesiments in the associates, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the asset fransferred.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the Group
measures and recognises any retained investment af ifs fair value. Any
difference between the carrying amount of the associate upon loss of
significant influence and the fair value of the retained investment and
proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

Fair valve measurement

The Group measures ifs investment properties, derivative financial
instruments and equity investments af fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid fo fransfer a liability in an orderly fransaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the
assef or fransfer the liability fakes place either in the principal market for
the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value
of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market parficipants act in their economic best inferest.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Fair valve measurement (Contd)

A fair value measurement of a nonfinancial asset takes info account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in ifs highest and best use or by selling it to another market

participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising
the use of unobservable inputs.

All assefs and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant
o the fair value measurement as a whole:

level 1- based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities

level 2- based on valuation fechniques for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

level 3— based on valuation fechniques for which the lowest level input
that is significant o the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assefs and liabilifies that are recognised in the financial statements
on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Impairment of non-financial assets

When an indication of impairment exisfs, or when annual impairment
fesfing for an asset is required [other than properties under development,
properties held for sale, inventories, construction contfract assefs,
financial assefs and investment properties), the asset's recoverable
amount is calculated as the higher of the assef's value in use and its
fair value less costs of disposal, and is defermined for an individual
asset, unless the assef does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assefs or groups of assets, in which
case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit

fo which the assef belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds ifs recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the esfimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a preax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged
o the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those

expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as fo
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the esfimates used fo determine the recoverable
amount of an asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been defermined [nef of any depreciation/
amortisation] had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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2.4 FESTEEREBEE) 2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)
BEA L Related parties
ETIERT - -7 AR RARE A party is considered fo be related to the Group if:
BzREAL
(o) ZIAR—BATHZALZEE [a)  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family
B#ZAt and that person
(i) 72 il ol R I AR E [il  has control or joint control over the Group;
ij HAKBEEAXE: %K (i) has significant influence over the Group; or
i) AAEEINEEEQF (i} is a member of the key management personnel of the
ZEFBRERBAEBHEP—F Group or of a parent of the Group;
KE
x or
b #&7HARME TIER—EGEZ (b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
R applies:
()] ZERELAEEBERN-—% (i the entity and the Group are members of the same group;
EzKE AR
i —EBRZ—EE (_Jij— (i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other enfity
ERZERE WER (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other
Eﬁilﬂ%ﬁﬁ%&?)z%%/& entity);
AgARERE
il ZEREAEERFR—-% (i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third
=hZaErE party;
vy —EBRF-FEBZA (iv)  one enfily is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
ERERFZ-BERRE= entity is an associate of the third entity;
HERZBERR
V) RERANREEN —KHE (v)  the enfity is a postemployment benefit plan for the benefit
AEBEBEZERME of employees of either the Group or an entfity related fo the
B AR M R 6B B 1218 Group;
FIEtEl
(vi) EZ?E%%(O]Pﬁ?EAiT il (vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
o HEEH identified in (a); and
(vii) (alli| TIEATHEREEKX (vil o person identified in (a] (i) has significant influence over
%@_JZ%E@’E B(HZER the entity or is @ member of the key management personnel
AENETEEBABNH of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).
F—BKE -
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31 March 2014 ZZ—MF=A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. When an item of property,
plant and equipment is classified as held for sale or when it is part of
a disposal group classified as held for sale, it is not depreciated and is
accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5, as further explained in the
accounting policy for “Non-current assefs classified as held for sale”.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly atiributable costs of bringing the assefs
fo its working condition and location for ifs infended use. Expenditure
incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have been put
info operation, such as repairs and mainfenance, is normally charged
fo the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
sifuations where the recognition criferia are safisfied, the expenditure for
a maijor inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a
replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and equipment
are required to be replaced at infervals, the Group recognises such
parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straightline basis to write off the cost
of each item of property, plant and equipment fo ifs residual value over
its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose
are as follows:

leasehold land under finance lease Over the lease ferms

Buildings 5%
Equipment and machinery 10% - 33'/3%
Furniture and fixtures 20%

Motor vehicles 20%

Motor yacht 10%

leasehold improvements 10%-33'/5%
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation [Contc)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, af least af each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from ifs use or disposal. Any gain or
loss on disposal or refirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss
in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including
the leasehold interest under an operating lease for a property which
would otherwise meet the definition of an investment property) held to
eam rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use
in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such properties
are measured initially af cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent fo
initial recognition, invesiment properties are sfated at fair value, which
reflects market condifions at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
propetties are included in the stafement of profit or loss in the year in
which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the year of
the refirement or disposal.
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31 March 2014 ZZ—MF=A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Non-current assets classified as held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying
amounts will be recovered principally through a sales transaction rather
than through continuing use. For this to be the case, the asset must be
available for immediate sale in its present condition subject only fo terms
that are usual and customary for the sale of such assets and ifs sale must

be highly probable.

Non-current assefs (other than investment properties and financial assets)
classified as held for sale are measured af the lower of their carrying
amounts and fair values less costs o sell. Property, plant and equipment
classified as held for sale are not depreciated or amortised.

Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at cost less any impairment
losses, which include all development expenditure, borrowing costs and
other costs directly atiributable to such properties incurred during the
development period.

Properties under development which have either been presold or which
are intended for sale and are expected to be completed within one year
from the end of the reporting period are classified as current assets.

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated in the statement of financial position
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes the cost
of land, inferest capitalised during the period of development and
other direct cosfs attributable to the development of the properties. Net
realisable value is determined by reference to the prevailing market
prices on an individual property basis, less all costs to completion, if
applicable, and costs of marketing and selling.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

leases

leases that fransfer substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assefs fo the Group, other than legal fifle, are accounted for as finance
leases. At the inception of a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset
is capitalised at the present value of the minimum lease payments and
recorded fogether with the obligation, excluding the inferest element, to
reflect the purchase and financing. Assefs held under capitalised finance
leases, including prepaid land lease payments under finance leases,
are included in property, plant and equipment, and depreciated over
the estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance cosfs of such leases
are charged to the sfatement of profit or loss so as fo provide a consfant
periodic rafe of charge over the lease terms.

leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assefs remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited fo the stafement
of profit or loss on the straightline basis over the lease terms. Where
the Group is the lessee, renfals payable under operating leases are
charged fo the statement of profit or loss on the sfraightline basis over
the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables and available-
for-sale financial investments, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. When financial assets
are recognised inifially, they are measured at fair value plus fransaction
cosfs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets,
except in the case of financial assets recorded at fair value through
profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assefs are recognised
on the frade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)
Investments and other financial assets [Cont )

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assefs depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets
held for trading and financial assets designated upon initial recognition
as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets are classified as
held for frading if they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near
term. Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives, are also

classified as held for frading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments as defined by HKAS 39.

Financial assets af fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position af fair value with net changes in fair
value recognised in the stafement of profit or loss. These net fair value
changes do not include any dividends on these financial assets, which
are recognised in accordance with the policies sef ouf for “Revenue

recognition” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial recognition
and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are safisfied.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for as separate
derivatives and recorded at fair value if their economic characteristics
and risks are not closely related 1o those of the host contracts and the
host contracts are not held for trading or designated as af fair value
through profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in the sfatement of profit or
loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the terms
of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would
otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the
fair value through profit or loss category.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)
Investments and other financial assets [Cont @)

Loans and receivables

loans and receivables are nonderivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. After
initial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method less any allowance for
impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking info account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or costs that are
an infegral part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rafe
amortisation is included in other income and gains in the stafement
of profit or loss. The loss arising from impairment is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss in other expenses.

Availablefor-sale financial investments

Availablefor-sale financial investments are non-derivative financial assets
in unlisted equity investments. Equity investments classified as available
for sale are those which are neither classified as held for trading nor
designated as at fair value through profit or loss.

Alter initial recognition, available-forsale financial investments are
subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains or losses
recognised as other comprehensive income in the availableforsale
investment revaluafion reserve until the investment is derecognised, af
which time the cumulafive gain or loss is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss in other income, or until the investment is determined
fo be impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from
the availableforsale investment revaluation reserve fo the statement
of profit or loss in other gains or losses. Interest and dividends earned
whilst holding the availablefor-sale financial investments are reported as
inferest income and dividend income, respectively and are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss as other income in accordance with the
policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.



2.4 FESFBERBEE)

REREMELHMEE (&)

AfHESRRE(E)

EFRLTRARENAFHEAR (B
HERBMGIRENSCHZIREMNS
BEA b L ABEASER O
LE A G AREE A FEM &
ER SR B - ZFRE AR
BERTRTIR

AEBEMIMLEHIESREE
ZHENREBERRENAGBETE -
EmHTERMNEEHELXTEREE
B ARBEBBKER TEEN IR
ZETREE(MASEEEERER
REENERARREEAFTEELRA

EHH) -

WEREERARHERNEREN B
Hiefgnl - MEHSPBEANAFEE
REFEHEKA - 2 AINME SR R
BER W 3B BRA BRI R ARF
SIREF ARSI - B EKAR
e ENERMRAERFRERE
ERRFHAEE - HWEEARETR
ERME  AEt ARSNEBENRNERE
B -

R B R AR A

W% it & W 5 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)
Investments and other financial assets [Cont )

Availablefor-sale financial investments /Conr @)

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot be reliably
measured because (a) the variability in the range of reasonable fair
value esfimates is significant for that investment or (b) the probabilities of
the various estimates within the range cannot be reasonably assessed
and used in estimating fair value, such investments are stated at cost less
any impairment losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and infention fo sell its available-
forsale financial assefs in the near term are sfill appropriate. When, in
rare circumstances, the Group is unable fo frade these financial assefs
due fo inactive markets, the Group may elect fo reclassify these financial
assefs if management has the ability and infention fo hold the assets for
the foreseeable future or until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the availableforsale category,
the fair value carrying amount at the date of reclassification becomes
its new amortised cost and any previous gain or loss on that assef that
has been recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the
remaining life of the investment using the effective inferest rate. Any
difference between the new amortised cost and the maturity amount is
also amortised over the remaining life of the assef using the effective
interest rate. If the asset is subsequently determined fo be impaired, then
the amount recorded in equity is reclassified to the statement of profit or
loss.
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31 March 2014 —Z—NFE=A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there
is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets
is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset have an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets
that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptey or
other financial reorganisation and observable data indicating that there
is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assefs carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses
whether impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are
not individually significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial
asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be,
recognised are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows [excluding future credit losses that have not
yet been incurred). The present value of the estimated future cash flows
is discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate [i.e.,
the effective interest rate computed at initial recogniﬁon).
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W% it & W 5 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2014 ZZ—MF=A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont )

Financial assets carried at amortised cost /Conr @)

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account and the loss is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss. Interest income continues fo be accrued on the reduced carrying
amount and is accrued using the rafe of inferest used fo discount the
future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.
loans and receivables together with any associated allowance are
writen off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all
collateral has been realised or has been transferred fo the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment
loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring affer the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-
off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to the statement of profit

or loss.

Availablefor-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses at the
end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that
an invesiment or a group of invesiments is impaired.

If an availableforsale assef is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment and
amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment loss
previously recognised in the statement of profit or loss, is removed from
other comprehensive income and recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.
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W% W # W3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2014 —Z—NFE=A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Impairment of financial assets (Contd))

Availablefor-sale financial investments /Conr @)

In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale,
objective evidence would include a significant or prolonged decline in
the fair value of an investment below its cost. “Significant” is evaluated
against the original cost of the investment and “prolonged” against the
period in which the fair value has been below its original cost. Where
there is evidence of impairment, the cumulafive loss — measured as the
difference between the acquisiion cost and the current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that investment previously recognised in the
statement of profit or loss — is removed from other comprehensive income
and recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Impairment losses
on equity instruments classified as available for sale are not reversed
through the statement of profit or loss. Increases in their fair value after
impairment are recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised |i.e.,
removed from the Group's consolidated statement of financial position)
when:

o the rights fo receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

e the Group has fransferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has fransferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the
Group has neither transferred nor refained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Derecognition of financial assets (Cont )

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an
asset or has enfered info a passthrough arrangement, it evaluates if and
fo what extent it has refained the risk and rewards of ownership of the
assef. When it has neither transferred nor refained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the

of the

n that case, the Group also recognises

Group continues to recognise he fransferred assef fo the exfent
Group's continuing involvement.
an associated liability. The Tronsferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the

Group has refained.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities af fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, or as
derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as
appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the
case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable transaction

cosfs.

The Group's financial liabilities include frade payables, interestbearing
bank borrowings, other payables, derivative financial insfruments and a
loan from an associate.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)
Financial liabilities /[Contd))

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial
liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are acquired
for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category includes
derivative financial insfruments entered into by the Group that are not
designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by
HKAS 39. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held
for frading unless they are designated as effective hedging insfruments.
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. The net fair value gain or loss recognised in
the statement of profit or loss does not include any inferest charged on
these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value
through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial recognition
and only if the criferia in HKAS 39 are safisfied.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, inferest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured af amortised cost, using the effective interest rate
method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are sfated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well
as through the effective inferest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by faking info account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or cosfs that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate. The effective inferest rafe amortisation is included
in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)
Financial liabilities /[Conta))

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracts
that require a payment fo be made fo reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee
contract is recognised initially as a liability af its fair value, adjusted
for fransaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the
guarantee. Subsequent fo initial recognition, the Group measures the
financial guarantee contract at the higher of: (i) the amount of the best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at
the end of the reporting period; and (i) the amount initially recognised
less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different ferms, or the terms of an exisfing
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification
is freated as a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition
of a new liability, and the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the stafement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right fo offsef the recognised amounts and there is an
infention fo setle on a net basis, or fo realise the assets and setile the
liabilities simultaneously.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Derivative financial instruments

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward
currency contracts and interest rafe swaps, o hedge ifs foreign currency
risk and interest rate risk, respectively. Such derivative financial
instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which
a derivafive confract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured
at fair value. Derivatives are carried as assefs when the fair value is
positive and as liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of derivatives
are faken directly to the statement of profit or loss, except for the
effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised in other
comprehensive income and later reclassified to profit or loss when the
hedged item affects profit or loss.

Current versus non-current classification

Derivative instruments that are not designated as effective hedging
instruments are classified as current or non-current or separated into
current and non-current portions based on an assessment of the facts
and circumstances [i.e., the underlying contracted cash flows|.

e Where the Group expecis to hold a derivative as an economic
hedge (and does not apply hedge accounting) for a period
beyond 12 months after the end of the reporting period, the
derivative is classified as non-current [or separated info current
and non-current portions) consistently with the classification of the
underlying item.

e Embedded derivatives that are not closely related to the host
contract are classified consistently with the cash flows of the host
confract.

*  Derivative instruments that are designated as, and are effective
hedging instruments, are classified consistently with the
classification of the underlying hedged item. The derivative
insfruments are seporoted info current portions and non-current

portions only if a reliable allocation can be made.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost, on the firstin, firstout basis,
and net realisable value after making due allowance for any obsolete
or slow-moving items. Net realisable value is based on estimated
selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.

Construction contracts

Contract revenue comprises the agreed contract amount and
appropriate amounts from variation orders, claims and incentive
payments. Contract costs incurred comprise direct materials, the cosfs of
subcontracting, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of variable
and fixed consfruction overheads.

Revenue from fixed price construction confracts is recognised on the
percentage of completion method, measured by reference tfo the
proportion of cosfs incurred fo dafe fo the estimated tofal cost of the

relevant contract.

Revenue from cost plus construction contracts is recognised on the
percentage of completion method, by reference to the recoverable costs
incurred during the period plus the related fees earned, measured by
fofal cost of the

the proportion of costs incurred fo date to the esfimated

relevant contract.

Provision is made for foreseeable losses as soon as they are anticipated
by management.

Where confract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less
recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus is freated as an
amount due from a confract cusfomer.

Where progress billings exceed contract cosfs incurred to dafe plus
recognised profifs less recognised losses, the surplus is treated as an
amount due o a confract customer.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposifs, and
short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible info
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, and have a short maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the sfatements of financial position, cash and bank
balances comprise cash on hand and at banks, including ferm deposits,
which are not restricted as fo use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required fo seftle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for
a provision is the present value af the end of the reporting period of
the future expenditures expected fo be required to sefile the obligation.
The increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the
passage of fime is included in finance cosfs in the stafement of profit or
loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred fax. Income tax relating
fo items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assefs and liabilities for the current and prior periods are
measured at the amount expected fo be recovered from or paid to the
faxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacfed or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period,
faking into consideration inferprefations and pracfices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences af the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of
assefs and liabiliies and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

®  when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, ot the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

® in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, when the fiming of
the reversal of the tfemporary differences can be controlled and it
is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Income tax [Contd)

Deferred tax assefs are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused
fax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised fo the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits

and unused fax losses can be ufilised, except:

®  when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
fime of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
faxable profit or loss; and

® in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary differences can be

utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assefs is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced fo the exfent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
fax assefs are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised fo the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available fo allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset fo be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected fo apply to the period when the assef is realised or the liability
is seffled, based on tax rates (and fax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred fax assefs and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists fo set off current fax assefs against current tax
liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same faxable entity and
the same taxation authority.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits

will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be measured reliably,

on the following bases:

(a)

(bl

[c]

(d)

(e)

(9)

From foundation piling and E&M engineering contracts

On the percentage of completion basis, as further explained in
the accounting policy for “Construction contracts” above;

From the sale of properties held for sale

When the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been
fransferred fo the buyer;

From machinery frading

When the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been

fransferred fo the buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither

managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership, nor effective control over the machines sold;

Rental income from property and machinery leasing

In the period in which the properties and machines are leased
and on the straightline basis over the lease ferms;

From the rendering of property management services
In the period in which such services are rendered;
Interest income

On an accrual basis using the effective interest rate method by
applying the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument fo the net

carrying amount of the financial assef; and

Dividend income

When the shareholder’s right to receive payment has been

established.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)
Employee benefits

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards fo eligible participants who contribute
o the success of the Group's operations. Employees [including direcfors)
of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employees render services as consideration for equity
insfruments {“equity-sefiled transactions”).

The cost of equity-seffled fransactions with employees for grants after 7
November 2002 is measured by reference fo the fair value at the date
at which they are granted. The fair value is determined by an external
valuer using a binomial model.

The cost of equity-seffled transactions is recognised, together with
a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled in employee
benefit expense. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
fransactions at the end of each reporting period until the vesting date
reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the
Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. The charge or credit o the statement of profit or loss for
a period represents the movement in the cumulative expense recognised
as at the beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest, except
for equity-setiled fransactions where vesting is conditional upon a market
or nonvesting condition, which are treated as vesting irespective of
whether or not the market or non-vesting condition is safisfied, provided
that all other performance and/or conditions are safisfied.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)
Employee benefits (Contc)

Share-based payments /Conr )

Where the ferms of an equity-sefiled award are modified, as a minimum
an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been modified, if
the original ferms of the award are met. In addition, an expense is
recognised for any modification that increases the tofal fair value of the
share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial fo the employee as
measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-sefled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had
vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised
for the award is recognised immediately. This includes any award
where nonesfing conditions within the control of either the Group or
the employee are not met. However, if a new award is substituted for
the cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement award on
the dafe that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated
as if they were a modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share
dilufion in the computation of earnings per share.

Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees under their
employment confracts on a calendar year basis. Under cerfain
circumstances, such leave which remains untaken as at the end of the
reporting period is permitted to be carried forward and ufilised by the
respective employees in the following year. An accrual is made af the
end of the reporting period for the expected future cost of such paid
leave earned during the year by the employees and carried forward.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)
Employee benefits (Contc)

Pension schemes

The Group operated a defined contribution provident fund (the “Fund”)
for certain of its employees in Hong Kong, the assets of which were
held separately from those of the Group and were managed by an
independent professional fund manager. Confributions under the Fund
were made based on a percenfage of the eligible employees’ basic
salaries and were charged to the statement of profit or loss as they
became payable in accordance with the rules of the scheme. The
ongoing confributions fo the Fund were terminated on 1 April 1999.

Following the infroduction of the Mandatory Provident Fund retirement
benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”), the Group has restructured ifs
refirement scheme arrangements to comply with the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance. The Group has secured a Mandatory
Provident Fund exemption status for the Fund and, in addition, has
participated in an approved defined contribution MPF Scheme with
effect from 1 December 2001, for all of its employees in Hong Kong.
Confributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged fo the statement of profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund. The Group's employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed info the MPF
Scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries located in Mainland China
are required fo parficipate in a central pension scheme operated by
the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are required to
confribute a cerfain percentage of their covered payroll to the central
pension scheme. The contributions are charged to the sfatement of profit
or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the

central pension scheme.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly affributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capifalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earmed on the
femporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capifalised.
All other borrowing cosfs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of inferest and other cosfs that an entity
incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Foreign currencies

These financial stafements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which
is the Company's functional and presentation currency. Each entity in
the Group determines its own funcfional currency and items included in
the financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency fransactions recorded by the entities in the
Group are initially recorded using their respective functional currency
rafes prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are franslated af the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Differences arising on seftlement or translation of monefary items
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in ferms of hisforical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates af the dates
of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are franslated using the exchange rates af the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
franslation of a non-monetary item measured af fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of
the item [i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value gain
or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Foreign currencies (Contc))

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries and associates
are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the
reporting period, the assefs and liabilities of these entities are translated
info the presentation currency of the Company at the exchange rates
prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their statements of
profit or loss are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted
average exchange rafes for the year. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that particular
foreign operation is recognised in the stafement of profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated sfatement of cash flows, the cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries are franslated info Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the
year are franslated info Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies,
management makes various judgements and esfimates based on past
experience, expectations of the future and other information. The key
sources of esfimation uncertainty that can significantly affect the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements are disclosed below:

Impairment of trade receivables

The policy for impairment of frade receivables of the Group is based on
the evaluation of collectibility and aging analysis of trade receivables
and on management's judgement. Significant judgement is required
in assessing the ultimate realisation of these receivables, including the
current creditworthiness and the past collection history of each cusfomer.
If the financial condifions of customers of the Group were to deferiorate,
resulting in an impairment of their ability fo make payments, additional
provisions may be required.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Cont'd)

Percentage of completion of construction works

The Group recognises revenue according to the percentage of
completion of the individual contract of construction works. The Group's
management estimates the percenfage of completion of consfruction
works if the value of works has not been certified by the customers af the
end of the reporting period. These esfimates are based on actual cost
incurred over the tofal budgefed cost. Corresponding confract revenue
is also esfimated by management. Because of the nature of the acfivity
undertaken in construction contracts, the date at which the confract
activity is entered into and the date when the activity is completed
usually fall info different accounting periods. The Group reviews and
revises the estimates of both contract revenue and contract costs in
the budget prepared for each construction contract as the contract

progresses.

Current and deferred tax

The Group is subject fo income faxes in a number of jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in defermining the amount of the
provision for tax and the timing of payment of the related taxes. There
are fransactions and calculations for which the ulimate fox defermination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were inifially
recorded, such differences will have an impact on the income tax and
deferred fax provisions in the period in which such determination is
made.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Cont'd)

Mainland China land appreciation taxes ("LAT’)

LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the
appreciation of land value, being the proceeds of sales of properties
less deductible expenditures including amortisation of land use
rights, borrowing costs, business faxes and all property development
expenditures. The tax is incurred upon fransfer of property ownership.

Subsidiaries of the Group engaging in the property development
business in Mainland China are subject to LAT. However, the
implementation of these taxes varies amongst various cities in Mainland
China. The Group has not vet finalised its LAT calculation and payments
for most of its property development projects with various tax authorifies.
Accordingly, significant judgement is required in defermining the amount
of land appreciation and its related taxes. The Group recognises these
liabilities based on management's best estimates. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the consolidated financial
stafements in the period in which such defermination is made.
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1 March 2014 ZZ—ME=A=+—H
OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group's operating businesses are structured and managed
separately, according to the nature of their operations and the products
and services they provided. Operating segments are reported in
a manner consistent with inferal reporting to the Company's key
management personnel as follows:

[a)  the foundation piling segment;

(b)  the properly development segment;

[c) the property investment and management segment;
(d)  the machinery leasing and frading segment; and
le)  the E&M engineering segment.

Management monitors the results of the Group's operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resources
allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on reportable segment profit/(loss), which is a
measure of adjusted profit/(loss) before fax.

The adjusted profit/(loss) before tax is measured consistently with the
Group's profit before tax from continuing operations except that interest
income, finance costs, dividend income, fair value gains/{losses) from
the Group's financial instruments, gain on disposal of non-current asset
classified as held for sale, share of profits of associates and loss on
disposal of interests in associates as well as head office and corporate
expenses are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets, investments at fair value
through profit or loss, tax prepaid, fime deposits and other unallocated
head office and corporate assefs as these assefs are managed on a
group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude derivative financial instruments, interest-
bearing bank borrowings, tax payable, deferred tax liabilities and other
unallocated head office and corporate liabilities as these liabilities are
managed on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and fransfers are fransacted with reference to the
selling prices used for sales made fo third parties af the then prevailing
market prices.
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TYSAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

Ri % i’% l‘ﬂ #E NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 March 2014 —Z—M¥=A=+—H
4. REFEER(E)
W7 FHEH]

(o) REIEEFUE

AR
HETIREE

Seqment revenue:

Sclles fo extemal customers

Fa W E ERIAR P R
BE -

(b) FREBEE

TRERBEENEERKENE
RERBTBRECHRARE

B —ETEEFZEH

AREF U 4354,277,0007% 7T T3 5K
B EITBENBRARPAEL ZHE -
BE_T-=F=-A=1—HILFER
7 #)640,230,000/8 7T Jh R 8 # & 4T
BABAEFBIELZHE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd)
Geographical information
(@)  Revenue from external customers
B ol HEAHE &e
Hong Kong Mocau Elsewhere in the PRC Consolidated
ZE-mF -EF--F ZE-PWE “E--F CE-ME E-DF ZE-UE —F-cF
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
FEr FET FEr FEr FEr FEr Far FEr
HS000 RSO0 HKSO00 KO0 HKSO00  HKSO00 HKSOO0 KOO0
2064944 2278170 459479 703593 979970 785516 3,504,393 3767279
The revenue information above is based on locations of the
customers.
(b)  Non-current assets
BA il HEAMHE &4
Hong Kong Mocau Elsewhere in the PRC Consolidated
:g_i —7 —E :g_$ —7 —¢ :g_i :E_EE :g_i :2_E¢
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
FEr FET FEr FEr FEr FEr FEr FEr
HS000 SO0 HS000 SO0 HKSO00 K000 HKSO00 SO0
414362 487122 310 0845 1313059 1322228 1727731 1819195

The non-current assets information above is based on locations of

the assets and excludes deferred tax assets.

Information about a major customer

Revenue of approximately HK$354,277,000 was derived from
sales by the foundation piling segment to Customer A during the year.
Revenue of approximately HK$640,230,000 was derived from sales
by the foundation piling segment to Customer B during the year ended

31 March 2013
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W% it & W 5 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2014 —E—pE=A=+—F
5. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Revenue, which is also the Group's turnover, represents the aggregate of
the value of foundation piling and E&M engineering contracts certified
by architects or quantity surveyors; income derived from machinery
frading and property management; renfal income from property and
machinery leasing; and income from the sale of properties held for sale,
after eliminations of all significant infragroup fransactions.

An analysis of the Group's revenue and other income and gains is as

follows:
“E-NFE —T=F
2014 2013
FET TIET
HK$ 000 HK$'000

Revenue:

Foundation piling 2,471,234 2,896,047
Property development 967,630 761,435
Property invesiment and management 13,181 24,723
Machinery leasing and frading 31,796 31,910
E&M engineering 20,552 53,164

3,504,393 3,767,279

Other income and gains:

Interest income 23,865 12,037
Insurance claims 1,484 313
Gain on disposal of investment properties - 478
Gain on disposal of non-current asset

classified as held for sale® - 191,872
Subsidy income* * 1,295 1,183
Fair value gains on investments at fair value

through profit or loss, nef - 532
Foreign exchange gains, net 319 -
Management service income 1,694 1,862
Dividend income from listed investments 156 158
Others 4,348 7,409

33,161 215,844

On 7 December 2011, the Group entered info a formal sale and
purchase agreement with an independent third party fo dispose of an
owneroccupied property being the whole floor of 11th Floor, Harbour
Centre, 25 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong at a fofal cash
consideration of HK$315,000,000. On 31 May 2012, the disposal
was completed and a gain of HK$ 191,872,000 was resulted.

**  There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating fo this income.

FE I 2013/2014
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Ri % i’% l‘ﬂ #E NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 March 2014 —ZE—ME=A=+—H
6. BEKA 6.  FINANCE COSTS
&8
GROUP
—E-mE —ZT—=F
2014 2013
FiET FIET
HK$000 HK$ 000
PITEERBEXZHE Interest on bank borrowings and overdrafts:
—ERLFREHER - wholly repayable within five years 21,548 14,679
—ARIFREBEER — wholly repayable over five years 1,560 1,652
23,108 16,331
7. BRBADER 7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX
AEE T BEATEFEME S GEA)T The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/[crediting):

DIBIRRIEE :

Wiz ZE-RE —T-=F

Nofes 2014 2013
FET FET
HK$000 HK$ 000
e Depreciation 14 75,858 81,411
T RETFRERD Minimum lease payments under
Z AR A operating leases of land
and buildings 13,529 12,311
REREcHE Rental of construction equipment 52,883 35,919
ZERIE € Auditors” remuneration 2,978 2,587
EERMH Employee benefit expense [including
(BIEEEME —ME8) : directors’ remuneration — note 8):
TERkF= Wages and salaries 439,598 339,745
VARG 52+ 2 BB i e 2 i Equity-sefiled share option expense - 107
RIRS IS Pension scheme contributions 11,489 10,073

451,087 349,925

102 ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014
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HfhEERE, (RERE) *
—fEHE R R RFURE
BERGEROZHERA

REMEHESIA
BEEEEHS5953,00087T

(ZZF—=%:11,269,000/%7T)

EHREZRBMA*

BRHERMEME BBERRER
B ZE1E57450008 (2 —=
% :2,103,000/8 70 ) 5t AR &
RZIHERAL)  EHSBERE
EEaBERZ[ At - FE IR
[EtAREHM A -
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W% it & W 5 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2014 ZZ—MF=A=+—H

7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (Cont'd)

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/

(credifing):(Cont'd)

I R
Notes 2014 2013

FET T

HK$ 000 HK$'000

Foreign exchange losses/(gains), nef* (319) 1,355

Impairment of trade receivables* 24 194 5,842

Write-down of inventories fo nef

realisable value* - 458

Impairment of other receivables* 25 1,217 2,000

Write-off of other receivables* - 1,788
Loss on disposal and write-off of items

of property, plant and equipment* 17,332 16,005

Gain on disposal of

investment properties* - (478)
Gain on disposal of non-current asset

classified as held for sale* — (191,872
Fair value losses/(gains), net:

Investments at fair value

through profit or loss* 427 (532)
Derivative instruments — transaction
not qualifying as hedge* 128 1,350
Changes in fair value of
investment properties 15 (37,494) (30,702
Impairment/ (write-back of impairment]
of other assefs* 20 (110)

|mpoirmenf of an amount due from

an associate 10 12
Rental income from operating

leases of machinery (13,785) (18,309
Rental income on investment

properiies less direct operating

expenses of HK$5,953,000

(2013: HK$11,269,000) (4,976) [11,893)
Dividend income from
listed investments* (156) (158)

These amounts are included in “Other expenses, net” or “Other income
and gains” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, except for loss
on disposal and write-off of items of property, plant and equipment of

HK$5,745,000 (2013: HK$2,103,000) which is included in "Cost of
sales” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

FE I 2013/2014

103



104

TYSAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

W% W # W3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2014 —Z—NFE=A=+—H

8. EEME

45 Zx

REEEHARXIMERDAN(HBR
D ES EMRAT EHRA ) REE
ARNEDIE 161 B 2 A FEEEM
s/ UNE

ik
HITEE
BUFRTES

PTEFZEMBE
FE R REYF S
PARBCHE S {2 P PR s
RIRE B

REBE-T——F=A=+—RAK=%
ENF=ZA=+—HLFE  BEARQ
A EBRETE (FREN T BRE
M4 REER®SE) ETEZAR
AEBRUREERBRE - ZFTER
BRATEDNARLAHET - YER
BEOEBERAYY Mt AHZE=
E-—=F=ZA=+—HILFEUHREX
CEROENENESTHE IR -

ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the Rules
Goveming the Listing of Securities [the “listing Rules”) on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and Section
161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows:
£E
GROUP
—F-mE T =F
2014 2013
FHET TIET
HK$'000 HK$'000
Fees:
Executive direcfors - -
Independent non-executive directors 960 540
Other emoluments of executive directors:
Salaries, allowances, and benefits in kind 71,761 50,603
Fquitysefiled share optfion expense - 107
Pension scheme contributions 104 112
72,825 51,362

During the years ended 31 March 2011 and 31 March 2008, certain
directors were granted share options, in respect of their services fo the
Group, under the share option scheme of the Company, further defails
of which are set out in nofe 34 fo the financial statements and the
report of the directors. The fair value of such options, which has been
recognised in the statement of profit or loss over the vesting period,
was defermined as at the date of grant and the amount included in the
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2013 was included
in the above directors” remuneration disclosures.
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2014
Executive directors:

Mr. Francis Cheung®

Mr. Fung Chiu Chak, Viclor
Mr. David Chien?

Miss Jennifer Kwok

Mr. Chiv Chin Hung

Mr. Wong Kay'

Mr. Lau Kin Fai

Mr. Harvey Jackel Cheung?

Independent non-execufive
directors:

Mr. Fan Chor Ho

Mr. Tse Man Bun

Mr. lung Chee Ming, George
Mr. Li Kit Chee

Total

R B R AR A

W% W # W 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Cont'd)

31 March 2014 ZZ—MF=A=+—H

The remuneration paid or payable to each of the direcfors is as follows:

H - 28

RENFE UREXf i)

Solories,  BREXH TR

allowances  Equity-setiled Pension
#2&  ondbenefits  share opfion scheme ac
Fees in kind expense  contributions Total
TEx TEx FiEr TEx TEx
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
- 22,560 - 15 22,575
- 16,745 - 15 16,760
- 724 - 13 737
- 13,537 - 15 13,552
- 6,701 - 15 6,716
- 684 - 1 685
- 5,293 - 15 5,308
- 5517 - 15 5,532
- 71,761 - 104 71,865
240 - - - 240
240 - - - 240
240 - - - 240
240 - - - 240
960 - - - 960
960 71,761 - 104 72,825

FE I 2013/2014
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W% W # W3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2014 —Z—NFE=A=+—H

8.

EEMWE(E) 8.
—Z-=F 2013
WITEE ! Executive directors:
REERL M. Francis Cheung?
BHERE Mr. Fung Chiu Chak, Victor
BB AE? Mr. David Chien?
FEE A Miss Jennifer Kwok
BEBLE Mr. Chiv Chin Hung
EELE Mr. Wong Kay'
BB Mr. Lau Kin Fai
REERLS Mr. Harvey Jackel Cheung?
BUFHTES Independent non-executive
directors:
Bl Mr. Fan Chor Ho
BNt Mr. Tse Man Bun
ETREE Mr. lung Chee Ming, George
EX it Mr. Li Kit Chee
i Total

BRLEBTARARRNTES([#1T
EE)) RN E-=ZFRA—B4LE
B o

BKBEEBRTIRTES R-F
—ME-AT=BER -

RREEERREEREFENTE
R E-NFENA-HER
FHENMEC BB 2 UBHERTE
EORFNFEELA-BAR

AEER  MEEENELRBERELT
AT 2 Bk

ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (Cont'd)

28
REWHE RN Rike
Salaries, BRES HES

dlowonces  Equitysefiled Pension
#&  andbenefis  share opfion scheme @t
Fees in kind expense  confibufions Total

TET TEL TET TEL TEL
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000

- 15,055 - 14 15,069
- 13,002 - 14 13,016
- 928 - 14 042
- 5,926 - 14 5,940
- 5,842 - 14 5,856
- 2,762 - 14 2,776
- 3,730 107 14 3,851
- 3,358 - 14 3,372
- 50,603 107 112 50,822
180 - - - 180
180 - - - 180
180 - - - 180
540 - - - 340
540 50,603 107 112 51,362

Mr. Wong Kay resigned as an executive director of the Company
["Execufive Director’) with effect from 1 May 2013.

2 M:r. David Chien resigned as an Executive Director with effect from 13

January 2014.

s Mr. Francis Cheung and Mr. Harvey Jackel Cheung resigned as
Executive Directors with effect from 1 April 2014.

Miss Jennifer Kwok has tendered her resignation to resign as an Executive
Director with effect from 1 July 2014.

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed to
waive any remuneration during the year.
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W% W % W 5 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2014 —E—NE=A=+—H

AuGEeSHZES 9.  FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
RAFERBREFE - AfluGmH & The five highest paid employees during the current and prior years are
BYRARRES - HME&FFHN L all directors of the Company, details of whose remuneration are set out
B8 in note 8 above.
Frigai 10. INCOME TAX
BARANEHRFANBTBEL 25 Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2013:
ERB BN 2165%(ZF—=4F: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during
16.5%)1E LB - A BTHE fth 3th [ B 2R the year. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere in the PRC have been
BN 2 HIAR RARER SR 23R calculated at the applicable tax rates prevailing in the areas in which
TTERBEGE - the Group operates.
5=
GROUP
“E-NFE —T=F
2014 2013
FET FAT
HK$'000 HK$ 000
ENER - Current:
RERGM 2 HIARHE - Provision for fax in respect of profit for the year:
PE - PRC:
BB Hong Kong 8,913 11,000
HAim Elsewhere 141,084 165,926
149,997 176,926
TEEREREE Overprovision in the prior years:
FE PRC:
B Hong Kong (4,199 (60)
Hitpih [ Elsewhere (28) -
(4,227) 160)
EERIE(MFE32) Deferred tax (note 32) 94,924 18,265
REE 2 HIERX B Total fax charge for the year 240,694 195,131

FE I 2013/2014
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Ri % 5!% l‘ﬂ #E NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 March 2014 =S—m£=5=+—A
10. PRS®L(E) 10. INCOME TAX (Cont'd)
BERARUARRR REMBARMEER A reconciliation of the tax charge applicable to profit before fax at the
Rt 2 EE MR E 2 BRBADEN Z sfatutory rafes for the countries or regions in which the Company and its
BIERXENERHEFE 2 HIERX subsidiaries are domiciled fo the tax charge af the effective tox rate, is
ZEBRIAT as follows:
£E
GROUP
—F-mE T =F
2014 2013
FHET TIET
HK$'000 HK$000
PR A& A Profit before tax 519,658 557,235
VOEER XS E 2 BB Tax at the sfatufory rates 45,322 76,134
T ER R Provision for land appreciation fax 75,159 113,037
TEER 2 RETE Tax effect of land appreciation tax 51,705 15,537
SLBESFE 2 BIEIIR Adjustments in respect of current
ML 2 #BE fax of prior years (4,227) (60)
NSyl Profits affributable to associates (545) (1,056)
BERBHA Income not subject fo fax (3,281) (35,978)
AFIRBRIE 2 AT Expenses not deductible for fax 30,219 23,109
AAEEREAENERARZ Effect of withholding tax on the distributable
AR 2 profits of the Group's subsidiaries
BB E in Mainland China 36,242 [6971)
DRBEFEZREER Tax losses utilised from prior years (157) (1,522)
RERTIEEE Tax losses not recognised 10,257 6,621
BASEEBRMEAE 2BIERS  Tox charge at the Group's effective rate 240,694 195,131
11, RATEBRRRELER 11. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS
OF THE COMPANY
ARBRMBRREECHE —T—N The consolidated profit aftributable to ordinary equity holders of the
FZA=T—BEFEARAEBRAR Company for the year ended 31 March 2014 includes a loss of
HEEGZA R EER 17,005,000 HK$ 17,005,000 (2013: HK$8,790,000) which has been dealt with
ABIL(ZT—=%:8,790,000% T) in the financial statements of the Company (nofe 35(b)).
(FIEE35(0)) -

108 | ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014
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W% W # W 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2014 ZZ—MF=A=+—H

12. DIVIDENDS

—F-mF —F-=F

2014 2013
FET FET
HK$ 000 HK$'000
Dividends paid during the year:
Final in respect of the financial year ended
31 March 2013 - HK5.0 cents (year ended
31 March 2012: HK4.0 cents)
per ordinary share 43,633 34,907
Inferim — Nil (2013: HK2.0 cents)
per ordinary share - 17,453
43,633 52,360
Proposed final dividend:
Final = HK10.0 cents (2013: HK5.0 cents)
per ordinary share 87,467 43,633

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject fo the approval of
the Company's shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
These financial statements do not reflect the final dividend payable.

. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY

EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of the basic eamings per share amount is based on
the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
Company of HK$270,020,000 (2013: HK$348,479,000), and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares of 873,778,232 (2013:
872,665,903 in issue during the year.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amount for the year
ended 31 March 2014 is based on the profit for the year atfributable
o ordinary equity holders of the Company of HK$270,020,000 (2013:
HK$348,479,000). The weighted average number of ordinary shares
used in the calculation is the number of ordinary shares in issue during
that year, as used in the basic eamings per share calculation, and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares assumed fo have been
issued af no consideration on the deemed exercise of share opfions info

ordinary shares during that year of 197,309 (2013: 15,765).
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14. ¥ - R =E

E 9L

ZE-MEZAZ+-B 31 March2014

R Cost:
£ At beginning of year
hE Addiions
HE /i Disposals/wieolf
[E 5 9% Exchange relignment

RZE-WE=A=+-F At 3] March 2014

Zithe Accumuloted depreciafion
FAfE and impaimen:
£ At beginning of year
KERHE Depreciafion provided
& duing the year
HE /i Disposcls,/writeoft
[ A% Exchange reclignment

RZE-ME=A=+-H At 3] March 2014

FEAE: Net carying amount:
RZZ-ME=R=1-8 A 31 March 2014

RZE-=F=A=1-H A3 March 2013
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

GROUP
RER  BAR
3 58 il
HHRET  Equipment  Fuminre nE B 9ERE
lond and ond and Motor Motor  Leasehold &t
buildings  machinery fixtures ~ vehicles yacht - improvements Total
FiET FET FiET FiET FiET FiET FiET
HKS000  HKS000  HKSUOO  HKSOO0  HKSOOO  HKSO00  HKSDOO
217,523 915,630 15345 23450 6,098 54026 1,232,072
- 61750 219 90 - 1,881 63,940
- 51,285 (2,679) (2,692) - (7428 [94084)
1 5 - 2 - 16 pl
217,524 926,100 12885 20850 6,098 18,495 1,201,952
14768 704716 12,160 17,963 6,098 41995 797,700
7987 61,295 876 1715 - 3,985 75,858
- 26243 (2,205) (2,446) - (35085 (66,579
8 ) f) 4 - (14 3]
2752 739759 10,828 17,228 6,098 10281 806,946
194772 186,341 2,057 3,622 - 8214 395,006
202,755 210914 3,185 5,487 - 12031 434372
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14. Y% - MBEREEE) 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont'd)
£ (&) GROUP (Cont'd)
TER FRR
Ha # e
THREF  Equipment Fumiture e BE  fERE
land and and and Motor Motor  leasehold it
buldings ~ machinery fixtures vehicles yacht  improvements Total

TET TET TET TET TET TET TET
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000 MO RSO0 HKSO00 HKSO00

ZE-ZFZA=tH-B 31 March 2013

WA Cost:
) At beginning of year 215463 883,293 13,740 21,006 6,098 46,407 1,186,007
e Addiions - 67977 2,669 2,600 - 11,445 84,691
BRERAREEL Transfer fiom properties
g (R 22) held for scle [note 22) 2,032 - - - - - 2,032
HE /i Disposals /writeoff - (35,779) (1,099] (243 - (4,301 (41418
EXAE Exchange realignment 28 139 31 87 - 475 760
RZF-ZFZA=1-8  Ar3] Morch 2013 207528 915,630 15,345 23,450 6,008 34026 1232072
Zithe Accumuloted depreciaion
RAfe and impaiment:
) At beginning of year 0853 058,023 12,208 15,802 6,098 40700 739,084
KERHE Depreciafion provided
g during the year 7913 65,825 919 2,331 - 4423 81411
e /HiH Disposols /writeoff - (19,243 (993 (243] - (3,983 (24,0062
[ 1 Exchange realignment 2 11 2 73 - 455 667
RZF-ZFZA=1-8  Ar31 March 2013 14,768 704716 12,160 17,963 6,09 41995 797700
BEHE Nef canying amount:
RZF-ZFZA=1-8 Ar31 March 2013 202755 210914 3,185 5487 - 12031 434372
RZE-ZF=R=1+-0 A 31 March 2012 208610 225270 1532 5,204 - 507 446,323
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14. 9% - BERRE(E)

AREFADE  BENMREREDF
E/190,451,0008L(ZE—=4%:
198,229,000/ 7T ) 2 13t R FAR
BRLIRTPHEOFE

AEBETLHRET  REBLEED
BERTRITERAKEREE TRTE
BEZHEM(MESD) -

AEEETREESRELEROS
BFE=7 - £ IHBHBENTH
WFRMITE 36/l

AEERBEEANFERER 2RE
B LR R T B ERER
BT

W% W # W3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2014 —Z—NFE=A=+—H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont'd)

The Group's land and buildings included in property, plant and
equipment with a net carrying amount of HK$190,451,000 (2013:
HK$198,229,000) is situated in Hong Kong and is held under a

medium term lease.

Certain of the Group's land and buildings, equipment and machinery
were pledged to banks as security for certain banking facilities granted
o the Group [nofe 31).

Certain of the Group's equipment and machinery are leased to third
parties under operating leases, further summary defails of which are
included in note 36]a) fo the financial statements.

The gross amounts of the Group's equipment and machinery held for
use under operating leases and the related accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses are as follows:

£E

GROUP
—E-mF —T—=F
2014 2013
FET AT
HK$'000 HK$ 000
AR Cost 97,764 89,187
RitE Accumulated depreciation (66,496) (64,421)
ZEDREER Accumulated impairment losses (182) (182)
FREHE Net carrying amount 31,086 24,584

ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014
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15. REW* 15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
58
GROUP
—E-mE —T—=F
2014 2013
FET BT
HK$°000 HK$ 000
REZ REE Carrying amount at beginning of year 487,878 455,590
N Additions 1,780 —
HE Disposals — (4,093
HEAREHHEE 2MEMTE22)  Transfer from properties held for sale (note 22) 6,135 -
NEER Fair value changes 37,494 30,702
B R Exchange realignment (311) 5,679
RER 2 BREE Carrying amount af end of year 532,976 487,878
REBZIEMERNTHEBES & The Group's investment properties are held under the following lease
DEHRINT terms in the following geographical locations:
—E-MNE=A=+—H 31 March 2014
a2
PRC
BB Hivi met
Hong Kong  Elsewhere Total

FET FET FET
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000

RERTE A Medium term leases 22,530 147,566 170,096
RHEFHA long term leases — 362,880 362,880

22,530 510,446 532,976
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15. REWX(E) 15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Cont'd)

—E-ZF=ZA=+—H 31 March 2013
H
PRC
B& HAth i et
Hong Kong Elsewhere Total
FET FET FHET
HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000
I EARR AT Medium term leases 22,530 — 22,530
RAFHAY long term leases - 465,348 465,348

AEBRENEBRUNEE L —IAD
¥WE - LRP RN ZREEDE
MRAIR B A 2 MIREENX - K
NRIEFRESENEZILE - HEL
RREHRENED RMBEE BB
EhfEE - AEERENFKEELE
REERYEHEMBBETEEN LB
RERARMEHER -F—NFE=A
=+ —HEHREERS32,976,000/%
T e ARRIESBEGREZREIEbHE
{ER R EAREEYE ZINREE - Pl
ZIBREBEMIGHE - 28 BN
REARFEXRGE - ARREEE
FMRN BT HREER G REETHE
ERHEERRRGEEREGERME

1Tal e °

REVMEDNRBELEEHAOEETF =
77 AEBE ZE—SFBRENMHR
RPMEE 360 °

AEE-BREMECER T —HERT
tERMARBRHRITEE 2 EM(KH
#31)

ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014

22,530 465,348 487,878

The Group's investment properties consist of one commercial property
in Hong Kong, three commercial properties in Mainland China and
two residential properties in Mainland China. The directors of the
Company have determined that the investment properties consist
of two classes of asset, i.e., commercial and residential, based on
the nature, characteristics and risks of each property. The Group's
investment properties were revalued on 31 March 2014 based on
valuations performed by Vigers Appraisal and Consulting Limited,
a firm of independent professionally qualified property valuers at
HK$532,976,000. Each year, the Company's directors decide
to appoint which external valuer o be responsible for the external
valuations of the Group's properties. Selection criferia include market
knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional
standards are maintained. The Company's directors have discussions
with the valuer on the valuation assumptions and valuation results twice
a year when the valuation is performed for interim and annual financial
reporting.

The investment properties are leased fo third parties under operating
leases, further summary details of which are included in nofe 36(a) to
the financial stafements.

One of the Group's investment properties was pledged fo a bank as
security for a banking facility granted to the Group (note 31).
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. REYEE) 15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Cont'd)
RFEZREE Fair valve hierarchy
TRINRAEEREM¥ 2 AT EE The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy of the
FWRE Group's investment properties:

RZE-NF=A=+—H
ERUT BB ERTE
Fair value measurement
as at 31 March 2014 using
EEMS  BATEE EATUEE
WwE BARE WARE
(%178) (%2F) (%£3F)
Quoted  Significant  Significant
prices in  observable unobservable

active markets inputs inputs st

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

UTHEB 2 &EM Recurring fair value FET FET FET FET
NFEE measurement for: HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
[EE3ES Commercial properties - - 42,522 42,522
TEME Residential properties — — 490,454 490,454

- - 532,976 532,976

RAFER F1EEF2EBZETE During the year, there were no fransfers of fair value measurements
ERATEAEEY  BE3ETEE between level 1 and level 2 and no fransfers info or out of level 3.
ASEEH -

BERAEIBATESEARBLATE Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised within Level 3 of
B HE the fair value hierarchy:

[GE3ZES (EE2LYES

Commercial  Residential

properties properties

FET FET

HK$'000 HK$'000

R-F—=FA—HBZKEE Carrying amount at 1 April 2013 22,530 465,348
NE Additions — 1,780
ERAFAHEEIMEMITE22)  Tansfer from properties held for sale (nofe 22) 6,135 -
NHEE Fair value changes 14,058 23,436
B 5 3% Exchange realignment (201) (110)
RZZE—E=A=+—B2KEE Carying amount at 31 March 2014 42,522 490,454
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15. REWE(E)

RFEERRERE ()

AT RREDEGERBGETERE
EHABBEZME

(VBN SE S YES
Commercial property
in Hong Kong

SRR B Y E
Commercial properties
in Mainland China

IR B R 2 EEWE
Residential properties
in Mainland China

AEEREMEZ AFHEDNERERL
BE - 2ERHMSTAELEYEL
A E BN AR B E Y X T 5
EflFhBmeEE B BELEE
{ERRMETE - ATV EFEEBELEX
BRAEIRATERSO T IBER
AR Z EAERRIIR -

ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Cont'd)

Fair valve hierarchy (Conta)

Below is a summary of the valuation fechniques used and the key inputs
o the valuation of invesiment properties:

fEERE
Valuation
techniques

BRLBA
Direct comparison
approach

BERIEOA
Direct comparison
approach

BERILBA
Direct comparison
approach

BARAEBE
BABE
Significant
unobservable
inputs
ARMEARLE
Property-specific
adjusiment rafe
ARYERARLE
Property-specific
adjustment rafe
ARMEARLE
Property-specific
adjusiment rafe

3 (i
F1IfE)

Range (weighted
average)

20%ZE-1%(-29%)
20% 1o -1%
[-29%)

-A0% % -3% (-14%)
-40% to -3%
[-14%)

-5% % 2% (-4%)
-5% 1o 2%
(4%

The fair value of the Group's investment properties is determined using
the direct comparison approach by reference fo the recent sales price of
comparable properties in the open market, adjusted for size, location,
floor level and quality of the Group's investment properties compared to
the recent sales. The fair value measurement is positively correlated to
the unobservable input that the higher the adjustment rate will result in @
higher fair value.



16. BREAPYE

FOETE

AEERE
BRESAHEEZMEHZE22)
P 5t %

FRET

AR

FRRNEARE 7

B~ )R

I EMRLD - AR

HBAFAZRH
i

RIBAR 2 5E
—FRIMOBR
nBaE D

# AEBCHREAELER

222,003,000 L(Z & — = F:
204,373,000 7T ) ($0 F5 5L B 5 18
) 2 & T M B R R 2 R HERR
B REAZSHBARIRAELS

B

W% W # W 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2014 ZZ—MF=A=+—H

16. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

SE]
GROUP

—E-NFE —T=F

2014 2013

FEx FET

HK$000 HK$000

Balance af beginning of year 1,031,826 1,247,755
Additions during the year 420,351 365,014
Transfer fo properties held for sale [note 22) (280,614) [596,385)
Exchange realignment 396 15,442
Balance at end of year 1,171,959 1,031,826
Current portion (382,669) (187,880)
Non-current portion 789,290 843,946

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
NG
COMPANY

—E-mE —T-=F

2014 2013

FET FET

HK$000 HK$'000

Unlisted shares, at cost 16,721 16,721
Amounts due from subsidiaries 1,173,276 1,198,122
Impairment * (178,794) (161,287)
994,482 1,036,835

Amounts due to subsidiaries (144,932 (222,445)

Portion due within one year,

classified as current liabilities 144,932 222 445
1,011,203 1,053,556
#  An impairment was recognised for certain amounts due from

subsidiaries with a gross carrying amount of HK$222,003,000 (2013:
HK$204,373,000) (before deducting the impairment loss) because the
respective subsidiaries had been loss-making for some time.

FE I 2013/2014
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17. WEA Rz (=) 17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

FR - RARAIREZERBERAR 2 RRK
BRME7,507,0008 (=2 —=
F:112,218,000/7T) - B AR
K%&WWE@ﬁZ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁW&
2B FARBERECMBRARETER
REKFHIR—FREE - ﬁlﬁu-l_)\;l'zll\b
BEEMBRAREFABRENBERE
BRI —FAEE - ﬁﬁ%?%%
B R R 2 R N

RARBER-_E—=F=fA=+—H%

During the year, the Company recognised an impairment of
HK$ 17,507,000 (2013: HK$112,218,000] for those amounts
due from subsidiaries. The amounts due from and to subsidiaries are
unsecured and interestfree. The balances with subsidiaries included in the
current liabilities are repayable on demand or within one year whereas
the balances with subsidiaries included in non-current assets are not
expected fo be repaid within one year from the end of the reporting

period and are considered as quasiequity loans fo those subsidiaries.

As at 31 March 2013, the Company had underiaken not fo demand

HPEXMBRARRAMETRERA repayment of the amount due from a subsidiary, Tysan Foundation
AMEE X 580,000,000/ 7T » A Limited, of HK$80,000,000 to maintain the required minimum working
BEDNERATERERECLE capital as stipulated by government authorities. The undertaking was
B® o RAHORARFERR released during the year.
TEMBRARZFHEWT : Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:
AL BRTRER AAEEL
afRExed  ERRE/RAEE ZBREBDL
Place of Nominal value of Percentage
incorporation/ issued and fully of equity
£ registration paid registered/ attributable to IEXH
Name and business share capital the Company Principal activities
“E-ME —F-=F
2014 2013
RANE(BR)ERAR (ML) & EER100AT 60 100 REFER
Tysan Foundation {Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 Invesiment holding
Limited (note 6)
RAMEIRERAR (W2 3K6) FE EBRS51,000,000/7T 60 100 AT
Tysan Foundation limited fnofes 2, 3 and ¢} Hong Kong Ordinary Foundation piling
HK$51,000,000
JETERR 3,000,00078 7T
Deferred
HK$3,000,000
RARECRP)BRAR(WF2K6) BFY L@k 25,0002 60 100 ESTHE
Tysan Construction [Macau] Limited Macau Ordinary Foundation piling
[nofes 2 and 6) MOP25,000
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17. WEA R (=)
TEMBARZFHEWT : (8£)
AL,
aft kg R

Place of
incorporation/

=t

Name

registration
and business

RABWBERRARA(MH2  3R6) BE
Tysan Machinery Hire Limited Hong Kong
[notes 2. 3 and &)
FAMETR(FE)BRAR BE
(BaE2R6) Hong Kong
Tysan Conractors (Hong Kong] Limited
[nofes 2 and &)
REMETHIRERRDA B
(BT 2K6) Hong Kong
Tysan Foundation Geotechnical limited
fnotes 1, 2 and 6)
FERRIRERAR(HEZ2) BE
Proficiency Equipment Limited (nofe 2) Hong Kong
FETREEBRARMZ2) BE
Proficiency Engineering Limited (nofe 2/ Hong Kong
RIBERDR(HE2) BE
lion Bright Limited nofe 2/ Hong Kong
ERBRRRMZE2R8) i1
Mac Proficiency Limited Macau

[notes 2 and 8)

ERTRAR
AMBRA/ RAHEE
Nominal value of
issued and fully

paid registered/
share capital

Lz 10,0007
Ordinary

HK$10,000

ERERR 200,000 87T
Deferred
HK$200,000

LRI 27T
Ordinary HK$2

TR 2B
Ordinary HK$2

AR 6,750,000/ 7T
Ordinary
HK$6,750,000

EBR2BT
Ordinary HK$2

LB 2ETT
Ordinary HK$2

L&k 25,0002
Ordinary
MOP25,000

R B R AR A

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (Cont'd)

ESNG
ZBRERDL
Percentage
of equity
attributable to TEEH
the Company Principal activities
“E-REF ZT-=F
2014 2013
60 100 HHBEE
Machinery hiring
60 100 HEEER
R AR
Project management
and provision of
consultancy services
60 100 EHE
Site investigation
100 100 BERESKER
Machinery hiring
and frading
100 100 REIERRBER
HHEE
Provision of
engineering services
and machinery hiring
100 100 HBEESRESR
Machinery
hiring and trading
100 - R TI2RT
RERAEE
Provision of

engineering services
and machinery hiring

FE I 2013/2014
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17. MBARER(E)

TEMBARZFHEWT : (8)

R,
afkEFnH
Place of
incorporation/
£ registration
Name and business
RAERBRAR (M 3) B
Tysan Management Limited fnofe 3/ Hong Kong
MEARAR i
Sun Sparkle Limited Hong Kong
SRARATA BE
Great Unison limited Hong Kong
RARBERARAF(FAREER]) BE
Tysan Investment Limited {"TIL') Hong Kong
FAMERRREBRLA BE
Tysan Property Development Hong Kong
& Investment Limited
FAREBRRA([FFRE]) B
Tysan Construction Company Hong Kong
Limited ['TCCL"|
aERERRAR(ME2) BE
Faithmark Investments Limited /nofe 2) Hong Kong
Tremend Yield Limited (#7i22) B
[note 2) Hong Kong
=RREBBRRA(H72) B
Trions Investment limited (nofe 2) Hong Kong
EEREBRAR(MZ2) B
Sure Faith Investment limited (nofe 2] Hong Kong
BEERMERRRAR(HZ2) B
Duncan Propetties Limited fnofe 2) Hong Kong

120 ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014

ERITRAR

EmRA/ RAHE

Nominal value of
issued and fully
paid registered/
share capital

iR 16,720,850/ 7T

Ordinary
HK$16,720,850
BRR2ET
Deferred HK$2

BT 28 T
Ordinary HK$2
LB T
Ordinary HK$ 1
LB 2E T
Ordinary HK$2
LR 2B
Ordinary HK$2

LB 2E T
Ordinary HK$2

LR 2B T
Ordinary HK$2
LR 2078

Ordinary HK$20

LB 28T
Ordinary HK$2

BT 28T
Ordinary HK$2

BT 278 T
Ordinary HK$2

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

ENNG) 3
ZBERDL
Percentage
of equity
attributable o
the Company
—F-ME ZT-=F
2014 2013
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (Cont'd)

Principal activities

hRER
Corporate
management

BRBE
Corporate financing
ERBE
Corporate financing

REEK

Investment holding

REEK

Invesiment holding

RALR

Investment holding

MERE
Property investment
MERE
Property investment

MERE

Property investment

BEME
Property holding

BEEK

Investment holding
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17. MIEBARRER(E) 17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

TEMBARZFHEWT : (8£)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (Cont'd)

Ha Ay ERTRAR ESNG
aMREnd  ERRE/REAEE ZREBDL
Place of Nominal value of Percentage
incorporation/ issued and fully of equity
% registration paid registered/ attributable to FTEXK
Name and business share capifal the Company Principal activities
“E-mF —T-=F
2014 2013
Dragonhill limited (4752 2) BE E@R2ET 100 100 REER
fnote 2) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Invesiment holding
RIRRERRAR(HE2) BE ERR2ET 100 100 HRERKRRERME
Great Regent Invesiments Limited (nofe 2/ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 HE RE R
Invesiment holding
and provision of
sales and
marketing services
RAFMERE(K2)BRATF) E/ R 15,500,000 %7 100 90 MERER
(Wit2-4Rk7) PRC/ US$15,500,000 Property
Tysan Property Development (Tianjin] Mainland China development
Company limited fnofes 2, 4 and 7]

Cotfontree Pacific Limited RBRUES LEmk BT 100 100 REER
(IEBRK Ordinary HK$1 Investment holding

B8l

British Virgin

Islands ("BVI")
Tysan Foundation Holdings Limited (/72 2) BRE ERk0.1 8T 100 100 REZR
[note 2) Bermuda Ordinary HK$0.1 Invesiment holding
REBRRR(ME2) &FE  EB®K10,000%T 97 97 RERK
Sparkle Key limited fnofe 2) Hong Kong Ordinary Invesiment holding

HK$10,000

RAFWE(ES)ERAA(NF2R4) FE/FEAM  58,300,000%7% 97 o7 MERRE
Tysan Land (Shenyang] Limited PRC/ US$58,300,000 Property
[notes 2 and 4) Mainland China development
RAEWE(LB)BERRR(MHF2RS) +B/HERH 20,500,000% 7T 100 100 NERER
Tysan Land (Shanghai] Limited PRC/ US$20,500,000 Property
[notes 2 and 5) Mainland China development
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17. MIEBARRER(E) 17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

122

TEMBARZFHEWT : (8)

MR,
R S E
Place of
incorporation/
£ registration
Name and business
RATRBRBERLDR(MZ2) 3
Tysan Engineering Company Hong Kong
Limited fnote 2)
RETR(BR)VERRAI(MZ2) B
Tysan Engineering (H.K.) Hong Kong
Company limited (nofe 2)
ZREBBRAR(H7#2) 5
China Garden Infernational Limited (nofe 2) Hong Kong
Alloright Invesiment Limited (#75#2) RERLEE
(note 2) BVI
lronwood Pacific limited (472#2) EBRLEHE
[note 2) BVI
Federated Resources Limited (4732 2) NBRUES
(note 2) BVI
Beneficial Enterprises Limited (#72# 2) EERUES
[note 2) BVI
ARREBRAR(H7E2) B
Red Shine Investment Limited /note 2) Hong Kong
BRREBRAR(H722) 5
Hiat Investment Limited fnofe 2 Hong Kong
EREBRBMZ2R7) £
Great Prosper limited fnofes 2 and /) Hong Kong
ERHER AR (HF2) 5
Carriway Limited fnofe 2/ Hong Kong
ERITBRAR(H72) e
Fund House limited (nofe 2) Hong Kong

ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014

ERITRAR

EmRA/ RAHE

Nominal value of
issued and fully
paid registered/
share capital

@R 10,0007
Ordinary
HK$10,000

L@k 20,600,0008 7T

Ordinary
HK$20,600,000

TR 10078 T
Ordinary HK$100
LB 100ET
Ordinary US$100
LEM100%ET
Ordinary US$100
LEM100%ET
Ordinary US$100
LR 100ET
Ordinary US$100
LER2ET
Ordinary HK$2
LR 2B T
Ordinary HK$2
LB 10078 T
Ordinary HK$100
L@ 28T
Ordinary HK$2
LB 27T
Ordinary HK$2

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (Cont'd)

RRAES
ZBERDL
Percentage
of equity
aftributable to TEXH
the Company Principal activities
—F-ME ZT-=F
2014 2013
70 70 RERK
Investment holding
70 70 REBHK
AR
Provision of
electrical and
mechanical services
100 100 REER
Invesiment holding
100 100 REER
Investment holding
100 100 RERK
Investment holding
100 100 RERKR
Investment holding
100 100 REEKR
Investment holding
100 100 REBER
Investment holding
100 100 NERE
Property investment
100 ) REER
Investment holding
100 100 REER
Investment holding
100 100 REZER

Invesiment holding
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. WEARRER(E) 17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)
FEMBRRCFENT : (&) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (Cont'd)
Bau e ERTRAR ENGT) S
aMREnd  ERRE/REAEE ZBRERDL
Place of Nominal value of Percentage
incorporation/ issued and fully of equity
% registration paid registered/ attributable to FTEXK
Name and business share capifal the Company Principal acfivities
“E-ME —T-=F
2014 2013
EEMEER(LE) BB hEl/hEIA, 500,000 7T 100 100 nEER
(Wit2K4) PRC/ US$500,000 Property
Duncan Property Management Mainland China management
(Shanghai) Company Limited
[notes 2 and 4)
PEEREREHERBLEERAT T8/ TEN 5,000,000 100 100 NERE
(Hz2Kk4) PRC/ US$5,000,000 Property
Shanghai China Garden Infernational Mainland China invesiment

Real Estate Development &
Management Company limited

[notes 2 and 4)
EREBAFHERBEEARAR  FE/FEARL  10,000,000%5T 100 100 ESH
(§1zt2R4) PRC/ US$10,000,000 Property
Shanghai Changning Duncan Property  Mainland China development
Development Company Limited
[notes 2 and 4)
BB EHEAABRAT hE /R, 100,000%7T 100 100 REDFHARSE
(W21 35) PRC/ US$100,000 Provision of
Shanghai Duncan Property Consulting Mainland China property
Company Limited fnofes 2 and 5] consultancy services
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Hiat -

1. BAREBBEZEZLNIRBRAF
EHRARSMELHIRERAR
A-Z—FENA - +=HilER -

2. BEBMBLREE -

3. EEBROHERERRE(NEBMIF
AR B ZAMEB10EET
ZEARBEERBFSEZBRIR
B2 EEIFRFRERI) - TRERE
RERAE LRE  MARNBEKE
BARMEARE 2 ERBHEZER
D ZEBBARI - EZRAF 2 EB
BB ALARBRED SR ERE
BEREDIKIL 10,0008E7T) -

4. ZFERREFEZEEMAING
BELK -

5. ZEEREDREFBEZEZEMASI
RERE-

6. RIE-MFE-—A+LR FEEH
ENRAWE(FE)BRAR AN
BARZA0%RckE - ARAHEFHRL
E— B IEHNMIBIRRMEE41(b)

7. RZE-MFE-A+OA- A%E
WHRERERARRAMBARIZ
10.2% EFR R - BRAEE SRR
—HHEBRN P BREM 40 o

ERRN _Z—=F\A=TH=EM
v

ERMFIZARRRNBARIRESRRS
HAKBZAEEREREATENE
RARERNEEFELMBAR -
EERA - FAEMMEARESIBA

BRI E AR 2 A REHE
RAZFHENT -
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17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

Notes:

1. lis name was changed from Tysan Geotfechnical Limited to Tysan
Foundation Geotechnical Limited effective on 23 April 2014.

2. Held through subsidiaries.

3. The deferred shares carry no rights to dividends (other than a fixed
non-cumulative dividend ot the rate of 5% per annum for any financial
year during which the net profit of the relevant company available for
dividends exceeds HK$ 1 billion], no rights to vote at general meefings,
no rights fo receive any surplus on a retum of capital on @ winding-up
[other than the amount paid up on such shares, provided that the holders
of the ordinary shares of that company have been distributed in such a
winding-up of a sum of HK$ 1,000 billion in respect of each ordinory

share).

4. These entifies are registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under
the PRC law.

5. These entifies are registered as Sinoforeign joint ventures under the PRC
law.

6. On 17 January 2014, the Group disposed of its 40% equity inferess in
Tysan Foundation (Hong Kong| Limited and its subsidiaries. Further defails
of the disposal are set out in note 41(b] to the financial statements.

7. On 14 January 2014, the Group acquired 10.2% effective equity
interest in Great Prosper Limited and ifs subsidiary. Further details of the
acquisiion are sef out in note 40 fo the financial statements.

8. This entity was incorporated on 30 August 2013.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or
formed a subsfantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give
defails of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result
in particulars of excessive length.

Details of the Group's subsidiaries that have material non-controlling
interests are set out below.
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17. MIEBARRER(E) 17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)
THERERRAME(RE)BR AR The information set out below represents the noncontrolling interests in
REZEMBRRA(GBAI R HE Tysan Foundation (Hong Kong] Limited and its wholly-owned subsidiaries
(BB SE ) 2 e - (collectively, “Tysan Foundation (Hong Kong| Group').

—E-mE
2014
IHER TR Z A DL Percentage of equity interest held by non-controlling inferests 40%
FET
HK$'000
DR T IR R 2 F R A Profit for the year allocated to non-controlling interests 3,415
ERVERZY S S loan advanced from a non-controlling shareholder (nofe|
B ER (KT 32,000
R B2 RS Accumulated balances of non-controlling inferests
Zetiarz at the reporting date 208,502
M : HEFEER 2EEBEARNK Nofe: The balance is unsecured, interestfree and nof repayable within one year
EHER—FNEER - from the end of the reporting period.
TRIIMRFZHE(FE)EEHRE_T The following tables illustrate the summarised financial information
—NFE=ZA=T—RUEFEZHEEH of Tysan Foundation [Hong Kong) Group for the year ended 31
BE - BB ETARREHEA March 2014. The amounts disclosed are before any intercompany
HiE - eliminations:
—E—-F
2014
FET
HK$000
Wi Revenue 2,471,234
R Total expenses (2,342,137)
FEHN Profit for the year 129,097
FRZERREAR Total comprehensive income for the year 129,097
MEEE Current assets 1,559,760
FRBEE Non-current assefs 159,653
mERE Current liabilities (1,178,074)
FRBEE Non-current liabilities (100,083)
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17.

B8 A Bl aR (42

TRITERBE(ER) EBRE"T
—WE= A=+ —BILERE 2 HBHAR
BB o B S BT A FIRE R

g5 (8

RELEXHREREFR
ARBREEB < REREFR
BRBEXRBLREREFRE

RekReSEYIRINFRE

ARFAWE(FE) REDARERZ
T—=F=A=+—HZ2EWEBR

7L ERERE-T
=t BUEEEZRER -
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17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial information
of Tysan Foundation [Hong Kong) Group for the year ended 31
March 2014. The amounts disclosed are before any intercompany

eliminations: (confinued)

—E-EF

2014

FET

HK$ 000

Net cash flows from operating acfivities 463,000
Net cash flows used in investing activities (141,228)
Net cash flows used in financing acfivities (73,297)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 248,475

No comparative information for the year ended 31 March 2013 was
disclosed as Tysan Foundation (Hong Kong) Group was a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company as at 31 March 2013.
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1 March 2014 ZZ—ME=A=+—H

. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND LOAN FROM AN

ASSOCIATE

rEE

GROUP
—F-mF T =F
(a) 2014 2013
FET FET
HK$000 HK$ 000
Share of net assets — 37,595
Amounts due from associates 359 2,464
Loans to associates - 8,150
359 48,209
less: Impairment (359) [ 349)
— 47 860

(bl

(c]

The amounts due from associates and loans to associates are
unsecured, inferestfree and have no fixed terms of repayment.
During the year, the loans to associates were fully settled during
the disposal of associates as mentioned in note ().

As at 31 March 2013, the loan from an associate included
n the Group's non-current liabilities of HK$24,560,000 was
unsecured, interestfree and would not be repayable within 12
months from 31 March 2013. During the year, a further advance
of HK$7,000,000 was received from the associate and resulting
in a total loan balance of HK$31,560,000. The loan was
setled as detailed in note 40 to the financial statements.

The Group's trade receivable balances with an associate in the

prior year were disclosed in note 24 to the financial statements.

FE I 2013/2014
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18. B NRRERENIKE — BB

BR(E)

Az

(d)

“EF-mE=f=1-8

TEBENRZFENAT

=4

Name

NEEREBRRF

Turbo Dragon Invesiment
Limited

REREIRERRTF
(IRBRETIR])
(Bt 1)

Tysan Building Consfruction
Company limited
("TBC") fnote 1)

WA EECRP)
BRARMEE])

Mac Tysan Construction
(Macau) limited /note 7)

FETEREBRAF
(HE 1)

Tysan Project Management
Limited (note 1)

RZAEHBERAT
(IZAE5))(Wz2)

Tysan Trading Company
limited ("TTCL"| fnote 2)

ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014

18.

(d

e 81T

B FEREE
Particulars

and nominal value
of issued

shares held

LRREE
17871
Ordinary share
of HK$ 1
ERRmEE
1787
Ordinary share
of HK$ 1

BREBEREE
1R
Ordinary share
of MOP1 each

LEREE
1787
Ordinary share
of HK$ 1

LRRmEE
18T
Ordinary share
of HK$ 1

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND LOAN FROM AN
ASSOCIATE (Cont'd)

Particulars of the principal associates are as follows:

AL EE
REEBE
Place of
incorporation/
registration

and business

&g
Hong Kong

BB
Hong Kong

RF

Macau

e
Hong Kong

B
Hong Kong

AEEES
PrERREEE Dt
Percentage of
ownership interest

attributable
fo the Group
“E-mF —T-=F

2014 2013

50 50

- 49

- 49

- 49

- 40

Principal
activities

REEK

Investment holding

REHEFR
BETRE
Provision of
building and

construction works

REEEFTR
BETHE
Provision of
building and

construction works
REETR
BETR
Provision of
building and

construction works

—KES
Generdl frading



18.

i D FVE R R R — RO
AZHRK(E)

(d)

P16

FE1hE
k]

TEMENRZFEWT - (8F)
iz -

1. RIE-OEF—A+tB- &
EEHEANZSEEZRD
Wi - BALESHEZE—F
SFIBFP TSI ()] ©

2. RIZE—NFE—A+EH K
SELEERZERZ2HR
#eBBRLEFHE P
EEANIGEAR R

FRILEERRIBEFERE
Bl UNSIl 3Ly B RN
SEMEBERRARBOER L
AEEMENR  -EERR &
NEMERE QRS SIBATER
Tk e

TRITAEE @R E NEE
RZBERR 2 ERMTEER -

=N

AR POET)

s
tE AR R EWE

ENSEN: /Nl S

fREAE

R B R AR A
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31 March 2014 ZZ—MF=A=+—H

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND LOAN FROM AN
ASSOCIATE (Cont'd)

(d)

Particulars of the principal associates are as follows: (Cont'd)
Notes:

1. On 17 January 2014, the Group disposed of ifs entire equity
interest in these entities. Further defails of the disposal are set out
in note (e)(i) below.

2. On 17 January 2014, the Group disposed of its entire equity
interest in this entity. Further defails of the disposal are set out in
note (e)[ii) below.

The above fable lists the associates of the Group which, in the
opinion of the directors, affected the Group's share of profits
of the associates or formed a substantial portion of the Group's
interests in associates. To give details of other associates would,
in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial information
of the Group's associates that are not individually material:

—E-mE —T-=F

2014 2013

FET TET

HK$000 HK$ 000

Share of the associates” profit for the year 3,301 6,402

Share of the associates’ tofal

comprehensive income 3,541 6,512
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's

interests in associates — 47,860

FE I 2013/2014
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18. BtEARERERRE —BEHER
A 2ER(E)
le) HEBELT
il MZE-—=F7\A+XAH

(CABMA=Z—=F+—
AZTZBzHRB&ES
1) ARBIZEREMBAR
ARARERERNELLE
(IBxEDFIL—HEE
W Bt RAREER
BERE17,150,000%8 7T
(E# 9,800,000/ LA H
& B 7,350,000 T
RBERRER)MSEE
HEERFREETREY
19%BRERFARETE
RREARE/EERRE
7,350,000 (% &

BEIRHE] ZREAR
ETRHER-ZT—NF
—AtERRR -

TREERLEIBREERTK

B AEEUEBERRSR

RETREREMBARZ
EffEsm - RARETR
& 2 & 182,184,000
B MHERERE
9,800,000 7% Tt B A & E

RHERMREREET
12 HEHH11,984,0005%

TTZEHE RNERGFEE
ﬁT’ﬁ‘%WﬁE%’w

ERRARETRRLE

X 1% - /,%%iﬁﬁ&%uz;%
ARETRERNARIEEL
—FHELRR]
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18.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND LOAN FROM AN
ASSOCIATE (Cont'd)

(e)

Disposals of associates

fi

On 16 August 2013 [as amended by a supplemental
agreement dated 22 November 2013), TCCL, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, and Mr. Fung Chiu
Chak, Victor (“Mr. Fung"), entered into a sale and purchase
agreement pursuant fo which, TCCL disposed of its 49%
equity interest in TBC, and the interestfree shareholder’s
loan of HK$7,350,000 owing by TBC to TCCL, at
a cash consideration of HK$17,150,000 (of which
HK$9,800,000 is for the disposal of the equity inferest
and HK$7,350,000 is for setlement of the shareholder’s
loan] to Mr. Fung {“Tysan Building Construction Disposal”).
The Tysan Building Construction Disposal was completed
on 17 January 2014

Upon completion of the Tysan Building Construction
Disposal, the Group does not have any interest in TBC and
its subsidiaries. The loss on the Tysan Building Consruction
Disposal of HK$2,184,000, representing the difference
between the equity interest disposal consideration of
HK$9,800,000 and the Group's inferests in TBC as at the
date of disposal of approximately HK$ 11,984,000, was
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for
the year.

Immediately after the completion of the Tysan Building
Construction Disposal, TBC, which is confrolled by Mr.
Fung, became a related company of the Group.
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18.

31 March 2014 ZZ—MF=A=+—H

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND LOAN FROM AN

ASSOCIATE (Cont'd)

le]  Disposals of associates (Cont'd)

(i

On 16 August 2013 [as amended by a supplemental
agreement dated 22 November 2013, TIL, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, and Miss Jennifer Kwok,
entered info a sale and purchase agreement pursuant fo
which, TIL disposed of its 40% equity inferest in TTCL and
the inferestfree shareholder’s loan of HK$800,000 owing
by TTCL to TIL, at a cash consideration of HK$4,400,000
of which HK$3,600,000 is for the disposal of the equity
interests and HK$800,000 is for the setflement of the
shareholder's loan) to Miss Jennifer Kwok (“Tysan Trading
Disposal”). The Tysan Trading Disposal was completed on
17 January 2014.

Upon completion of the Tysan Trading Disposal, the Group
does not have any inferest in TTCL and its subsidiaries. The
loss on the Tysan Trading Disposal of HK$9,151,000,
representing the difference between the disposal
consideration of HK$3,600,000 for the equity interest
and the Group's inferests in TTCL as af the date of disposal
of approximately HK$ 13,687,000, net of the release
of related exchange fluctuation reserve upon disposal
of approximately HK$936,000, was recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year.

Immediately after the completion of the Tysan Trading
Disposal, TTCL, which is confrolled by Miss Jennifer Kwok,
became a related company of the Group.

Further details of the Tysan Building Construction Disposal and

Tysan Trading Disposal are sef out in the Company's circular

dated 25 November 2013.
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19. AEHERE

19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT

£E
GROUP

—E-mE —ZT—=F

2014 2013

FET TET

HK$000 HK$ 000

REMBRAKRE - AR Unlisted equity investment, at cost 1,250 -
R_E-NME=A=+—H HE As at 31 March 2014, unlisted equity investment with a carrying

1,250,000 B (ZF—=% : ®)ZK
IR ERRARRETIE - AR
AEQTEMG ZEERA - EFRR

amount of HK$ 1,250,000 (2013: Nil] was stated at cost less
impairment because the range of reasonable fair value estimates is so
significant that the direcfors are of the opinion that its fair value cannot

HAHEREEASEAE - AEEEEN be measured reliably. The Group does not intend 1o dispose of it in the

AHRELE -

20. RAVESFABRZRE

REB LM ZBRINRE - mAFE

RebBP2 I ETRARS - B
ATME

PR —T-=F=A=+—HZKE
EIIAREEERE  YRFAHER

FEMm

ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014

near future.

20. INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR

LOSS
=8
GROUP
—F-mE —F-=F
2014 2013
FET  TET

HK$'000 HK$'000

Listed equity investments in Hong Kong,

at fair value — 3,838

Unlisted investment funds in Mainland China,
at fair value - 268,535
- 272,373

The above invesiments af 31 March 2013 were classified as held for
frading and were disposed of or redeemed during the year.
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. B8 21. INVENTORIES
58
GROUP
—E-F =%
2014 2013
FET TET
HK$000 HK$ 000
[Rk Raw materials 1,818 5,570
TR EM Spare parts and others 11,791 9,594
13,609 15,164
. HEHEE Y 22. PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE
£E
GROUP
ZE-mE —T=F
2014 2013
FET BT
HK$000 HK$ 000
F19) At beginning of year 720,600 466,250
BREEYE  WERREPITE14)  Tanster to property, plant and
equipment (nofe 14) — (2,032)
BREREMEMTS) Transfer fo investment properties (note 15) (6,135) -
BEREERTMEMRT6) Transfer from properties under
development [note 16) 280,614 596,385
FRLEZME Properties sold during the year (396,173)  (341,01¢)
bE 5 AR Exchange realignment 5,734 1,013
F4R At end of year 604,640 720,600
REBBGMHEE Y WEMNTR AL The Group's properties held for sale are located in Mainland China
B E R4S - and are held under long term leases.
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23. BEEHY

24.

EPEBAHNIRZRK
REFPEBENTIZZTE

FIEEZ & KA B EARF
AR ERE MR R B 1R
R B RN R R

FEIL & 5 AR X

AEBREAMITRBESTEER
K- BRTEIEPZFH—REEH
RI0OBA(RKRE KR - AL
BB L E MR - BER XAt
BASEE 2 BN E SRR EBERERFRE
FAR  SMEEERRBRETZE
o AEEYENZFEFHE TR
RIREMEES - BEEZRFTGR

23. CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS

&8

GROUP
—E-mFE —T=%
2014 2013
FEr FET
HK$000 HK$'000
Amounts due from customers for contract works 107,127 99,643
Amounts due to customers for contract works (739,788)  (528,161]

(632,661) (428,518

Confract costs incurred plus recognised
profifs less recognised losses to date 9,641,367 7,572,655
less: Progress billings received and receivable  (10,274,028) (8,001,173)

(632,661) (428,518

24. TRADE RECEIVABLES

The Group has established credit policies that follow local industry
standards. The average normal credit periods offered fo trade customers
other than for refention receivables are within 30 days, and are subject
to periodic review by management. In view of the aforementioned and
the fact that the Group's frade receivables relafe to a large number of
diversified customers, there is no significant concentration of credit risk.
The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements
over ifs trade receivable balances. Trade receivables are non-inferest-

GR o bearing.
£E
GROUP
—B-mFE =%
2014 2013
FHET TIET
HK$000 HK$ 000
FEWE 5 ER3 Trade receivables 777,991 743,938
RUE Impairment (194) (8,876)

FEWESENT BEEK—FEEAR
HIE6,405,000BTT(ZE—=F : —
R RS Q76180008 T)  HE
HEEHERER TARELIBEEPHE
TR

ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014

777,797 735,062

Included in the trade receivables is an amount due from a
related company of HK$6,405,000 (2013: a then associate of
HK$618,000), which is repayable on similar credit terms to those
offered to the major cusfomers of the Group.
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24. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Cont'd)

NEZRHMMREFENE  BEES An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the reporting
period, based on the invoice date and net of provision, is as follows:
&=
GROUP
—E-F ~—ZT-=F
2014 2013
FET FAT

FEWE B -
Q0RNA
Q1HZ180H
181 HZ360H
360 A £

FRRES

FKE SRFRERB 2 ZBIT

F1

B R REREE ()
MsH A AT T 2 SRR
P 5t %

R

HK$ 000 HK$'000

Trade receivables:

Within 90 days 463,772 456,725
91 to 180 days 1,231 751
181 to 360 days 1,789 14,105
Over 360 days 771 194

467,563 471,775
Retention receivables 310,234 263,287

777,797 735,062

The movements in provision for individual impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

]

GROUP
“E-NFE —T=F
2014 2013
FET FET
HK$ 000 HK$ 000
At beginning of year 8,876 2,922
Impairment losses recognised (nofe 7) 194 5,842
Amount written off as uncollectible (9,009 -
Exchange realignment 133 112
At end of year 194 8,876

FE I 2013/2014
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24, BB ZRRE)

ATA L EKRE SRR 2R E &
& /194,000 T(Z & — = F:
8,876,000 7 ) = 3L A I B U E 2 ik
M E BB A R E AR (E /5 194,00078
TT(ZE—=%:8,876,000/&7T) - {&
JIl B BB FE MR 55 R ok B B 1 A 75 R
ZEFAM  HEHRUZEEF RN
TREZERIE -

BRI FRIES T TR a2 BRE S
BRI AITIT -

BB ERE
BB 1 BEQOH
ERHOIBE2/0H
EiBHEE 2708

BB TR (E 2 R URE RS
BIMENELNTREFAR -8
HE Y EIRE < ERGURE A8 BAL
EEERHRHLBNBELRFER -
KEBERLER  ALREFRA AR
FEEEVEEAREH ALFNHE AT
2ERE - S ELERZ S EFEL
WIERE
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24. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Cont'd)

Included in the above provision for impairment of trade receivables of
HK$194,000 (2013: HK$8,876,000) is a provision for individually
impaired trade receivables with a gross carrying amount before
provision of HK$ 194,000 (2013: HK$8,876,000). The individually
impaired trade receivables relafe to customers that were in financial
difficulties and the receivables from these customers are not expected fo
be fully recoverable.

The aged analysis of the frade receivables that are not individually nor
collectively considered fo be impaired is as follows:

£E

GROUP
—E-mF —ZT—=F
2014 2013
FET AT
HK$000 HK$'000
Neither past due nor impaired 720,388 701,419
1 to 90 days past due 53,618 18,598
91 1o 270 days past due 2,853 14,857
More than 270 days past due 938 194
777,797 735,062

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate fo a large
number of diversified customers for whom there was no recent hisfory
of default. Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent cusfomers that have a good frack record with
the Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the Company are
of the opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary in respect
of these balances as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are sfill considered fully recoverable.
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25. FENFIE - AT R HEMERFIE 25. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

WM - e
BB ERR 2R &

BNRENE 2

H it FEUTIR
RfE

Ve

% A7
GROUP COMPANY
—g-mF -F-=F —F-NF —T-=F
2014 2013 2014 2013

FET FEr FET FET
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000

Deposits for acquisition of
items of property, plant

and equipments 4,905 3,909 - —
Prepayments and deposits 45,854 31,631 177 3,039
Other receivables 35,068 20,601 3,323 —
Impairment (3,226) (2,000) - -
82,601 54,141 3,500 3,039

less: Prepayments, deposits and

FRBEEL other receivables
BRHIE - F]e classified as
N E A fEUERIA non-current assefs (7,859) (3,909) — —
74,742 50,232 3,500 3,039
Hith e SRR ERE s BT The movements in provision for impairment of other receivables are as
follows:
&6
GROUP
—E-mFE —T—=F
2014 2013
FET FHET
HK$000 HK$000
F14 At beginning of year 2,000 -
ERAREEEAES) Impairment losses recognised fnofe /] 1,217 2,000
e R Exchange realignment 9 -
FE At end of year 3,226 2,000
BE2EREZ 3,226,000/ (ZE Except for other receivables of HK$3,226,000 (2013:
— =4 : 2,000,000 7T ) E #h FE Y 2% HK$2,000,000) which was fully impaired, none of the above assets
BN - EtBEWEBBKFE - mE is either past due or impaired and the financial assefs included in the
A it sh 7 4 R0 B B AR A AR 4 above balances relate to receivables for which there was no recent
8% EWGIEE # - history of default.
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26. PTHESRIA

ESTE:
BEAERDEEZSH

nEBETED

ARBERINZEMNEEE  LWEEHE
FIZER o JEEROTAE TR A F3E
B8 B 4,0920008T(ZF—=
% :2,831,00087T) Jyst ANFR 2B
mERA - ZEeMIAZEREERAR
FERSE - LATAESRTIAMIR S
DEEERFATHYEENEL 2
BUHIEETT

27. RERBITHT  ERFRRE

26. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

&8

GROUP
—E-mE —ZT—=F
2014 2013
FEr FET
HK$000 HK$'000
Interest rafe swaps 4,113 8,205
Portion classified as a non-current liability — (8,205]
Current liabilities portion 4,113 -

The Group has entered into various inferest rate swaps to manage
its interest rate exposures. Changes in the fair value, nef, of non-
hedging derivatives amounting to gain of HK$4,092,000 (2013:
HK$2,831,000) were credited to the statement of profit or loss during
the year. The carrying amounts of those financial instruments are the
same as their fair values. The above fransactions involving derivative
financial instruments are conducted with creditworthy financial insfitufions
with no recent history of default.

27. CASH AND BANK BALANCES, TIME DEPOSITS AND

PREIIE S RESTRICTED CASH
58
GROUP
Hat —E-mFE —T—=F
Nofes 2014 2013
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$000
EHER - Time deposits:

—HibEBER — other time deposits [a) 551,441 429,662
— BT — structured deposits (b) 554,778 99,920
TR BE Total ime deposits (c) 1,106,219 529,582
Be RIBITHET Cash and bank balances a) 441,688 488,870
XEHRE Restricted cash (d] 3,241 60,207
BET Total 1,551,148 1,078,659

ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014
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27. CASH AND BANK BALANCES, TIME DEPOSITS AND
RESTRICTED CASH (Cont'd)

£
GROUP
—F-mF T =F
2014 2013
FE FET

HK$ 000 HK$'000

Denominated in:

HiT Japanese yen ("YEN') 6 7
e United States dollar ("USD") 664 77,683
BT Euro ("EUR") 902 17,042
BT Macao patacas ("MOP’) 6,093 43,453
IN:H: Renminbi ("RMB”) 934,708 362,188
BT HK$ 608,775 578,286

ARETATERMABRAEMES &
i AREREA 2 JMNEE RGP K 4
B SERNEERRTE  AREEE
BBRBIBETINEEB ZRIT BA
RERBREMLER -

et -

(o)  ROFEFREABOIEFINEHELZ
FEHMEERME - ERERAAE
TRZEFHR - At XEXNEAT

BT AREE 2 ARR S H KM

» YR B 2 TE BT R R R ER A

B RITEGERA ALY E2

WEL 2 EREZZRIT -

o A

b) HBUEFASEEETIHER LT
WA RBERATR - BT
BRAEENRTEETT R EX
EHRRARTRAEFE 2 EB K
g AEEIBRABIEFIARER
FREDHR -

1,551,148 1,078,659

RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through authorised banks o conduct foreign exchange
business.

Nofes:

(@) Cash at banks eams interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit
rates. Time deposits are made for varying periods of between seven days
and six months depending on the immediate cash requirements of the
Group, and earn inferest at the respective time deposit rates. The bank
balances and deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with no
recent history of default.

(b)  The structured deposits are fime deposits with fixed maturity dates and
are stated at amortised cost. The interest rates on the structured deposits
fluctuated based on changes in currency exchange rate between USD
and HK$ or changes in the London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR").
The Group uses sfructured deposits primarily to enhance the return on
investment.
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27. BERBITHET  EHRERRE 27. CASH AND BANK BALANCES, TIME DEPOSITS AND

PREIRE (&)
Mt : (%)

() HBREERRERRER=([EAKE
B2 TE BRTE 3K 137,485,000 (=
T-ZF E)-

d REFEARESR RNETRITE
FREBEBRTMEZC KA
#3,241,0008 L(Z & — = F:
60,207,000/87T) + A Ar2iEE

kI
28. BNEZRAKEIE 28.

WERHFE  BENEFRARESH

RZEREAMTIAT -

ENESEN Trade payables:
Q0HMA Within 90 days
Q1HZ180H 91 to 180 days
180 HLAL Over 180 days

ERRES Retention payables

FEET IR Accruals

BNEZEFO/RE - —RERHR
NAtHE-
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RESTRICTED CASH (Cont'd)

Nofes: [Contd]

[c)  Included in the balance are time deposits of HK$ 137,485,000 (2013:
Nil] of which the original maturity is more than three months when
acquired.

(d)  Pursuant fo relevant regulations in the PRC, deposits of HK$3,241,000
[2013: HK$60,207,000) received from the pre-sale of properties under
development under designated bank accounts can only be used for the
consfruction of the relevant properties.

TRADE PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

An aged analysis of the frade payables as at the end of the reporting
period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

e 27

GROUP COMPANY
“E-mE -T-=F —¥-WF —T-=F
2014 2013 2014 2013

FBT TET FET TIET
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000

147,805 217,083 254 89/
438 224 - -
1,995 4,190 - -
150,238 221,497 254 897
152,494 79,759 - -
331,343 337,211 1,338 3,618
634,075 638,46/ 1,592 4,515

The frade payables are non-interestbearing and are normally seffled on
90-day terms.
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OTHER PAYABLES, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND RECEIPTS
IN ADVANCE

Other payables are non-inferestbearing and have an average ferm of
one month.

As at 31 March 2013, included in other payables, deposits received
and receipfs in advance of the Group and the Company was a
deposit in the sum of HK$6,000,000 received from Fortunate Pool
Limited ("Fortunate Pool”), under a conditional sale and purchase
agreement dated 12 November 2012 and a supplement agreement
dated 21 December 2012 (collectively, the “Agreement’) between
the Company and Fortunate Pool in relation to a proposed disposal
of 40% equity inferest in Tysan Foundation (Hong Kong) Limited (the
"Proposed Disposal’). Fortunate Pool is a company wholly owned by
M:r. Fung. During the year ended 31 March 2013, legal proceedings
HCMP 2892 of 2012, HCMP 207 of 2013 and HCMP 841 of
2013 relating fo the Proposed Disposal [collectively, the “Chien legal
Proceedings’] were instituled by Mr. David Chien in the High Court of
Hong Kong (“High Court’). Pursuant to an order by consent dated 19
December 2013 granted by the High Court, the injunction granted by
the High Court in respect of legal proceedings HCMP 2892 of 2012
and HCMP 207 of 2013 had accordingly ceased to have effect on
such terms as set out in the sefflement agreement and the Chien legal
Proceedings were unconditionally withdrawn by consent, which had
been disclosed in a circular of the Company issued on 25 November
2013. For further information, please refer to an announcement
published by the Company on 19 December 2013. By a lefter dated
1 July 2013, Fortunate Pool elected to rescind the Agreement and the
Company refunded all deposits paid under the Agreement.

DEPOSITS RECEIVED

As at 31 March 2014, deposits received represented down payments
received from customers upon signing of the pre-sale contracts of
properties under development and sale confracts of properties held
for sale of the Group. The Group conducted the pre-sale of properties
when they were sfill under development. As confracted with customers,
deposits were paid to the Group upon the signing of the pre-sale
contracts. Such amounts held by the Group are nonvinterestbearing.
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31. MTESRITEE 31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS
£/ GROUP
“E-mE “E-=F
2014 2013
ER ER
Fil= ik
Effective Fffective
inferest rate HR THT  interest rate R TiEr
(% Maturity  HK$000 % Moty  HK$000
mER: Unsecured:
FITER Bank loans 1434 20142017 481,824 14-3.4 20132017 720,636
BER Secured:
FITER Bank loans 1727 20142017 13,780 1727 20132017 20,174
HEER Instalment loans 1.7 20142031 90,462 1.7 20132031 95018
104,242 115,192
RITEEEH Total bank borrowings 586,066 835,828
—E-mF ZT—=F
2014 2013
FET &L
HK$000 HK$ 000
RETHNEB A - Analysed info:
AR THBENERZRITEE Bank borrowings repayable:
R—FRSIREKE Within one year or on demand 252,112 109,786
EF In the second year 109,351 235,301
FFEFRF(DHEEREMF) In the third to fifth years, inclusive 156,281 417,802
HRnE Beyond five years 68,322 72,939
586,066 835,828
AR—FAHEE  DER Portion due within one year,
mBaE B classified as current liabilities (252,112)  (109,78¢)
REIE S long term portion 333,954 726,042
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MEIRITEEE)
BEADHME - KEI’TAT@EFE
KIBEFRZIRITERK 9,940,000 7T
(ZTB—=%F:1 O,QQQ,OOO/%I) g2t
ABNEA BIRITEE - jf“*ﬁi%f?—ﬁ
AR ERIEE 2 FIRITER -

RIBRTER B HEAR - HERT
ERCEERESHEA  RZT—WF
F—E-ZHZR=+—B2BR—
F AR ERKEX R 2242,172,000
B T k92,857,000 T BN &
—MERZT—=F=ZA=+—RH2
ARE_FLF2113,191,000% T
§242200,0008 L R —MF
RZZE—=F=RA=+—HZEARE
“HEEERF(BREEME)XINZ
162 38 OOOi% 7T &427742,000
Hf+ HZﬁmﬁiutiﬁz
68,322,000/8 7T} 72,939,000 T °

R-ZZE-—MEF=R=+—H" ' ~&H
ZERRTEEDHAEENREH
RZEHEE D A /198,976,000
TT(ZE — =% :210,056,0007% 7T )
%22,530,0007% (= T — = %
22,530,000 7T) 2 L RIET - R
B ER(PHEE 14) R —IER B MR (M
15) V1A -

$‘EEIZ?%%TEE#%EHF“4 549,000 7%

T(ZE—=%:11,353,00087T) s

REABR AT RBATIRHER -

peoh - ARBREHEETHBAR(Z
=5 WBAR R -HEEERR)

BiGZ fEERMERER(MEE3S) -

AKBRABRITEEGR TN KRG

B RITEEZRAEEA A FEM
E o

AERE 2 RITRFABTTATE
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INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS (Cont'd)

For the purpose of the above analysis, the Group's bank loans in the
amount of HK$9,940,000 (2013: HK$16,929,000) containing
a repayment on demand clause are included within current interest-
bearing bank borrowings and analysed info bank loans payable within
one year or on demand.

Based on the maturity terms of the bank loans, the amounts
repayable in respect of the bank loans are: HK$242,172,000 and
HK$92,857,000 payable within one year or on demand as at

1 March 2014 and 2013, respectively; HK$113,191,000 and
HK$242,290,000 payable in the second year as at 31 March 2014
and 2013, respectively; HK$162,381,000 and HK$427,742,000
payable in the third fo fifth years, inclusive as at 31 March 2014 and
2013, respectively; HK$68,322,000 and HK$72,939,000 payable

beyond five years as af 31 March 2014 and 2013, respectively.

As at 31

secured by cerfain of ifs land and buildings, equipment and machinery

March 2014, the Group's secured bank borrowings were

(nofe 14) and an investment property [note 15) with carrying amounts of
HK$198,976,000 (2013: HK$210,056,000) and HK$22,530,000
(2013: HK$22,530,000), respectively.

The Group's unsecured bank borrowing amounting to HK$4,549,000
(2013: HK$11 of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region.

,353,000] is guaranteed by the government

In addition, the Company has executed guarantees in respect of
borrowing facilities granted to certain of its subsidiaries (2013
subsidiaries and an associate] (nofe 38).

Al of the bank borrowings of the Group bear interest at floating interest

rates. The carrying amounts of the bank borrowings approximate o their

fair values.

The Group's bank borrowings are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.
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32. EERIE 32. DEFERRED TAX

RAEER  EERBAREREEZE

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year are

BT as follows:
EEHIEEE Deferred tax liabilities
&5 GROUP
BE
it =]
By wER
HEME  Allowance in
Revaluation excess of B
of investment related  Withholding #E
properties  depreciation taxes Total
FET FET FET F/ET
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000
RZZ—ZFMA—H At Apil 2012 (83,503) (21,034) (104,174 (208,711)
FRNBIEEFTA  Deferred tax credited/(charged)
(0% ) ZIEE fo the statement of profit or loss
I (FIEE10) during the year [note 10) (7,343) 3,024 691 (2,728]
BBl A — K Withholding tax paid
BB A RIE S on repatriation of eamings
Z B 2 A from a subsidiary in
Z TN Mainland China - - 1,249 1,249
BEE 5, 8B Exchange realignment (1,197) — (1,301) (2,498
RZE—=%F At 31 March 2013 and
=RA=+—Rk 1 April 2013
—E-=FNMA—H (92,043) (17,110) (103,535) (212,688)
FRNBIEEKFTA  Deferred tax credited/(charged)
(%) Z fo the statement of profit or loss
EREBIAE(FIFE10) during the year [note 10} (10,275) 3,298 (36,242) (43,219
b 5 G Exchange realignment 129 — 479 608
RZZE—MmF At 31 March 2014
=g=+-7 (102,189)  (13,812)  (139,298)  (255.299)
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32. EEMIA(E) 32. DEFERRED TAX (Cont'd)
RAFEERN  BERBARBEREEZE The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year are
BT : (F) as follows: /Conta)
BREHEEE Deferred tax assets
&8 GROUP
+ it ER
&
Provision
of land
appreciation
tax
FAT
HK$ 000
RZE——FMA—H At 1 April 2012 99,980
FARBRRTR Deferred tax charged to the statement of profit or loss
ZIRERE (M 10) during the year [nofe 10} [15,537)
RIS Exchange realignment 1,058
RZE—=5=A=1+—H At 31 March 2013 and
kZZE—=FMA—H 1 April 2013 85,501
FRARBRRTR Deferred tax charged to the stafement of profit or loss
BRI 10) during the year [note 10) (51,705)
DEE 5% 8% Exchange realignment 776
RZZE-ME=A=+—H At 31 March 2014 34,572
AEERBEBELEZHREBER The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of HK$304,665,000
304,665,000/ T(= & — = & (2013: HK$255,622,000) that are available indefinitely for offsetting
255,622,000/ 7) A F{EE R Hi 4K against future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses
HILRBB 2 RRIZRRERTAN arose. Deferred fox assets have not been recognised in respect of these
RPELEEFERZMBRRMEE 22 losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for
BRANTSERARELENREE - B some fime and it is not considered probable that faxable profits will be
FERTUE N AN T BB B HRED available against which the tax losses can be ufilised.
ATRE ©
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32. IETEMIE(E)

REFERXAEFATERAER
&) NP BRI B INE (R E M E
SIMREET IR BB BB 10% B
B ZBERER-_TTN\F-—A—RE
ARWERN —ETLFT-_A=1—
AZ&ELZZ - i E R EEIN
REEMERZERARARTE - Al
ARE AR 2 EMBRB R - Fit - K
SEAERER R AT 2 B R
R —TENF-A-—BEELZAF
k3 2 BB BN TR -

ARFEH T B2 W BT
BRER -
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W% W # W 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2014 —Z—E=A=+—H

32. DEFERRED TAX (Cont'd)

Pursuant fo the Corporate Income Tax ["CIT") law, a 10% withholding
tax is levied on dividends declared 1o foreign investors from the foreign
investment enterprises established in Mainland China. The requirement
is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to eamings after 31
December 2007. A lower withholding fax rate may be applied if there
is a fax freaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the
foreign investors. The Group s therefore liable for withholding taxes on
dividends distributed by ifs subsidiaries established in Mainland China

in respect of eamings generated from 1 January 2008.

There are no income tax consequences attaching fo the payment of
dividends by the Company to its shareholders.
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33. SHARE CAPITAL
Shares
—E-ME Z—ZT-=F
2014 2013
FE FET
HK$°000 HK$ 000
Authorised:
2,000,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.10 each 200,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid:
874,665,903 (2013: 872,665,903)
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
87,466 87,266

34.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, 2,000,000 shares of
HK$0.10 each were issued for cash at a subscription price of HK$1.46
per share pursuant to the exercise of the Company's share options for

total cash consideration, before expenses of HK$2,920,000. An
amount of HK$819,000 was transferred from the share option reserve
o the share premium account upon the exercise of the share options.

Share options

Defails of the Company's share option schemes are included in note 34
o the financial stafements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

On 28 August 2002, the Company adopted a share option scheme (the
2002 Scheme') for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards
fo eligible participants who confribute to the success of the Group's
operations. The 2002 Scheme was terminated and replaced by a
new share option scheme with effect from the conclusion of the special
general meeting held on 8 August 2012 [the “2012 Scheme).

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently permitied to
be granted under the 2012 Scheme must not in aggregate exceed 10%
of the shares of the Company in issue at any time. No share option has
been granted under the 2012 Scheme during the year.
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BRERTEI(E)

ARRZ ZE—ZFEBMEQNT :

B#Y

Purpose

AERSEE
Eligible Participants
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34.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Cont'd)

A summary of the 2012 Scheme of the Company is as follows:

REZR(EERNEGUREBRENRBEZR2 AR H R
BUALDE R/ FEMMBAR(EE]) R/ SIAEEEFKED
ARA AR S EAER XY  ERMEREERHIAR
ZRERZEE  FRAER2EEBEMENERLAEE A
B ARAARRRADRRRZ BEANGE kS AREAER
SRENZ LB N RERMER AR 7%?@2% ¥
BUBRHERBUNARBREXRBLUBERIAREEELZ
%E%EE\ °
To enable the Board of Directors [the “Board”) to grant options fo
reward eligible participants who, in the sole and absolute opinion of the
Board, would contribute or benefit or had contributed or benefited to the
business, development and growth [and any other aspect whatsoever]
of the Company and/or any of the subsidiaries (*Group”) and/or any
of the entities in which any member of the Group holds any equity
inferest, and fo provide incentives fo eligible participants to perform their
best in achieving the goals of the Group in the interests and benefits of
the Company and the shareholders of the Company as a whole, while
at the same time allowing the eligible participants o share the fruits of
the Company's business achieved through their effort and confribution,
as well as fo enable the Group fo recruit high quality employees who
are valuable to the management and long term business and financial
goals and success of the Group.

ERZ2E_Z-_FHE AL BIRRBISRERMEA sk
ERAERMEBIFRBEE TRAE SRABEXEFR(EREH
17 BT RB N TER ) A EEFREER R UK HART)
R/ SERMHBARLR, REMEREE ¥  BRIER(RE
AEMAE)EERI AR AEBEAARE - FAA - BE - R
BA - fEmsRERGInEm  BE RS MHRIRE) &
P D ZBBBERaERH -

A person who is entitled fo participate in the 2012 Scheme, being any
fulHime or parttime employees, executives, officers or directors (including
executive, non-executive and independent non-executive directors)
of the Company or any of the subsidiaries or any of the interested
entiies and any confractors, advisors, consultants, agents, suppliers or
providers (of, for example, goods, plants and machineries, materials or
services), customers, disfributors, business ally or joint venture partners
of the Group who, in the sole and absolute opinion of the Board, will
contribute or benefit or have contributed or benefited to the business,
development and growth (and any other aspect whatsoever) of the
Company and/or any of the subsidiaries and/or any of the interested
entifies.



34. MBEIRETEI(E)
RRBlz —E——FHEHPENMT :

(&)

A T 81T B AE R
RERERABETHET
BAZBDH

Total number of ordinary shares
available for issue and the percentage
of the issued share capital that it
represents as at the date of

the annual report

BH2EE L Ea
Maximum entitlement of each
participant

RIEEREVAREES 2R
Period within which the securities
must be taken up under an option

TR AT /B 1A B IR i 2 A (K HARR
Minimum period for which an option
must be held before it can be exercised

RN B 5IR
Amount payable on accepfance

34.

R B R AR A

W% W # W 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2014 ZZ—MF=A=+—H

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Cont'd)
A summary of the 2012 Scheme of the Company is as follows: [Contd)

87,206,500 RE B R EBITRA 2 10% (GrEEERRAR AR
RERIAEHB-_T——FN\A/\NHZ872,665903 K E#E/THk
)

87,266,590 ordinary shares and 10% of the issued share capital,
on the basis of 872,665,903 shares in issue as at the date of the
Company's special general meeting on 8 August 2012.

NSBBPMER 1218 A BEARR D HITRAZ 1%
Shall not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company in any
12-month period.

KEmEZRRNTERERBEE SN I 2ARA - I
Pl < 2IE B MR R AR E BAERT 1+ (10)F A
To be defermined by the Board on a casetocase basis at its absolute
discrefion and nofified to the grantee thereof, provided that the expiry
date of the said period shall not be later than ten (10) years from the
date of grant of the option concemed.

HHEZRBIBETE -

To be determined at the discretion of the Board.

Nil.
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34. BRETEI(E) 34. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Cont'd)
ARBZ —E—_FFEHENT A summary of the 2012 Scheme of the Company is as follows: (Cont'd)
(&)
EETEECREE ST ERBAEM = -
Basis for determining the exercise price In respect of any particular option:

RITEBRERENADR 2 GRRNDER AEEREEE_F
—ZFi 3z BRRNEHBERER R T ER2RERERE R
E o HETEENSINUTRERRSE

the price per share payable to the Company on the exercise of the
option as may be decided upon and prescribed by the Board on o
casetocase basis, bearing in mind the purpose of the 2012 Scheme,
in its absolute discrefion upon the grant of the option, provided that such
exercise price shall not be less than the highest of the following:

()  BfpzmEfE:

the nominal value of a share;

b BRERLEH (AREXRH) REBXMcERRERMEZ
B HE : &
the closing price of a share as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotation sheet on the date of grant of the option, which
must be a business day; and

€ EEBRERLEHNLO)/ELXANBIMZEARER
PR 2 B PRI {8 & 3k
the average closing price of the shares as sfated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotations sheets for the five (5) business days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the option, or

BRBRE( LX) E()f) 2TREMER)  JRAEERRE
TR CFHEATAREETRRE) N BN T FHERE
2SN EAETREZRRTRRE -

where applicable, the exercise price for the option concerned (referred
fo a fo [c] above] as may be adjusted by the Board from fime fo time
pursuant fo the rules of the 2012 Scheme concerning adjusiments of,

inter alia, the exercise price upon the occurrence of any relevant event
as defined in the 2012 Scheme.

AEIZ BT FH “E-CEHEE T —F \AN\BEF 10 F BRINAF KL
The remaining life of the scheme RZZBZZF\ALRAREZ EERREREER -

The 2012 Scheme remains in force for a period of ten (10) years
commencing from 8 August 2012 and expiring at the close of business
hours of the Company on 7 August 2022.

AR I T A AU B 3t iR Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or o vote
RREG LREZER o at shareholders” meefings.
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Cont'd)

—ET_FiE) (a] 2002 Scheme

FRAREBE-TT _FEIHARTT
iz BT

F9) At beginning of year

FRTTE

R At end of year

RB|ERK - LEAHRITEZRE
S

=

RBE-_Z——%=H=1—H
FEEREZBREZ X TER
1,177,000 (& 70.3%& T
FE0468T) AR AKERE
E_T—=F=A=+—BL#F
B ERERBRER 107,00078
T © FRLERERBIERX -

RBE-Z—ME=A=+—H
L E 171 2,000,000 17 B e 1
B 5#172,000,000 AR 22 A
A%+ LA K 200,000 7 LA AR
%2,720,0007% 7T B 17 4 (B (31
FRETTRSAD) - FIFENE R
RIMFE3S

RBREARREZHEZSHH
HRER RE_TT_F5
g ARRUE(CE-=F:
2,000,000 17 ) B AR A& W RTTHE °

Exercised during the year

The following share options were outstanding under the 2002
Scheme during the year:

—E-MEF —B—=F
2014 2013

g3 Ik
@ Bk 1TEfE e
Weighted LS Weighted 28
average Number average Number
exercise price of options  exercise price of options
5719 F 5754 T
BT ‘000 BT 000

HK$ HK$

per share per share
1.46 2,000 1.46 2,000
1.46 (2,000) - -
- - 1.46 2,000

No share opfion was oufstanding as at the end of the reporting
period.

The fair value of the share options granted during the year ended
31 March 2011 was HK$ 1,177,000 (HK$0.3 to HK$0.46
each), of which the Group recognised a share opfion expense

of HK$107,000 during the year ended 31 March 2013. No

share option expense was recognised during the year.

The 2,000,000 share opfions exercised during the year ended
31 March 2014 resulted in the issue of 2,000,000 ordinary
shares of the Company and new share capital of HK$200,000
and share premium of HK$2,720,000 (before issue expenses),
as further detailed in note 33 to the financial statements.

At the end of the reporting period and up fo the date of approval
of these financial statements, the Company had no (2013:
2,000,000) share options outstanding under the 2002 Scheme.
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34. BRETEI(E)

(b) =F—=4Fitdl

REBEE_Z-—NF=A=+—H
Eiﬁ&ai?ttlﬁuxﬁﬁﬁfy#&%
ER T _FHETUER
RERERL - 176 FHRK
X TMEERIRITERBAE

35. &

(a) ZFH

RAFERBEFEASERZE
TREAEHRNPHHRR2EGEE
BEREPHRZ2T -

REFIIELEERZBBEHR
&P - RE B B B
NEZ B EFEEREREN
BORERE

ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014

34. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Cont'd)

() 2012 Scheme

During the year ended 31 March 2014 and up fo the dafe of
approval of these financial stafements, no share option under the
2012 Scheme was granted, exercised, expired or lapsed and
there is no outstanding share option under the 2012 Scheme.

35. RESERVES

(a)  Group

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity of the financial statements.

Pursuant fo the relevant laws and regulations for Sino-foreign
joint venture enterprises, a portion of the profits of the Group's
subsidiaries which are registered in the PRC has been transferred
fo statutory reserves which are resfricted as fo use.



35. f&iB(#&)

(b) 2 A]

W=E-—FNA—H
AEEER

EREERXER

DARRHES I 2 SRR B X

—=_—

= —

35. RESERVES (Cont'd)

AT Apil 2012
Loss for the year

Total comprehensive
expense for the year
Equityseffled share option

arrangements

FEERMENZ 2012 final dividend
AR S
“E-=FhHRS

declored and poid
2013 interim dividend

RZE-=F=A=F—8 At 31 March 2013 and

R=Z-=#MA-H 1 Apiil 2013
AEREH Profit for the year
EREERELR Total comprehensive income

for the year
TfeRERE Exercise of share opfions
“Z-ZFRERREMAZ 2013 final dividend
RER S declared and paid

RIE-ME=A=1—H A 31 March 2014

(b) Company

R B R AR A

W% W # W 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2014 ZZ—MF=A=+—H

RIPEER BRERE

Share  HIARE Share  REEF
it premium  Confributed opfion  Retained @z
Notes account surplus reserve profits Total
TET TET TET &L TET
HK$000 — HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
560,322 29,950 712 207994 798,978
- - - (10,208)  (10,208)
- - - (10,208)  (10,208)
- - 107 - 107
12 - - - [34907)  (34,907)
12 - - = (17453) (17453
560,322 29,950 819 145426 736,517
- - - 90,488 90,488
- - - 90,488 90,488
33, 34 3,539 - (819 - 2,720
12 - - S (43633 (43,639)
563,861 29,950 - 192281 786,092
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35. R&B(E)

(6]

2 A ()

RRFHABBERARBRN
LR RER—NAN—F2&
BEHEMBAZMBERRRND A
FEBLERBARACHETRN
ZHEEZHE  RE-NN\—%F
BREDRE BEETHERT
ARRAA] AR BER A 2 IR
B

BE-_ZT-WNE=-A=+—H1Lt
FE 2% 90,488,000/ (=
T — =4 : [51810,208,000%
TO) BRI B AR FIEZR
17,507,000 (=% — =
£:112,218,000% 7T ) & *
E-FHWNBARSIEEZI
125,000,000 (=T —=
FoE) - HE-_T-=F=A
S+-BLEFEZEENBESR
ARE)ETH B A FTURE 2 i
BUA 110,800,000587T °

36. EEMNZH

e

TER A

AEERBEEEHEOZH - UHE
WNEBNTF=2=1ERH &
MEAETH=E(ME14) RERE
WE(HEE15) - HABR—RIT
ERBPRBEP I MEMITE R
MERERDRAERFELEEH

%o
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35. RESERVES (Cont'd)

(6] Company (Contd)

The confributed surplus of the Company represents the excess of
the fair value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant
to the Group reorganisation in 1991 prior to the listing of the
Company's shares, over the nominal value of the Company’s
shares issued in exchange therefor. Under the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, the Company may make distributions
fo its members out of the contributed surplus under certain

circumstances.

The profit of HK$90,488,000 for the year ended 31 March
2014 (2013: loss of HK$10,208,000) included impairment
of amounts due from subsidiaries of HK$17,507,000 [2013:
HK$112,218,000) and gain on disposal of partial interest in
a subsidiary of HK$125,000,000 (2013: Nil). The loss for the
year ended 31 March 2013 also included dividend income
of HK$110,800,000 received from certain subsidiaries of the
Company.

36. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(a)  As lessor

The Group leases cerfain of its machinery (note 14) and
its investment properties (note 15) under operating lease
arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms ranging from three
fo thirty six months. The terms of the leases generally also require
the tenants and customers fo pay security deposits and provide
for periodic renfal adjustments according fo the then prevailing
market conditions.



. REENZHE)

(o) TEBHBEA(E)

RBEHR  AEEREREHE
PREPRL A HAEEH
AR AN B 2 R R Ex R R R
SHRBIT -

—FR
“EERTF(BREEMF)

(b) 1ERAEA

$%E@ﬁm%ﬁ%ﬁw AR
HERNT =2+ S
ﬁ%?%“*%% f€~=1
BEkETHS

RBEIE - REBBETAH

HREHAON A TFHZ KKK
RN AEEIAT

—FR
F_EFhE(RRERME)

ARBRRBERRY EEALE
BOR(—E—=F &)

[ ]
R B R AR A

W% W # Wi NOTESTO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 March 2014 ZZ—ME=A=+—H

36. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (Cont'd)

(a) As lessor (Contd)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had tofal future
minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable operating
leases with its tenants and customers falling due as follows:

&8

GROUP
—F-mF T =F
2014 2013
FET FET
HK$000 HK$000
Within one year 19,943 12,158
In the second o fifth years, inclusive 12,583 1,110
32,526 13,268

(b) As lessee

The Group leases certain of ifs office properties, warehouses,
staff quarters and certain machinery under operating lease
arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms ranging from three
fo seventy ftwo months.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had tofal future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases

falling due as follows:

58

GROUP
—E-mFE =%
2014 2013
FET T
HK$000 HK$ 000
Within one year 10,129 26,322
In the second fo fifth years, inclusive 6,032 6,249
16,161 32,571

The Company did not have any operating lease arrangement at
the end of the reporting period (2013: Nil).
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37. EIE
B b SCHTE 36(b) st 2 R e TR A E

Sh - RRERIR - REBEE THIER
I

M W RREARIREYRE

—BAETA) - BR1ERE
— DB - BRETH

RERTFYRIBETR

—BETA - BR1ERE
—BERE - BRI

MR ARBLEERAIE(Z

#
—=F )

[l of
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37. COMMITMENTS

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note 36(b)
above, the Group had the following capital commitments af the end of
the reporting period:

&8
GROUP
—F-mF T =F
2014 2013
FET TIET
HK$000 HK$'000
Property, plant and equipment and
investment properties:
— contracted, but not provided for 58,803 10,208
— authorised, but not contracted for 8,907 -
67,710 10,208
Construction works relafing fo properties
under development:
— contracted, but not provided for 1,104,842 1,300,361
— authorised, but not contracted for 491,816 248,493
1,596,658 1,548,854

The Company had no significant commitments at the end of the
reporting period (2013: Nil].



38. HAREME

TR B A R A A
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38. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

RIEER - RREBWMEAELEE At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not provided for
ZHAREBEWT n the financial stafements were as follows:
] N
GROUP COMPANY
—E-mE —T-=F ZZ-Nf —T-=F
2014 2013 2014 2013
FET FAT FET FAT
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$ 000
SLE 1A Guarantees given fo financial
AT AL institutions in connection with
—REEER general credit facilities
Méa T2 H#IR granted fo:
—MIB AR — subsidiaries - - 954,323 1,500,490
——fBE AT — an associate — 51,280 — 51,280
HEARES Guarantees in respect of
RATAL performance bonds
tEHZ IR - in relation to:
—MEAR — subsidiaries 533,328 342,818 533,328 342,818
——MBEE AT - an associate - 35,229 — 35,229
533,328 429,327 1,487,651 1,929,817
39. BEALRS 39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
BREBENZSHBEREREMM I - K Save as disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group
SENFREBMBEALIITIRS : had the following transactions with related parties during the year:
(o) EEEFEA LK EERF {a)  Outstanding balance with related parties
Fﬁ&iﬁﬁﬂi AN B N T Details of the Group's balances with its associafes and related
REBERRRIBHREZFBED B companies as at the end of the reporting period are included in

ﬁﬂ%%ﬁﬁW&S&M 1&
%é%@ﬂﬁ%%mmﬁ%ﬁ
B FARAKEEZHERT

BRHKEO6,779,000# 7T ° B"iﬁ
HHIR - ANGR B B TS AR ) B
ERAL - REEEFRME T
2 FERE B IR E 38

notes 18 and 24, respectively, fo the financial statements. The
maximum amount due from a related company outstanding during
the year was HK$6,779,000 as disclosed pursuant fo Section
161B of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. Guarantees
given by the Group fo financial insfitutions in connection with
general credit facilities granfed fo its associates at the end of
the reporting period are included in note 38 fo the financial

stafements.
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39. BEALRS(Z) 39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)
(b) FEELEEEASZHH (b)  Compensation of key management personnel of the
Group
&8
GROUP
—EF-mFE ZT=F
2014 2013
FiET FIET
HK$000 HK$ 000
ySELISEEN Short term employee benefits 81,024 60,242
PARRHE 2 1+ 2 BB AR AE % 1 Equity-setfled share option expense - 107
Em&E7 Postemployment benefits 149 168
ENTEFEEEAR Total compensation paid fo
2 EmaeEE key management personnel 81,173 60,517
EREEMEFRERTBEHRE Further defails of direcfors' remuneration are included in note 8 fo
PEE8 the financial statements.
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fc)

(d)

BB 2 BFE 1) Al S 7R
TERFFESZAMXS -

(1)

(2)

RBEEZZT-—=F=A
=+-BLEEE AR
ETIRAMARARZHER
ARAIRGEB)ERA
AN HRETRERERT
1249606,400,000 % 7T °

BEZZT—WNF=A=1—
AIEFE  RARETRER
RABGH T —=FN
A—HEZ-Z—NF—A
THtREBEIRRAEE
X T E 1B B 563,000 7T
§ 897000 T : Mgk =
E-WFE—A+NBEZ
T-NF=RA=+—HH
RAARMAREX [ ERE
% 144,0007% 7t & 90,000
BTBE-Z—=F=A8
=+—HBI1FE : 842,000
&7t 1,020,000%87T) °

AKEEEBENRREBZIK
TRINZFRS

BE_Z—=%=A=+—H
LEE AEBERETRER
ABRBEZARFERE L E
ERBHREZZENF  KER
7,282,000/ T - ZEMERE
BURETASEEMERER
FEEBMIEHLE -

AR EZE () (c)2) R (d) B FEE
RSN R B MR 18le) - 40 &
Al (b) prit 2z W e th & SR IREAK L
THRAETOAZRRENBERS

R B R AR A

W% it & W 5 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

(c)  Other transactions with TBC and TTCL, related
companies of the Group:

(d)

(1)

(2)

During the year ended 31 March 2013, TBC subcontracted
engineering and mechanical works of approximately
HK$66.4 million to Tysan Engineering (H.K.) Company
limited, a subsidiary of the Company.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, TBC and
TTCL paid management fees of HK$563,000 and
HK$897,000, respectively, for the period from 1 April
2013 to 17 January 2014; and HK$144,000 and
HK$90,000, respectively, for the period from 18 January
2014 1o 31 March 2014 [year ended 31 March 2013:
HK$842,000 and HK$1,020,000) to the Group,
respectively.

These fransactions were enfered into by the Group and ifs related

companies in accordance with the terms of the agreements.

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Group sold
properiies held for sale fo its key management personnel and their
close family members for a consideration of HK$7,282,000.
These properties were sold according to prices and conditions

similar to those offered to other non-related customers of the

Group.

The related party fransactions in respect of items (c)(1), (c)(2) and (d)

above and the acquisition and disposals as detailed in notes 18(e),

40 and 41(b] to the financial statements also constitute connected

fransactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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40. W — BB AR 2 BEMER

R-E-—=FN\AT BEBRHA=
T-=Ft—A-t-HZHRBRE
i) ARARZEEEZEMBLARES
EHEERAARRARETIREC2E
MEARRARETRR(TPE)ERAF
([TBCCL) » REBH B 49% # 2a 2 B
ZRAIUER DS Bl BERE
MEBR AR BTBCCLUE BMAR
D)2 20% i J B A R A R RAY
TBCClz % BAREREF 31,560,0007%
7T HERER129,412,000% T (H
1 97,852,00078 7T AR B BB IR
WAz BHER 31,560,000 TARE
ERRER) (TEBE]D -

TBCCLA R - BRE BB B TRIR -
REFZETRHEWM 18] %
AT E & A B 2 PSSR B R
129,412,000/ T AN B & H AR
REFLEBRE HRED KT EME—
BRFEARETRE - FREETRASK
PR BB 2 282 AR THER 2
BOR - AN AR B ERERRARET
1240% ke - RAKEERFRETLR
W% £.63,412,0008 7T - IR A&
EEBESEHEARARILERESR
A% MENRIRARETIRER
KD IR BRER LR 2 80% &
Q8% - AEEEBEBKBER
WEBERAR AR 2 10.2% 5 o A
WK —T—FE—A+MHERK
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W% W # W 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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40. ACQUISITION OF ADDITIONAL INTEREST IN A

SUBSIDIARY

On 16 August 2013 (as amended by a supplemental agreement dated
22 November 2013], Duncan Properties Limited, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, and Tysan Building Construction
(China) Limited ("TBCCL"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of TBC which
was a then 49% owned associate, enfered info a sale and purchase
agreement pursuant fo which, Duncan Properties Limited acquired 20%
equity interest in Great Prosper limited from TBCCL and the interest-
free shareholder's loan of HK$31,560,000 owing by Great Prosper
Limited to TBCCL at a cash consideration of HK$129,412,000 (of
which HK$97,852,000 is for the acquisition of the equity inferest in
Great Prosper limited and HK$31,560,000 s for the setflement of the
shareholder loan) (“Great Prosper Acquisition”).

TBCCL has underiaken that, immediately after completion of the Great
Prosper Acquisifion, it applied the total proceeds of HK$129,412,000
received from the Great Prosper Acquisition in repayment of all its
shareholder’s loan and distributed the remaining balance by way of
dividend to its sole shareholder, TBC, prior fo the consummation of the
Tysan Building Consruction Disposal (note 18lel[i]). TBC then disfributed
the whole amount being received as dividend fo ifs then shareholders.
Since the Group then owned 49% equity inferest in TBC, the Group
received a dividend of HK$63,412,000 from TBC. As the Group
directly held 80% and indirectly held 9.8% equity interests in Great
Prosper Limited through Duncan Properties Limited and the 49%owned
then associate, TBC, respectively, the Group effectively acquired 10.2%
interest in Great Prosper limited through the Great Prosper Acquisition.
The Great Prosper Acquisition was completed on 14 January 2014.
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BEYRARHEBER DR 2 EH#
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7L(91 F 66,000,000 T 2 KB
F (BN B 129,412,000% 7T & &2
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ACQUISITION OF ADDITIONAL INTEREST IN A
SUBSIDIARY (Cont'd)

Upon completion of the Great Prosper Acquisition, Great Prosper
limited became an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.
The Great Prosper Acquisition did nof result in any change in confrol
by the Company over Great Prosper limited and such acquisifion was
accounted for as an equity fransaction. Accordingly, the debit balance
of HK$32,989,000, between the net outflow of HK$66,000,000,
being the consideration of HK$129,412,000 and the dividend
received of HK$63,412,000, and aggregate amounts of the
carrying amount of non-controlling interest of HK$16,916,000 and
51% share of the loan from the then associate of HK$3 1,560,000,
of HK$16,095,000, was recorded in the retained profits in the
equity. The remaining 49% share of loan from the then associafe of
HK$ 15,465,000 was eliminated with interest in an associate.

Further details of the Great Prosper Acquisition are set out in the
Company's circular dafed 25 November 2013.

PARTIAL DISPOSAL OF INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(@) On 30 June 2012, the Group disposed of its 5% equity inferest
in Jetroyal Limited, a then 80%-owned subsidiary, to a direcfor of
Jefroyal Limited at a consideration of HK$68,000. The difference
of approximately HK$813,000 between the consideration and
the non-controlling interest’s share of assets and liabilities at the
date of disposal was debited to the Group's retained profits.
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41.

PARTIAL DISPOSAL OF INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(Cont'd)

(bl

On 16 August 2013 (as amended by supplemental agreements
dated 18 August 2013 and 22 November 2013), the
Company and Fortunate Pool entered info a sale and purchase
agreement pursuant to which, the Company disposed of its
40% equity inferest in Tysan Foundation (Hong Kong Limited
and an interest-free shareholder's loan owing by Tysan
Foundation (Hong Kong] Limited to the Company, to Fortunate
Pool for a cash consideration of HK$ 157,000,000 [of which
HK$125,000,000 is for the acquisition of the equity inferest in
Tysan Foundation (Hong Kong] Limited and HK$32,000,000
is for the sefflement of an inferestfree shareholder's loan) (“Tysan
Foundation (Hong Kong] Disposal’). The Tysan Foundation (Hong
Kong] Disposal was completed on 17 January 2014,

Immediately after the completion of the Tysan Foundation
[Hong Kong) Disposal, Tysan Foundation (Hong Kong] Limited
became a 60%owned subsidiary of the Company. The financial
results of Tysan Foundation (Hong Kong) Group continued to
be consolidated info the Company's consolidated financial
statements and such disposal was accounted for as an equity
fransaction.

The debit difference of HK$48,087,000 between the
consideration for the equity inferest of HK$ 125,000,000 and the
carrying amount of non-controlling interests of HK$173,087,000
was recorded in the refained profits in the equity.

Further details of the Tysan Foundation (Hong Kong) Disposal are
set out in the Company's circular dated 25 November 2013.
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42. ZEREs 2T A 42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
RBESMR SHEERTIAZREEN The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments
K as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
£zH GROUP
TREE Financial assefs
“2-pE “F-c=F
2014 2013
BATE
AAB#Z
il
A E Financial
THEE assefs
EHXR  Available- &Rk atfairvalue
URE forsale FEWEIE  through profit
loansand ~financial @5 loonsand or loss - held &t
receivables assefs Tofol  receivables  for frading Toldl

FEr FiEr FiEr TET L TAT
HKS000  HK$000  HK$OO0  HKSOOO  HK$O00  HK$000

AfnERE Availableforsale investment - 1,250 1,250 - - -
BERAZRA Amounts due from associates - - - 2115 - 2,115
BeNAZER Loans to associates - - - 8,150 - 8,150
BATEAABSEZRE  Invesiments ot fair value

hrough profit or loss - - - - 373 72373
B SER Trade receivables 777797 - 777797 735,062 - 735,062
EftRelza Other receivables 31,842 - 31,842 18,601 - 18,601
THER Time deposits 1,106,219 - 1,106,219 529,582 - 529 582
XBHRe Restricted cash 3,241 - 3,241 60,207 - 60,207
BeRBNER Cash and bank balances 441,688 - 441688 488,870 - 488870

2,360,787 1250 2362037 1842587 272,373 2114960
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42. BERED 2ERMTAE)

£E(E)

EHERER
Hib TR
iTEeRIA
HaBEE
RE-RBENR 8RN

Trade payables

Other payables

Derivative financial instrumens
Inferest-bearing bonk borrowings
Loan from on associate
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42.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (Cont'd)

GROUP (Contd)

Financial liabilities

i It gt
2014 2013

BOYHE BATE

i ABEZ ARG

TRAE SRAR

-HFEE il

E%  Finonciol fHHE  Financidl

BARSIEZ  lobiliies of BASI8z  licbilifes of

SMEE  fairvolue SHEE  fairvole

Financial through Financial through

liabilities ot profit or liabilties o profit or
amorfised  loss - held @5 onofsed  loss-held &t
cost  for trading Tofal cost  forrading Toldl
FEr FiEr FiEr TET TEL L
HK$000 — HK$O00  HK$O0O  HKSOOO  HKSO00  HKS000
302,732 - 302732 3012% - 301,256
11,527 - 11,527 6,188 - 6,188
- 4113 4113 - 8,205 8,205
586,066 - 586066 835828 - 835828
- - - 24,560 - 24,560
900,325 4113 904,438 116/,832 8,205 1,176,037




[ ]
R B R AR A

W% W # W 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2014 ZZ—MF=A=+—H

42. wEREns eI E(E) 42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (Cont'd)
A7) COMPANY

TREE Financial assets

“E-MFE —T—=fF

2014 2013

BEXk BRk

P8 FEMRIB

Loans and loans and

receivables  receivables
FE FET
HK$°000 HK$ 000

HoA e WK IE Other receivables 3,323 —
RITHETT Bank balances 5,504 257
8,827 257

SRas Financial liabilities
—E-ME —T—=%F
2014 2013
1l il
cRaE SRIAE
Financial Financial
liabilities ot liabilities at

amortised cost amortised cost
FET FHET
HK$000 HK$ 000

RHIE A E 2 5B Amounts due to subsidiaries 144,932 222 445
PR E HBR Trade payables 254 897
Hip IR Other payables 125 109

145,311 223,451

£ 2013/2014 165
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43. TRT R A FESREE 43. FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
AEEREZEHFH(FERAEBAA The Group enters info derivative financial instruments with various
f; R RSB TAESRT counterparties, principally financial insfitutions with AAA credit rafings.
A -fTEeMT A(REMNXRISE)EA Derivative financial instruments, including interest rate swaps, are
BEIBHRERT B - ZEEMAZIET S measured using forward price method. The model incorporates various
ABRBAZUE  BRERDHERNE market observable inputs including the current market price and interest
AR o rafe curves.
Tﬁ']ﬂﬁgﬁﬂﬁzﬁggﬁﬁﬂiﬁ,z/&i@ The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of the
ATEERRE Group's financial instruments:
R-E-NFER-F—=F=F=+— Assets measured at fair valve as at 31 March 2014 and 2013:
HZ L FETEZEE -
58 GROUP
“E-pE -F-ck
2014 2013
NTEERR DFEERR
Fair value measurement using Foir vlue measurement using
R £ EN i £ EX
2 ] RR  TUEE mEHE EE  TUER
(18) B ABE B A% (#1B) 8AFE BAYE
Quoed  ($2B)  (£3F) Qued  (£2B)  ($3E)
pice  Significant  Significant pice  Signiicent  Significont
inacive  observable  unobservable nocive  obsenable  unobsenvoble
markefs inputs inpuls B mores inputs inputs ot
level 1] flevel2)  (level3) Total (level 1] leel2 (vl Totol

T T 241 241 TET TAT TAT TET
HS000 SO0 HKSO00 HKSOO0 HKSO00 HKSOO0 HKSO00 kSO0

BATEHABRZRE  Ihvesments of fir value
thiough proftor loss - - - - 3838 268535 - W3
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31 March 2014 ZZ—MF=A=+—H

43. FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Cont'd)
Liabilities measured at fair valve as at 31 March 2014 and 2013:
GROUP
“%-pF e S
2014 2013
AV EER DB ERA
Fair value meosurement using Fair value mecsurement using
R D E R £ £
TEkE 8E  TUER [ gz AIER
($18) B AEE BA%E (B1B) &AHE  BARE
Quoed  (£2B)  ($3B) Quoed  ($2B)  ($38)
price  Significant ~ Significant pice  Signficant  Sigrificont
inacive  observable ~unobservable iacive  obsevable  unobservoble
markefs inputs inputs st markels inpuls inpuls a3t
level 1] flevel2)  (level3) Totol lee 1) feeld el Totol
T TEr TEr 273 T TEL TAL T
HS000  HKSO000  HKSO00  HKSO00 RSO0 HKSO00 AKSO00 SO0
- 403 - 4113 - 8205 - 8205

The Company did not have any financial assets and financial liabilities
measured at fair value as at 31 March 2014 (2013: Nil).

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
befween level 1 and Level 2 and no fransfers into or out of Level 3 for
both financial assets and financial liabilities (201 3: Nil).
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W% W # W 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2014 —Z—E=A=+—H

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES

The Group's major financial instruments include cash and bank
balances, restricted cash, time deposits, frade and other receivables,
investments at fair value through profit or loss, derivative financial
instruments, frade and other payables and bank borrowings. Defails
of these financial instruments are disclosed in the respective nofes fo
these financial statements. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how fo mitigate these risks are sef out
below. Management manages and monifors these exposures fo ensure
that appropriate measures are implemented in a timely and effective

manner.

Credit risk

The Group's principal financial assefs are cash and bank balances,
restricted cash, fime deposits, and frade and other receivables.

The credif risk on bank balances and time deposits is limited because
the counterparties are banks with high creditratings assigned by
infernational creditrating agencies.

The Group's credit risk is primarily atfributable to its trade and other
receivables. Management monitors each individual trade debt on
an ongoing basis and the Group's exposure to bad debts is not
significant. The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk,
with the exposure spreading over a large number of counterparties and
customers. Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's exposure
fo credit risk arising from frade and other receivables are disclosed in
nofes 24 and 25 fo the financial statements.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Contd)

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure fo changes in interest rates is mainly attributable
fo its interestbearing bank borrowings. Borrowings af variable rates
expose the Group to interest rafe risk. The Group currently does not
have an interest rate hedging policy. However, management monitors
the Group's interest rate exposure and considers entering info inferest
rate swaps fo reduce its exposure fo inferest rate fluctuations should the
need arise.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity fo a reasonably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held consfant,
of the Group's profit before tax (through the impact on floating rafe
borrowings| and the Group's equity [before any impact on tax).

£E
GROUP
BREL AL A
20, Ced)
FIZE 3 Increase/
Increase (decrease)  REFRED*
in interest in profit Decrease
rate  before tax in equity*
% FAET FET
% HK$000 HK$000
—E-mF 2014
RITEK Bank loans 1 (5,877) -
TESBRITE Derivative financial instruments 1 2,000 —
—E-=F 2013
RITER Bank loans 1 (8,377) —
ESBMIA Derivative financial instruments ] 2,000 —

© TRERERT

*

Excluding retained profits
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2014

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Cont'd)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates mainly in Hong Kong and Mainland China with
most of its transactions seffled in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. In
the current year, all of the Group's bank borrowings are denominated in
Hong Kong dollars.

Management monitors the Group's currency exposure on an ongoing
basis and considers entering into forward currency confracts when the
need arises.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity af the end of the
reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the Euro exchange
rates, with all other variables held constant, of the Group's profit before
tax (due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities).

£
GROUP
BRBLADRA
2,/ Orid) g
EZ L Increase/ 0,/ (R4 )*

Increase in (decrease)  Increase/
exchange in profit (decrease)
rate  before tax in equity*

% T AT
% HK$000 HK$ 000

f Hong Kong dollar weakens

against Euro

f Hong Kong dollar strengthens

against Euro

2013

If Hong Kong dollar weakens

against Euro

f Hong Kong dollar strengthens

against Euro

5 45 -
5 (45) -
5 852 -
5 (852) -

*

Excluding refained profits
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44. BIBEBEEBFERBEK(E) 44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Contd)

BB LG Liquidity risk
AEEZARRERNMARTEEER The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity
BREDEHEERM 2 BRFTE - K of funding and flexibility through the use of bank borrowings. The
SETHRAEEIZESION  BRA Group regularly reviews its major funding positions to ensure that it has
RSB BRI H B T o adequate financial resources in meeting ifs financial obligations.
BIBEATRARBIRRN - ATEIIARE The maturity profile of the Group's and the Company’s financial
BNARARBERR oM A E2H liabilities as at the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual
B undiscounted payments, is as follows:
] GROUP
—F-MF
2014
12/8A AR
REREE Less than 185 SENE @t
On demand 12months  Tto5years  Over 5 years Total

TEn FEn FiEr TEn FEn
HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000

EREHEN Trade payables - 302,732 - - 302,732
Eft R Other payables - 11,527 - - 11,527
fTEEmIA Derivative financial instruments - 4,113 - - 4,113
MERTRE* Inferest-bearing bank
borrowings’ 16,929 236,056 266,343 68,322 587,650
RENREERMBAT Guaranteed in respect of
{2 iR performance bonds in
relation fo subsidiaries 533,328 - - - 533,328

550,257 554,428 266,343 68,322 1,439,350
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44. BEREMEEBERBER(E) 44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Cont'd)

mEBETEE(E) Liquidity risk (Cont )
iz
RE(a) GROUP (Confd
e
2013
1218A R
RERER Less than 1E5% SENE @5t
On demand 12monhs  Tiodyears  Over 5 years Total

TET TiET TET THET TiET
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000

ENESER Trade payobles - 301,256 - - 301,256
Eft MR Other payables - 6,188 - - 6,188
(TESRTA Derivative financial instruments - - 8,205 - 8,205
MERTRE* Inferest bearing bank
borrowings” 27727 82293 654,779 72939 837,738
RE—-BBERRZER loan from an associate 24,560 - - - 24,560
SLETBHRER—REBERE  Guarontees given fo financial
Bt —REEEHRM insfitutions in connection with
BT ER general credit facilfies
granted fo an associate 51,280 - - - 51,280
RROREZRMTALT  Cuarontees in respect of
feiti 2 performance bonds in
relaion fo:
-HEAF - subsidiaries 342818 - - - 342818
LN - an associdte 35,229 - - - 35,229

481,614 389,737 662,984 72939 1,607,274

* RZE—HNER-_ZE—=F=H * Included in interest-bearing bank borrowings are bank loans of
—t+—HB WEETEERESE HK$16,929,000 and HK$27,727,000 as at 31 March 2014 and
RERETEE FERAEE 2013, respectively, which confain a repayment on demand clause
MR ERKERERZRITEZS giving the lender the unconditional right to call the loan at any time and
5106,929,0003& 7t & 27,727,000 therefore, for the purpose of the above maturity profile, these amounts are
7T Eit o gt B BIEROA WS 0 Z classified as on demand.

FERONBRARERENEE -
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MEELTERE ()
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TEFEeRBREMBEMBZIEEE
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AEBETERREZER TEENE
HRASERGE—MENKRER - BR
RITER 2GR RZT—NE=A
=+—B - FHEHRNI12E A AAE
243,045,000 T(Z T — = F:
93,091,000% ) : R—ERF(BIE
BREME)FEf 276,283,000 T(=
T — =4:671,708,000% 7T ): B
T 68,322,000 T(—F
—=%:72,939,000/7T) °

NS

KRBT HE Amounts due fo subsidiaries

ERERER Trade poyables

EfteNE Other payables

RIHHEERMBRARSE  Cuarontees given fo financial
—RIEEEHM insitufions in connection with
BT ER general credit facilifies

44.

granted fo subsidiaries

REOREZAMELT
fEit 2 R

Tl

fo subsidiaries

Guarantess in respect of
performance bonds in relation
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Contd)

Liquidity risk (Cont @)

Notwithstanding the above repayment on demand clause, the directors
do not believe that the bank loans will be called in ifs enfirety within
12 months, and they consider that the bank loans will be repaid
in accordance with the maturity dates as sef ouf in the respective
agreements. This evaluation was made considering: the financial
position of the Group af the date of approval of the financial statements;
the Group's compliance with the loan covenants; the lack of events of
default, and the fact that the Group has made all previously scheduled
repayments on fime. In accordance with the terms of bank loans, the
maturity terms at 31 March 2014 are HK$243,045,000 (2013:
HK$93,091,000] payable less than 12 months; HK$276,283,000
(2013: HK$671,708,000] payable in one to five years, inclusive;
HK$68,322,000 (2013: HK$72,939,000) payable over five years.

COMPANY
e kS
2014
128A AR
REXEE Less than 185%F SENE st
On demand 12months  Tto5years  Over 5 years Total
AT FiEr FET FiEr FiEr
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
144,932 - - - 144,932
- 254 - - 254
_ 125 - - 125
954,323 - - - 954,323
533,328 - - - 533,328
1,632,583 379 - - 1,632,962
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AT

REOREERANTAL
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~HERE
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BAEHE
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Cont'd)

Liquidity risk (Cont @)
COMPANY
.
2013
12 AR

REXER Less than 125% SENE 5t
On demand 12monhs  Tiodyears  Over 5 years Total
THET TiET TET THET TiET
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
222,445 - - - 222,445
- 897 - - 897
- 109 - - 109
1,500,490 - - - 1500490
51,280 - - - 51,280
342,818 - - - 342,818
35,229 - - - 35,229
2,152,262 1,006 - - 2,153,268

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Company's capital management are fo
safeguard the Company's ability fo continue as a going concern and
to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
fo it in light of changes in economic condifions. To maintain or adjust
the capital sfructure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment
fo shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capifal during the years ended 31 March 2014 and 31

March 2013
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W% W # W 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2014 ZZ—MF=A=+—H

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Contd)

Capital management (Cont d)

The Group monifors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt
divided by the total equity of the Group. The Group's policy is to
mainfain the gearing rafio at not more than 50%. Net debt includes
frade payables, other payables, derivative financial instruments, interest-
bearing bank borrowings and a loan from an associate less cash
and cash equivalents. Capital includes tofal equity of the Group. The
gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting periods were as follows:

—E-E —T-=F

2014 2013

FET FET

HK$000 HK$ 000

FERTE R Trade payables 302,732 301,256

Hfth T 50R Other payables 11,527 6,188

TTESBRITE Derivative financial instruments 4,113 8,205

fit RRITIEE Interestbearing bank borrowings 586,066 835,828

RE—HEBE AR ZER Loan from an associate - 24,560

& EETER less: Time deposits (1,106,219)  [529,582)

XBHRE Restricted cash (3,241) (60,207)

e RRITERF Cash and bank balances (441,688) (488,870

afE/ (Re)FHE Net debt/(cash] (646,710) 97,378

B Total equity 2,711,277 2,369,969

EWNERE Gearing ratio TEA 4%
MR T 2 45. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ERERN_T-MNFRA=THEAER

RETIEMGEERE

The financial stafements were approved and authorised for issue by the

board of directors on 30 June 2014.
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F ¥ Y ¥ — ¥ K SCHEDULE OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

BEHEE M
PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE
BEA
HBEERE REE
BEME Approximate FrisfEs
o E Type of gross floor Group's
Location development area interest
(‘FF2K)
(sq.m)
e g F= 147,000 100%
Ehelm Residential
JLIETRRE 1335
RRz=E
The Waterfront
133 Guangfu Road West,
Putuo District,
Shanghai, PRC
A B KO£ T F= 75,000 100%
EICE] Residential
B R R ERM B O Al
e EY S

The Riverside

South side of the junction
of Tai Er Zhuang Road and
Qiongzhou Road,

Hexi District,

Tianjin, PRC
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T EY E — B F SCHEDULE OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

RS
PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

BREME
B Type of
Location development
HEEERESGT FE/BE
BREN AL Residential /
RAIBERE Commercial
The Pinnacle

Huanghe Nan Avenue,
Huanggu District,
Shenyang City,

Liaoning Province, PRC

REMFE
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
ok

Location

FE T

RERTILHE

REFBI9F 1 - 65

EPN

China Garden,

Nos. 1 -6, Llane 39 Ronghuaxi Road,
Gubei New Area, Changning District,
Shanghai, PRC

B T

RERITHEK

22202F S5 REHAE

AR EEEEA -

B BEZ & [ 25 fEE L

1 residential unit of Block A,

Whole of Block B and 25 car parks,
Aidu Apartment, No. 55, lane 2222,
Honggiao Road, Changning District,
Shanghai, PRC

Hh B TEAE
Site area
(FHK)

(sg.m/

41,209

B4
RZEEE r5HE
Approximate P
gross floor Group's PEER
area interest Stage
(FHAK)
sq.m/

165,000 7% IREER
Construction
commenced

RE AR A
Existing use Type of lease
TF=x £23:1
Residential long term
F=E A
Residential Medium ferm
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. FUNG Chiu Chak, Victor (Vice Chairman and Managing Director)
Miss Jennifer KWOK

Mr. CHIU Chin Hung

M. LAU Kin Fai

Non-executive Directors

Mr. WANG Tianbing (Chairman)
Mr. Stuart Morrison GRANT

Mr. YANG Han Hsiang

Mr. Justin WA

Mr. LAW Yiu Fat Richard

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. FAN Chor Ho

Mr. TSE Man Bun

Mr. LUNG Chee Ming, George
Mr. U Kit Chee

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. FAN Chor Ho (Chairman)
Mr. TSE Man Bun

Mr. LUNG Chee Ming, George
Mr. U Kit Chee

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. TSE Man Bun [Chairman)
Mr. FUNG Chiu Chak, Victor
Mr. FAN Chor Ho

Mr. LI Kit Chee

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. WANG Tianbing (Chairman)
Mr. FAN Chor Ho

Mr. TSE Man Bun

Mr. LUNG Chee Ming, George
Mr. U Kit Chee
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Conyers, Dill & Pearman
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AMMREE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilion HM 11
Bermuda
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BT

BEE2R

One Island South 2018

R B R AR A

A 7] % P CORPORATE INFORMATION

QUALIFIED ACCOUNTANT

Miss MO Wai Ling

COMPANY SECRETARY

Miss WONG Suk Han, Kitty

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young

LEGAL ADVISERS

Conyers, Dill & Pearman
Reed Smith Richards Butler
Szefo & Yeung

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China (Hong Kong] Limited

BNP Paribas Hong Kong Branch

Hang Seng Bank Limited

Shanghai Commercial Bank Limited

The Bank of East Asia, Limited

The Hongkong & Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Wing Hang Bank, Limited

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilion HM11
Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

20th Floor One Island South
No. 2 Heung Yip Road
Wong Chuk Hang

Hong Kong
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BRANCH REGISTRAR IN HONG KONG

Tricor Tengis Limited

level 22, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen's Road East
Hong Kong

HKSE STOCK CODE

687

WEBSITE

www.tysan.com
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